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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ETRHE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Best
Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company” or “Best Food”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Business Review

2019 was a significant year in the development history of the Group.
During the year, the Group completed the optimization and renovation of
its strategic implementation route by adhering to the existing strategic
direction, rapidly promoted its strategy and further focused on its food
and beverage business.

First of all, 2019 was a turning point for the Group’s implementation of
the “dual-wheel driven” strategy. The Company shifted its focus from
investment layout to both investment and operation management. While
completing the investment layout of controlling brands including “HHG”,
a fast food chain featuring rice meals, and “Xinladao Fish Hotpot” and
joint-stock brands with leading position in food and beverage category,
the Group initially established a management and control system for
sharing and collaboration between the Group’s headquarter and every
brand in terms of operation management.

Meanwhile, the Group further defined the core of Best Food'’s strategic
route, which was to become a new food and beverage group operated
through digitalized omni-channel and multi-scenario, and upheld the idea
of “making a hard camp and fighting a dull battle” and acted prudently on
key directional issues. The Group vigorously invested in its overall digital
operation and devoted itself to improve customer experience and internal
management efficiency. The Group formed the franchise investment team
and took franchise expansion as the core strategy for business
development. It also promoted the supply chain collaboration among its
brands, expanded the scope of centralized procurement of raw materials,
shared the capacity of central kitchen and distribution center within the
system and strived to reduce the cost of supply chain. Best Food
University was established to build a sustainable talent training system for
the Group and to seek market-oriented operation opportunities. To
further optimize its business structure, the Group put more emphasis on
the food and beverage industry. In 2019, the Group disposed Lee & Man
Development Company Limited and its handbag business.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EFR®E (R)

Prospects and Future Planning

After the optimization and adjustment in 2019, the Group was able to
rapidly develop its business. Looking ahead into 2020, the Group will
take the strategic development route as a guide to accelerate its overall
digitalization system upgrade. The Group will recruit professional teams,
carry out omni-channel traffic operation for private domain traffic and
public domain traffic, and make every effort to achieve breakthrough in its
franchise business. The Group will enhance efficiency and reduce costs
through collaboration and sharing, so as to achieve the overall
performance breakthrough and value enhancement of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

ETRE®E (E)

At the beginning of 2020, the sudden outbreak of the coronavirus disease
(COVID-19) (the “CQOVID-19 Pandemic”) has brought unprecedented
pressure to the food and beverage industry, which brought crisis to many
food and beverage enterprises. As a result, every team of the Group has
taken rapid responses, including adopting flexible measures on raising
income and cutting down expenditure and actively obtaining banking
facilities. Currently, with all the employees’ efforts and strong support
from the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), we have
faith to overcome the hard times.

We believe the outbreak of the COVID-19 Pandemic will not change the
long-term development trend of the food and beverage industry,
whereas, it provides an opportunity for continuous rapid innovation of the
food and beverage industry and transformation of leading brands. After
the outbreak of the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Group has a more clear
understanding towards the prospects of the food and beverage industry
as well as the tremendous opportunities encountered by Best Food, and
we are full of confidence in the future.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to the
Shareholders, customers and business partners for their strong support
throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this opportunity
to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent contribution to the
Group.

On behalf of the Board
Zhao John Huan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED

Industry Overview

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the total
domestic revenue of the food and beverage industry amounted to
approximately RMB4.67 trillion in 2019, with a growth of 9.4% as
compared to 2018. The growth rate of the aggregate retail sales of social
consumer goods was 8.0%. The Group is of the view that there is no
change in the factors driving the long-term growth of the food and
beverage industry, including, among others, (i) the increase in disposable
income, including the income available for food consumption, due to
economic growth; and (i) the continuous urbanization process which has
brought further population to towns and stimulated consumption in food
and beverage and intensified market competition. The major opportunities
and challenges encountered by every food and beverage enterprise are
how to reform rapidly in order to capture new purchasing power and
adapt to consumer habits in the mobile internet era.

Business Strategies and Implementation of
the Group

2019 was a turning point for the Group’s implementation of the “dual-wheel
driven” strategy. The Company shifted its focus from investment layout to
both investment and operation management. An investment layout has
formed with a combination of controlling brands including “HHG”, a fast
food chain featuring rice meals, and “Xinladao Fish Hotpot” and joint-
stock brands from food and beverage category. In terms of operation
management, a management and control system for sharing and
collaboration between the Group’s headquarter and every brand has
been initially established.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBWED T (E)

Investment layout

In 2016, the Group acquired the controlling interest of HHG, a leading
fast food chain in Beijing featuring rice meals, and acquired a non-
controlling interest in Yujian Xiaomian, a prominent emerging brand, and
West Master, a leading Chinese fast food brand in Beijing. In addition, the
Group entered into an investment contract with Sexy Salad, a rapidly
emerging and prominent brand of salad within the food and beverage
industry in China in March 2017; with Yuepin in March 2017, iconic
brands of Vietnamese cuisine, Muine and Pho Nam; with Clay Pot King in
April 2017, a typical brand of Canton soup rice; with Dafulan in May
2017, a prominent emerging brand featuring Hunan rice noodle and
traditional snacks; with Seesaw Coffee in May 2017, a typical premium
coffee brand; and further with Foook in October 2017, a representative
brand of spicy hot pot. The Group has completed investments in all of
these brands stated above. In June 2018, the Group entered into an
investment contract with “Xinladao”, a leading brand of fish hot pot in
China, and has obtained control over “Xinladao” at the end of November
2018. 2019 was its full year of operation within the Group, achieving the
interim goal on the establishment of multi-category brand portfolio of the
Group. In June 2019, the Group has invested in Beijing Dingding
Technology Co., Ltd.* {tRTETERHZARAE]) (“Dingding”), a SaaS
provider that provides “digitalized customer management” for food and
beverage brands. On 27 December 2019, the Group completed the
disposal of the handbags business in order to devote all of its resources
to the food and beverage segment and continued to explore the food
and beverage industry.

Operation management

The strategic direction of the Group’s operation management was to
become a new food and beverage group operated through digitalized
omni-channel. By focusing on product and brand innovation, applying
mobile internet technology, and promoting integrated online and offline
operations of brands, the Group has achieved a business model of
channels diversification and consumer experiences enrichment. Guided
by the goal, the Group insisted on establishing a shared collaborative
system, such as digitalization system, franchise expansion, supply chain
collaboration, talent training at Best Food University, in order to enhance
efficiency and reduce cost.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBSWED T (E)

Digitalization System: The work priorities of 2019 was to facilitate the
digitalization system upgrade of controlling brands, while dedicating its
efforts on improving customer experience and internal management
efficiency, and facilitating significant upgrade in cashier system, invoicing
system and user management system of HHG and Xinlaodao. “Dingding”
Technology was helping the Group to speed up the implementation and
integration of membership system.

Franchise Expansion: The direct operation system of the brands under
the Group was relatively well-developed at the current stage. Franchise
collaboration has become the key strategy of business development. The
Group has set up a franchise business segment to coordinate the
franchising and cooperation of various brands, and sought and
approached partners which had resources for franchising channel
expansion and were experienced in managing a franchising system.
Meanwhile, it selected suitable brands and subsequently proceeded with
collaboration and cooperation, thus providing robust support for the
franchise investment team of its brands.

Supply Chain Collaboration: The Group will lower the total procurement
costs by expanding centralized tenders for procurement and sharing
facilities. HHG, a brand of the Group, increased its investment in
production plants and warehouses, and operated fresh and semi-finished
cooked food processing centers in the suburbs of Beijing and Tianjin in
2019. In addition to meeting the processing demands from the semi-
finished and finished products of the controlling brands with sufficient
production capacity, the Group’s central factory has provided processing
services to the joint-stock brands and successfully acquired third-party
customers in the regions, which marked a good start for “omni-channel”
sales.

Talent training system: In 2019, Best Food University recruited
experienced experts from the food and beverage industry as well as
professionals with online and offline teaching experience, aiming to build
a sustainable talent training system for the Group. At the same time, the
online platform of Best Food University has completed preliminary
product development, and gradually acquired third-party corporate
customers and increased the sales of online courses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBWED T (E)

Operating results

In 2019, the total system sales, constituting sales of all restaurants, both
owned and franchised by food and beverage business under all brands
amounted to RMB1,913.9 million, representing an increase of 6.1% as
compared to 2018. The revenue presented under consolidated statement
of comprehensive income was RMB998.3 million, representing an
increase of 112.3% as compared to RMB470.2 million in 2018. The
gross profit amounted to RMB590.3 million, as compared with
RMB270.2 million for the corresponding period in 2018, which was due
to the overall increase in gross profit margin resulting from the new
acquisition of “Xinladao” which had a higher gross profit margin. The
operating profit of “HHG” and “Xinladao” was RMB46.9 million, without
taking into account the effects of non-recurring factors such as
impairment losses on assets and store suspended loss of RMB14.0
million, representing an increase of 90.9% over 2018. It also recorded net
management expense of the Group’s headquarter of RMB17.4 million in
2019, increased by RMB1.5 million as compared to 2018. Excluding the
impact of addition expenses arising from incentive plan of RMB8.2
million, the Group’s operating profit in 2019 amounted to RMB15.5
million, as compared with that of RMB3.5 million for the corresponding
period in 2018.

In 2019, the Group’s finance expenses, net was RMB60.4 million,
including, among others:

(i) the interest expense of RMB18.7 million arising from the application
of HKFRS 16 “Leases” which became effective on 1 January 2019;
and

(i)  the interest expense of the convertible bonds issued on 23

November 2018 of approximately RMB35.9 million during the year,
as compared with RMB4.1 million in 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBSWED T (E)

In addition, the Group recorded other special items as follows:

U

(i)

the loss from joint-stock brands amounted to RMB11.2 million, as
compared to RMB4.4 million in 2018. The impairment loss on
investment in an associate was RMB15.0 million, and there was no
such impairment loss in 2018; and

the Company disposed of the entire issued share capital of Lee &
Man Development Company Limited (‘Lee & Man”) and recorded
loss for the year from discontinued operations of RMB35.1 million,
which has taken into account, among other things, (a) profit for the
year from discontinued operation of RMB12.5 million; (b) loss on
disposal of equity interest in discontinued operations before
reclassification of foreign currency translation reserve, net of income
tax of RMB40.0 million; and (c) loss of RMB7.6 million arising on
the reclassification of foreign currency translation reserve on
discontinued operations to profit or loss upon disposal.

Based on the above, the Group recorded loss for the year of RMB121.4
million in 2019, representing an increase of approximately RMB112.5
million from a loss of RMB8.9 million for the corresponding period in
2018. The loss for the period was mainly due to the above special items.

The Company considered that the above special items were not the

indicators for the annual operating performance of the Company’s
business. The Company also considered that the interest expenses
incurred by the issuance of convertible bonds and the loss on joint-stock
brands might or would continue to have an impact on the future financial
performance of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBWED T (E)

As a result of the sudden outbreak of the COVID-19 Pandemic in 2020, a
number of provinces and municipalities in China have activated level | —
the highest-level response to major public health emergencies and
adopted various strict measures to curb the spread of the COVID-19
Pandemic. In accordance with the prevention measures of the
government at all levels, the Group has temporarily suspended the
operation of some of its controlled and invested restaurants (including
both self-operated and franchised restaurants) in stages since 26 January
2020. In addition to the gradual resumption of work due to the abatement
of the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Group also actively promoted
contactless food delivery and takeaway through its online platform,
provided group-selling business, and put great efforts in boosting sales.
Meanwhile, a series of cost reduction measures were adopted to mitigate
the impact of COVID-19 Pandemic, including negotiating with the
landlords for discount and arranging flexible staffing to lower the labor
cost. While the Group expects that the impact of COVID-19 Pandemic
on the operation will be short-term and temporary, in the long run, the
Group remains confident in the economic growth and prospects of
China’s food and beverage industry. In addition to putting emphasis on
existing businesses and improving profitability, we will also prudently
allocate resources on new business or asset acquisition opportunities.

Business Progress of Controlling Brands

HHG

In 2019, HHG strongly promoted the strategy of “Activating Organization,
Streamlining Varieties, Increasing Categories, Optimizing Quality;
Capacity Upgrade, Value Realization; Customer Satisfaction Employee
Pride”. Focusing on product elevation and customer experience, HHG
has gained huge progress in extending business hours, adjusting product
mix and boosting sales through multiple channels. The same store sales
has significantly increased by 25.6%. In 2019, the system sales of HHG
increased by RMB99.4 million as compared to 2018. Gross profit also
recorded an increase of RMB23.8 milion. HHG strengthened its online
marketing investment and the significant increase in the price of raw
materials such as pork has led to a decline in gross profit margin.
Excluding the impact of impairment losses on assets and store
suspended loss, the operating profit of HHG amounted to RMB23.4
million, increased by RMB14.0 million as compared to 2018. In 2019, the
operating profit amounted to RMB16.3 million (2018: RMB11.1 million),
the interest expense and income tax expense amounted to RMB12.5
million, mainly due to the expense of RMB10.8 million arising from the
application of HKFRS 16 “Leases”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBSWED T (E)

Store Network: As of 31 December 2019, HHG had 149 stores, 105 of
which were direct stores. In 2019, there were 24 new franchisees,
covering Beijing, Hebei, Shandong, Shanxi, Inner Mongolia and other
regions.

Brand Upgrade: HHG appointed professional advisers to organize its
overall branding strategy and formulate specific improvement measures
for brand positioning, visual effect and product mix. In 2020, HHG will
launch a new brand and store image with the experiences in 2019, and
gradually upgrade its existing stores.

Digitalization Upgrade: During the year, HHG has comprehensively
upgraded the cashier system and user management system, and flexibly
conducted online and offline multi-dimensional marketing. Currently,
customers can make their food order via mobile app and enjoy takeaway
services in all stores, which improves the efficiency of ordering, effectively
shortens the time for queuing during peak hours, and increases the
number of orders. It also helps to bring the data of user consumption
behavior online, laying a foundation for realizing targeted marketing based
on the user data.

Product Development: In order to focus on products and services, HHG
extended the service hours for breakfast and dinner. With a wider
selection of food on the menu, such as Wonton, noodles and kebabs,
store traffic was boosted. In 2019, HHG provided free side dishes and
set up self-service counters in some stores to enhance the dining
environment, which increased customer stickiness and satisfaction, and
had positive effect on boosting sales. In 2020, HHG will further combine
the characteristics of consumption environment in different service hours
to speed up the rollout of new menu and formulate pricing strategies
integrating the consumption characteristics and demands of online and
offline operations.

Supply Chain: Relying on the centralized procurement center of the
Group, the Company enjoyed a centralized procurement price across
multiple brands, resulting in the reduction of costs in certain disposable
goods and groceries. By constructing warehouses in the suburbs of
Beijing and bringing together factories to establish a logistic system, we
had spread our service capabilities across Northern China. In 2019, the
central factories of HHG in Beijing and Tianjin have been actively sourcing
third-party customers, such as HEYTEA and Wumart, in addition to
meeting their own processing needs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBWED T (E)

Xinladao

Xinladao was under brand upgrade and adjustment in 2019. Direct store
adjustments were generally in place. In 2019, the system sales amounted
to RMB483.6 million. Excluding the impact of impairment losses on
assets and store suspended loss, the operating profit of Xinladao
amounted to RMB23.5 million. In 2019, the operating profit amounted to
RMB16.6 million, the interest expense and income tax expense
amounted to RMB11.8 million, mainly due to the expense of RMB7.9
million arising from the application of HKFRS 16 “Leases”.

Store Network: As of 31 December 2019, Xinladao had 93 stores. In
2019, there were 16 new franchisees, covering Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Shanxi,
Hebei, Gansu, Inner Mongolia and other regions. In-depth discussion in
relation to franchise business in other regions is also in progress.

Brand Upgrade: We have achieved better results since the experiment of
new store layout at the end of 2018, and the revenue of single-store
operating in new layout has improved significantly. In 2019, we have
upgraded certain stores whose leases are expired with the new layout,
and achieved an improvement in the profitability of those stores.

Corporate Structure: In respect of team management, we have further
optimized our corporate structure. Positions were streamlined to cut
down on redundant staff at the headquarters. In respect of store
management team, the profitability of the newly opened stores was
enhanced by reform of incentive distribution mechanism.

Supply Chain: Through systematically organizing market-based bidding
for major raw materials and supplementary materials, raw material costs
were reduced. A supply chain system was established for major raw
material and condiment.

Franchise Expansion: In 2019, Xinlandao began to systematically develop
its franchise business. With the help of the Group, Xinlandao achieved a
breakthrough in franchise business in multiple regions. For example, on
13 January 2020, Xinlandao successfully opened its first franchise store
in Hong Kong, which helped to explore overseas market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBSWED T (E)

Joint-Stock Brands

In 2019, the major joint-stock brands of the Group achieved growth of
varying degrees with improvement in operation efficiency, the overall
system sales of food and beverage business increased by 17.3% as
compared to the corresponding period in 2018. The joint-stock brands
were still under the investment and expansion stage, so they were yet to
make profit contribution to the Group. With the constant expansion in
store scale as well as further enhancement in brand promotion and
operation capacity of each joint-stock brand, it is expected that the joint-
stock brands will make significant contributions to the profit of the Group.
The following is a summary of business data of the investees of the
Group in 2019:

Yujian Xiaomian

For the twelve months period ended 31 December 2019, the system
sales of Yujian Xiaomian amounted to RMB140.9 million, which increased
by approximately 51.7% as compared to the corresponding period in
2018. In 2019, Yujian Xiaomian actively developed and improved the
information system of both front-end stores and back office at the
headquarters, which laid a solid foundation for the subsequent rapid
development. It continued to explore and optimize store layout and
product mix, developed different types of stores and extended business
hours in order to improve efficiency under the age of fast iteration and
upgrading. The operating network of Yujian Xiaomian continued to
strengthen the single store layout with direct operation. Yujian Xiaomian
saw franchise as the major expansion method, and as of 31 December
2019, Yujian Xiaomian had nearly 50 brand stores. Agreements were
signed with partners for regional franchises in Xiamen and a joint-venture
was established in Eastern China with an expansion plan of opening
hundred stores within three years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBWED T (E)

West Master

For the twelve months period ended 31 December 2019, the system
sales of West Master amounted to RMB179.0 million, which increased by
approximately 19.1% as compared to the corresponding period in 2018.
In 2019, West Master tried to adopt the franchising business model and
has formed a more mature franchise system with endless improvement
and optimization, which laid a solid foundation for subsequent vigorous
development of its franchise business. As of 2019, West Master entered
into contracts with four franchisees with three franchise stores opened.
The management cost has been significantly reduced by improving
management efficiency. The management cost of headquarter decreased
from 16.4% in 2018 to 10.0% in 2019, reflecting the high effectiveness of
cost control. In 2019, West Master actively explored foreign markets and
the possibility to open stores in Canada. In respect of supply chain, the
management team put forward the concept of “Big Supply Chain”,
expanding the source of suppliers to the global market, which will
substantially improve the quality of food ingredients and cost control.

Sexy Salad

Sexy Salad will further enhance its edges in user management. Through
online brand crossover joint promotion campaigns, Sexy Salad has
expanded its customer base, increased its traffic and enhanced its brand
awareness. Sales performance in 2019 was partially affected by discount
campaigns. Sexy Salad continued to launch various hot dishes to
overcome the seasonal cold features of western-style cuisines, while
enhancing the varieties of its salad menu. Meanwhile, Sexy Salad
gradually developed its franchise business and entered into contracts
with three franchise stores, covering Guangzhou and Qingyuan in
Guangdong Province, as well as Xiamen. Sexy Salad continued to launch
derivative products to expand its targeted customers. Meanwhile, it
introduced retail products and made progress on meal replacement
products under “Wonderlab”, which became a new driver for business
growth. It also obtained credit facilities from the market due to its
favorable development momentum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBSWED T (E)

Yuepin

For the twelve months period ended 31 December 2019, the system
sales of Yuepin amounted to RMB110.7 million. Excluding new stores,
the growth in same store sales of comparable stores under “Pho Nam”
and “Muine” was 20.3% and 9.6%, respectively. In 2019, customer
satisfaction, employee satisfaction and corporate performance achieved
significant improvement as a result of product elevation and upgrading,
establishment and enhancement of membership system, and
optimization of store assessment and incentive policy.

Dafulan

For the twelve months period ended 31 December 2019, the system
sales of Dafulan amounted to RMB51.5 million, which increased by
approximately 23.4% as compared to the corresponding period in 2018.
In 2019, Dafulan focused on operation enhancement, and optimization
and upgrading of products and brand image, while implementing a new
store assessment and incentive policy, which led to a significant increase
in satisfaction of both customers and employees, and operation
efficiency. Dafulan has further developed its franchise business while
enhancing its management. The two contracted franchise stores have
been opened.

Clay Pot King

For the twelve months period ended 31 December 2019, the system
sales of Clay Pot King amounted to RMB161.5 million. Clay Pot King
began to explore its franchise business and six contracted stores were
opened in 2019. While developing its business, Clay Pot King continued
to organize and improve the franchise system. After a year of exploration,
a franchise model designed for the brand has been formed to accelerate
the development of franchise business. In 2019, Clay Pot King
repackaged and repositioned its brand to provide better experience to
customers. It also engaged external experts to redesign the store layout.
The stores with new layout have commenced operation, and gained
acclaim from customers in terms of image, packaging and taste. Clay Pot
King expanded its product line by adding congee and side dish products
in order to enhance revenue during dinner hours and further ensure the
products were available at all time. Clay Pot King improved the cooking
process of its signature dish, Canton soup rice, and invented specialized
utensils for making Canton soup rice so as to present the traditional taste
of rice crust.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBWED T (E)

Seesaw Coffee

For the twelve months period ended 31 December 2019, the system
sales of Seesaw Coffee amounted to RMB74.6 million, which increased
by approximately 29.8% as compared to the corresponding period in
2018. In addition to the original stores located at Shanghai, Seesaw
Coffee further expanded its network in other cities and gradually opened
three stores in Shenzhen and three stores in Beijing. Seesaw Coffee
actively developed and improved the digital operation structure of both
front-end stores and back office at the headquarters, whereas the order
function of WeChat Mini Programs continuously iterated, which laid a
solid foundation for the subsequent rapid development. At the same
time, the Company’s new retail products have achieved good progress.

Foook

For the twelve months period ended 31 December 2019, the system
sales of Foook amounted to RMB83.0 million, which increased by
approximately 17.9% as compared to the corresponding period in 2018.
In 2019, Foook focused on operation enhancement and improved both
customers and employees satisfaction by the “employee incentive
program”. At the same time, Foook optimized and upgraded its brand
image and made a bold move in model innovation by introducing self-
service stores with price ladders and presenting a wide variety of seafood
dishes, which consolidated the brand barrier. Foook introduced a new
brand and new image of “Foook’s Choice” and received positive
response from the market.

Final Dividend

The board of directors of the Company has determined not to declare
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBSWED T (E)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The total shareholders’ equity of the Group as at 31 December 2019 was
RMB985.0 million (31.12.2018: RMB983.3 million). As at 31 December
2019, the Group had current assets of RMB318.7 million (31.12.2018:
RMBG642.6 million) and current liabilities of RMB354.2 million (31.12.2018:
RMB475.7 million). The current ratio was 0.90 as at 31 December 2019
as compared to 1.35 as at 31 December 2018.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cash
flow and convertible bonds issued to Shareholder. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had outstanding bank borrowings of RMB5.0 million
(81.12.2018: 5.0 million). As at 31 December 2019, the Group maintained
bank balances and cash of RMB131.3 million (31.12.2018: RMB302.3
million). The Group’s net cash-to-equity ratio (cash and cash equivalents
net of total borrowings over shareholders’ equity) was 0.13 as at 31
December 2019 (31.12.2018: 0.30).

The Group possesses sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
convertible bonds and borrowings, and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEE N WE D (F)

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the property, plant and equipment improvement (31.12.2018:
RMB6.6 million).

The Group has sufficient cash and ability to obtain bank borrowings to
meet the Group’s capital and other commitments and working capital
requirements.

Events after the Reporting Period

Save for the events as disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, no other significant event affecting the
Group took place after 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report.

Significant Investments

During the year, the Company has no significant investment, with a value
of 5% or more of the Company’s total assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
There was no material acquisition of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures of the Group during the year. Save for the disposal of Lee &

Man, there was no other material disposal of subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures of the Group during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBSWED T (E)

Future Plans for Material Investments and
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed, the Group also did not have definite plans for material
investments and capital assets.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2019, save for buildings with net book value of
RMB24.1 million were pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowings,
there was no charge over the assets of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (31.12.2018: nil).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio was 27% (31.12.2018:
32%). This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” and convertible bonds as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in HK dollars, RMB
and US dollars which are exposed to foreign currency risk with respect to
transactions denominated in currencies other than HK dollars, RMB and
US dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The Group did not
enter into any forward contract to hedge its exposure to foreign currency
risk for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBWED T (E)

Human Resources

At 31 December 2019, the Group had a workforce of about 4,090 people
(2018: about 8,600 people, including 5,100 people under the food and
beverage business and 3,500 people under the manufacturing and sales
of handbags business). The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees, and provides them with proper training and competitive
compensation and incentives. The staff are remunerated based on their
work performance, professional experience and prevailing market
situation. Remuneration packages comprise salary and bonuses based
on individual merits. To retain and provide incentives to directors,
employees and eligible persons and to recognize their contributions to
the Group, the Company adopted a share option scheme on 18 May
2011 and a share award scheme on 11 November 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Board believes that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group and for
safeguarding and maximizing shareholders’ interests. On 1 January
2016, the amendments to the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) came into effect. The Company
has applied the principles and adopted the code provisions set out in the
CG Code. The Board is committed to complying with the code provisions
as stated in the CG code to the extent that the Directors consider
applicable and practical to the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2019 except where stated and explained below.

—  Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhao
John Huan is an executive Director and the chairman of the
Company. He had also been the chief executive officer of the
Company during the period from 9 August 2016 up to 26 August
2019, being the date on which Mr. Wang Xiaolong was appointed
the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Zhao John Huan
oversees and manages the Group’s business as the chairman of
the Company with the assistance of the Group’s senior
management team. Functions normally undertaken by the chief
executive officer of the Company were delegated to members of
the Group’s senior management team until 26 August 2019, since
when Mr. Wang Xiaolong has been solely responsible for the
functions undertaken by the chief executive officer of the Company.
The structure before 26 August 2019 deviated from code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code that requires the roles of the chairman and

%M\AM

KRABBORBFERKEZLEER- ES
HEE HAEBEXEMERELRES K
D TERAEMNGCEEARTHRER
ASAT R o BA2016¢1H1E| BEABER
SHBERARFESEMMRA( EmRAD
Wﬁ+m%ﬂﬁ¢ M@?W&¢¥MA
WmE(REESTUNDMBETER - AR
E%%%E%M&%%m%%é#%%ﬁ
WTABY ZEFgRE TEFRAER
RAEARBRYEAITHANRT - BT
EVRTRIFTE M ST RIEXITSE o

BEERAE BTXHHAREEEI AR
AIREZ2019F12A31HILFEE BT
¥ERTRIATHE ST RIMES -

— EBRTANTEMEXA21ERTE
ERTRBHEIBEETEERLE D
BAATAR— AEE - BIE2019F12
AB1BHEFEREEARAFRA -
BB A ETRTESRARAE
& BN 201648 59H 201948
Ao6 BRI ARRITHRAT M
R2019F8 A26H E/NEL L EZ T
BARNBIITHEH BSEBEEER
ARBEREAEESRAEEERD
Tﬂ ERAEBZER —MAEA

NRTTHRAHEBZBEBEAEES
BEEEEEHEZE2019%F8A26H -
BT NEEAEEZHEBEHARQRIT
ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁZﬁ% ﬁilﬁmwi
SHGHUNUAMEREBESEER
?M?%ﬁﬁ%AmMﬁ%ﬁ% A
BBEXHEEEIRERITRBECBES

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR

25



26

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EEEREHE (

the chief executive officer to be separate and not performed by the
same individual. The Directors had considered this matter carefully
and believed that the management structure before 26 August
2019 had been effective in facilitating the operation and
development of the Group and its business for a considerable
period and that the necessary checks and balances that are
consistent with sound corporate governance practices were in
place. As necessitated by the changing needs of the Company, the
management structure has been revised since 26 August 2019.
Since then, the Company has complied with code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in 2011. All the members of the Board have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.

Board of Directors

Composition and role

The Board comprises:

Executive Director

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Jing Shen (appointed on 30 April 2019)

Mr. Wang Yuanzheng (resigned on 30 April 2019)

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence
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As at 31 December 2019, the Board comprises three executive directors
(one of whom is the chairman of the board) and three independent non-
executive Directors. The three independent non-executive Directors
represent more than one-third of the Board. In addition, all the
independent non-executive Directors possess appropriate business,
professional accounting qualifications or legal expertise.

As at 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report, there
are no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship) between members of the Board.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance, as well
as the risk management and the internal controls of the Group’s business
operations.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The independent non-executive Directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Board considers that each independent
non-executive Director is independent in character and judgment and
that they all meet the specific independence criteria as required by the
Listing Rules. The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director an annual confirmation or confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
independent non- executive Directors are explicitly identified in all of the
Company’s corporate communications.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is engaged on an
appointment letter for a term of three years.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting at least once every three years and any director appointed by
the Board or elected by the Shareholders to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next following general
meeting, as the case may be, of the Company after his/her appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

The chairman of the Board is primarily responsible for drawing up and
approving the agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all the
Directors. Notice of at least 14 days will be given to the Directors for all
regular board meetings and the Directors can include matters for
discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board
papers in respect of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all the
Directors within reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all
board meetings are circulated to Directors for comment within a
reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all the
Directors have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information in a timely manner, which enable the
Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it.
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During the year under review, five full board meetings and one general REIEEEN DEAH A2 REEe
meeting were held and the attendance of each Director is set out below: Fh—ARERXRe SEFTHFEBAEY

s
Annual general
meeting held on
Number of board 28 June 2019
meetings attendance 120196 H28H

Name of director EERS HEEEEEBEARAYE BOZRRBEFKS

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) HEBEE (FE) 4/5MNote 1) 1/1

(P 3E1)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FNEESLAE 3/5Note 2) 11
(M 3E2)
Mr. Wang Yuanzheng TRIESLE 11 0/0
(resigned on 30 April, 2019) (FA20194 4 B30 H & )
Mr. Jlng Shen ;%TE ’7‘E i 3/4“\‘01? 3) 1/1
(appointed on 30 April, 2019) (720194 B30 A E £ 1T) e

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TB R # 55 &= 5/5 1/1

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence FEX S E 5/5 11

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REESLE 5/5 1/1

Notes : B 5

1. To avoid conflict of interests, Mr. Zhao John Huan abstained from one Board meeting, 1. BRENZERE  HLEBEEER - KRESTeeS
which concerned the change of the chief executive officer of the Company held on 26 R E }XK H\ BREN2019FE8 26 1T E
August 2019. FEEHRLEEARADAIITRES -

2. To avoid conflicts of interests, Mr. Wang Xiaolong abstained from two Board meetings, 2. BREEANETER  F/)\EEERMIETSES
one of which concerned his appointment as the chief executive officer of the Company FREKREZ Hdh — R EBEMN2019E8 426 El
held on 26 August 2019, and the other one concerned the adoption of share award ;:_E THEECS T EZTARRTITRER -
scheme and the granting of awarded shares to certain Directors and selected —REBR2019511 11 B IR 4 IR () 228 51
employees of the Group (including himself) on 11 November 2019. ﬁu ERETEELAEEEFTEE(BEREES)

B R -

3. To avoid conflicts of interests, Mr. Jing Shen abstained from one Board meeting, which 3. B ﬂ SR - SEBEEER—KESeeER
concerned the adoption of share award scheme and the granting of awarded shares WMEKEZ Hrh liﬁ 5/\2019$ 11811 B QD
to certain Directors and selected employees of the Group (including himself) on 11 EEHERAME TESESRAEERTEE (BE
November 2019. HEE)EHERKRD -

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and & #HEZFEFTEZTHHeES B S

tailored induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he has & - EBR RS EAZEMN ABIES] - LAFE
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group RIEE AR EB XK NEERBRLEH T # -
and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the W2 E B EBE F TR B N%E @A G R
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There are also F I Z2BELET EEZER - KAQAITN
arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional @ ZHimESIEHEBEF N L EERRE -
development to Directors at the Company’s expenses whenever & /AN & & E
necessary.

o

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes ARAGRUAREBEBEERIARTERES
and developments relating to the Group’s business and the legislative 1%; 1% vEE NBEEe e mie R
and regulatory environments to the Directors at board meetings or HHmESRETHETILES -
through emails.

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR
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The Directors are committed to complying with code provision A.6.5 of
the CG Code on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and provided a record of training they received for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to the Company. The type of training
received is summarized below:

EEAHBETLEERTAEBHESE
2 SFBIMESCEABSK - B =20194F 12 A 31
HIEFE 2BE=EHEL2EEREKEN
BENBLREEZHBESERR YER
AARIREREME SN EE - AT
S ERBMnT

Reading Attending external
regulatory seminars/
updates programmes
HEEERTE SHEMPREBEENR
Name of Director EEns BEHER WmaE SER
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) BB . (F ) v v
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FRREE v v
Mr. Jing Shen =ExE v v
Independent non-executive Directors BIYEHITES
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR R 4t 55 & v v
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BXEE v v
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REASLE v v
Audit Committee EREES

The Company’s audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established
in 2011 and its current members include three independent non-
executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in the
fields of accounting, business and legal. The composition and members
of the Audit Committee satisfy the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were adopted in March

2012 and amended with effect from January 2019, a copy of which is
posted on the Company’s website.
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The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group’s financial
reporting and other information to shareholders, the system of internal
controls, risk management and the effectiveness and objectiveness of the
audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters.

During the year under review, two Audit Committee meetings were held.
The following matters were discussed and considered during the two
Audit Committee meetings:

(@  reviewed the annual report of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2018 and the interim report of the Company for the
six months ended June 30, 2019;

(b)  discussed with the external auditor of the Company on the
independent auditor’s report;

(c) reviewed the Company’s internal control system and risk
management system and discussed with the management on the

effectiveness of these systems; and

(d) reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.

The individual attendance of each member is set out below:

ERZEeEHFAeN RN ARE MK
E#&&?ﬁ%ﬂx%ZEﬁﬂéﬂ M AR ES 4 &
CEREEREEZBEZARUERESR

’|‘$° BERZBEYREFERARAKA
fzMzB2fR EEBRESHEANRE

EERES G WAL YSES SHE I

ERLZESCHEEERNAEEMRM
GETRARED  WEBEARER - A
g/—* &Eﬁ%t*&ﬁ;%:[ﬁ ‘TTuTuFEID
REBFEAN REWH_AEZRZEES
FoRBITHRMABTZZEZERPEH

wmEERTIEIE:

(a) BHEAAQAREFHZE2018F 128318 IH5F
ErFHREARQREZE2019%6 A30
BIENEAMFEIRE

(b) EEA QN F] NI AR HAT AT i 0B N ik EED
iR

) HFEBADQDRAAIBELT X G K ER
BEGTHEREBIHZER ME’\JE
B R

o THHARAWAMBBEZBENAR
1 o

EZERIKEMHFEBRESNMT

Number of attendance
Name of Director BEEHS R
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR # % A& 2/2
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence EXhAE 2/2
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei RERELE 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The Company’s remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in 2011 and its current members include
one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Group’s overall
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no Director or
any of his associate is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were adopted in
March 2012 to conform with the code provisions of the CG Code, a copy
of which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met during the year ended 31
December 2019 to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy for the remuneration of executive Directors, assess
performance of executive Directors and certain senior management and
approve the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts. During the
year under review, four Remuneration Committee meetings were held
and the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

=
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|l
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FRY - EARKEBE - R2UTESFR
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BERELE(FHZES
NEESR A
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T
il

FHEZEERAREEERSREEREZ
FHoBEBRRARBRESFSFELR
ZoFMHZEERAMEZE TN AT M
BAZBEETHEASZ2HFM - REALE
ERTRAZTAMGRY  FMEZ B R#
EEEN2012F3 AWM L2 HIHHR A
REWHAEA-

FHZE e BENRTEZERSREERE
MFMTBRESSRLER -

EETRNTES MR FHEZES
ZREHERER BRUELRAAMAXM
FEeKF EFMERCBRLEBRE K
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FMEEEREE2019F 12831 B ILEE
BUTeH URARRNITEENHHEK

RMEFERLER FEATEERE
TRAEEENRR YHEATESEH

RIEEGIEFT - REBEFERN  £EBMKX
FHEEggH SEENKENTEER
REFWAT

Number of attendance
Name of director BEEHSR HERE
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 5 & 4/4
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FhBERE 3/4
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei 2EH LS 4/4
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Note:

To avoid conflict of interests, Mr. Wang Xiaolong abstained from one Remuneration Committee
meeting on 11 November 2019, which concerned the adoption of share award scheme and
the granting of awarded shares to certain Directors and selected employees of the Group
(including himself).

Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration payable to the senior management of the Company,
including those members of senior management who are also Directors
is shown in the following table by band:

(members of senior

n

&’

B 5

ABREFEmER T/OEEER2019F11A11EDN —
RENZESGRPHRERE  HBABREMRG ZE T
BARmMETESRASEETRERE (BEFE )KL
AR5 -

=R EEE R

BN TAARGAEEERERRNELE
ENEREREKNEMNTMZRSERENTE
H7R

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184

(members of senior

(HKD) management of the Company) management of the Company)
(% 7T) (FAREGREBERE) (ARFAENEEBEKE)
1-1,000,000 7
>1,000,000 2

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees payable to the
Company’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries are set out below:

¥ B4 B 3 BN

REE2019F12831HIEFE AR A
MEWBRRERENET RIEBETRS
MARNBIEZEMEMOBERIENNT ¢

RMB’000

TFTARY

Audit services E R 2,400
Non-audit services IEEET RS 176
2,576

BREREBRLAT —ZE-—IFEFER
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Nomination Committee

The Company’s nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
was established according to code provision A.5 of the CG Code, and its
terms of reference were established in writing. The Nomination
Committee’s current members include one executive Director and two
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman of the Nomination Committeg)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board structure, size and composition, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted in
March 2012 and revised in August 2013, a copy of which is posted on
the Company’s website.

Nomination Policy

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation the following in assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@  reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the food and
beverage industry and other related industries;

(c) commitment in respect of sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s business;

(d) diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,

cultural and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge;

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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(e) the ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success;

M compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of an
independent non-executive Director; and

(@ any other relevant factors as may be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall be made in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association and other
applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedure

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a meeting, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also nominate candidates for its consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due diligence in
respect of such individual and make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation, for the proposed candidates to
stand for re-election at a general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general meeting.

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates objectively with due
regards to the diversity. Diversity of the Board will be considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, as well as other
attributes and strengths that relate to the Company’s business model
and specific needs from time to time. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee will report formally to the Board for decision.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2019 and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, made recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors.

The individual attendance of each member is set out below:

REEZEERNHE2019F12A31B LFE
BITMACHE BRITEZTGNERE BER
B T EBELIERITEENB LT M
EEeRHEZZORETZANHEER

N
2

ERERNKBEOHFEBAFIAT

Number of attendance
Name of Director EENR HE IR E
Mr. Zhao John Huan HESE S 2/2
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REHRSLE 2/2
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BXEAE 2/2

Board Diversity

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company continued to
monitor the board composition with regard to its diversity policy which
requires appointments of Directors to be made based on merit and
candidates to be considered against an objective criteria, including
diversity. In order to maintain an appropriate mix and balance of talent,
skills, experience and background on the Board, the Nomination
Committee developed measurable objectives to implement this policy
and monitored progress towards achieving these objectives during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational
background and professional experience of each Director, against the
Company’s business model and specific needs.

The Directors believe diversity is important to enhance the Board’'s
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Directors will continue to
monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and achieving
improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers appropriate
with regard to the specific needs of the Company and the market from
time to time.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of risk management
and internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound risk
management and internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders of the Company and the Group’s assets. The Board has
delegated to executive management the implementation of the system of
risk management and internal controls and reviewing of all relevant
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management function
within an established framework.

The system of risk management and internal controls of the Group
include a defined management structure and its limited licensing rights.
The purpose of the system is to assist the Group in identifying and
managing significant risks faced in achieving its business objectives,
safeguarding assets from unauthorized diversion or disposal, and
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting records to provide reliable
financial information for internal use or publication, and to ensure the
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The above monitoring
system is designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risks of the
operating systems failure of the Group or the failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance against major
misrepresentation or loss, rather than absolute assurance.
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The Group has established an internal audit function to assist the Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee in continuously reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal controls of
the Group. The Group has integrated risk management into its core
business practices. The relevant operating units of the Group
continuously review and assess the potential risk conditions that may
affect their achievement of the business objectives of the unit and/or the
Group. The review process includes assessing whether the current
internal control system is still appropriate, whether the potential risks
have been adequately addressed, and/or whether it needs to be
updated.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
controls of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019. Members
of the management team confirmed the effectiveness of the system of
risk management and internal controls of their responsible areas during
the year. The Board periodically receives (at least once a year) reports
from the Group’s management regarding financial, operational and
compliance controls, as well as the establishment, review and
assessment of the internal control and risk management functions of the
Group. The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the
contrary, the system of risk management and internal monitor maintained
by the Group throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, provides
reasonable assurance against material financial misstatements or loss,
including the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records, the reliability of financial information, compliance with
appropriate legislation and regulation, and the identification and
containment of business risks. The Board confirmed the effectiveness of
the system of risk management and internal controls, including sufficient
resources, appropriate qualifications and experience of employees, and
staff training courses, and adequate budget for accounting, internal
auditing and financial reporting functions. No significant areas of concern
have been identified, and the Board considered the system effective and
adequate.

The Group has formulated inside information policies and regularly
reminds directors and employees to properly comply with all policies
concerning inside information. In order to ensure sufficient attention for all
reports received, the Group has established a notification mechanism to
handle and discuss internal reports on financial, operational, internal
controls and fraud, etc. Major internal control deficiencies or reports will
be reported to the Audit Committee.
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Company Secretary

Mr. So Wai Yin has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. The company secretary confirmed that he undertook no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training and relevant updates
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on the
going concern basis. The Directors are also responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (the
“Shares”). All Shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the
dividend declared. The rights of the Shareholders are set out in
Company’s articles of association.
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Dividend Policy

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the Company has
adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). Subject to the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, the Company may from time to time declare
dividends in any currency to be paid to the members of the Company but
no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by
the Board. The Board may also from time to time pay to the members of
the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Company. Declaration of dividends is subject
to the discretion of the Board, taking into consideration of, among others,
(i) the Group’s financial performance; (i) the Group’s capital requirements
and debt level; (jii) the Group’s liquidity position; (iv) retained earnings and
distributable reserves of the Group; (v) the Group’s business operations,
business strategies and future development needs; (vi) any contractual,
statutory and regulatory restrictions; and (vii) the general economic
conditions and other factors that may have an impact on the performance
and position of the Group. The Board will review the dividend policy from
time to time and may exercise at its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the dividend policy at any time as it deems
fit and necessary.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the requisition of
one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Directors or the secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the articles of association of the Company or
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Suite 2701, One Exchange Square, Central, Hong Kong (For
the attention of the Company Secretary)

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group’s performance to the Shareholders through the publication of
interim results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to
dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports to the Shareholders,
additional information is also available to the Shareholders on the website
of the Company.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for the
Shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the Board.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s annual general
meetings for which the Company gives at least 21 days’ notice. The
chairman of the Board and Directors and external auditors are available
to answer questions on the Company’s businesses at such meetings.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at the Company’s annual general
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors. In addition, the procedures of voting by poll are
included in the annual general meeting circular to be despatched to the
Shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Executive Director

Mr. ZHAO John Huan, aged 57, an executive Director and the chairman
of the Company. Mr. Zhao has joined the Group as an executive Director,
chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company since
9 August 2016. On 26 August 2019, Mr. Zhao ceased to be the chief
executive officer of the Company and has remained as an executive
Director and chairman of the Company since then. Mr. Zhao is currently
the chairman and chief executive officer of Hony Capital. Mr. Zhao also
serves as a non-executive director of Legend Holdings Corporation (HKSE:
3396) , non-executive director of Lenovo Group Limited (HKSE: 992),
non-executive director of China Glass Holdings Limited (HKSE: 3300),
chairman and non-executive director of Hospital Corporation of China
Limited (HKSE: 3869), chairman and executive director of Goldstream
Investment Limited (HKSE: 1328), non-executive director of ENN
Ecological Holdings Co., Ltd (SSE: 600803), non-executive director of
Shanghai Jin Jiang International Hotels Development Co., Ltd (SSE:
600754), and non-executive director of Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science
and Technology Co.,Ltd (HKSE: 1157; SZSE: 000157). Mr. Zhao was
also a executive director and the executive vice president of Legend
Holdings Corporation (HKSE: 3396) from January 2013 to December
2019; a director of Shanghai Environment Group Co, Ltd (SSE: 601200)
from February 2017 to June 2018; a deputy chairman of Shanghal
Chengtou Holding Co.,Ltd (SSE: 600649) from June 2014 to June 2017
Mr. Zhao holds a master of business administration degree from the
Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University, and dual
Master’s degrees in Electronic Engineering and Physics from Northern
[llinois University.

HITES

HMLSBRXE 57 ARAWRTESERE
& B EN2016F8 AOH MAREE L
EARTES EE9ERLARATH
ME - N2019F8H26H » Ak ETBIEME
RARMTHAH HELESELTNTE
EXRARAEF - HELEBRTLBRES
BREE o B E TR D
BRAR (BB RZFAI :3396) FEHMITE
T BEEBARAR (LB AR :
92) IEMTTEE - PEBEHIEWRBR A A
(BBBAPTRYE - 3300) EHMITESE - A
CEBREEAR AR (B BB SR :
BN EFTFTEIRRIIFRITEST 2 BIRE
BRAB(BEBHIAAR 1328) EFE
FRERATES FRERITEBRBRHER
NA(EBEBEHRZ SR MK 600803)
FHITEEF LEBRIBRBAEERER
MERAR(LEEBELFZZIBRMG R
B00754) IERMTTEE RFHERBRHABERA
R (BABB AT 1157 RINBER S
FTAS% - 000157) JEMITE S o AN
20139 1 A Z2019F 12 A E (L Bt 18 15 I
BROBRARRKITESE  EHERE(ER
B 22 AT £ 3396) ¢ 201742 A 2201846
REALEERBSERMDERAR(LEHE
5% 5 AT A8 : 601200) E F : 201446 A
E2017F6 AT EBBEZERENDERA
B EBBHR PN 600649) Bl E =
ReoMuAEBEHTIL KB EKEER
ITHEEEBELTEM UWEERILFREF
INKEEFTRERYIEEEE 24 -

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR

43



44

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEREREEEH (B

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 44, an executive Director of the Company,
has joined the Group since 9 August 2016. Mr. Wang is currently the
managing director of Hony Capital, and joined Hony Capital in 2003 and
has been consistently focusing on investment in the consumer and retail
sector during the past 16 years, with a particular emphasis on subsectors
of retail, fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG), catering and fast food
franchise. Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Wang served in Lenovo
Group Limited. Mr. Wang holds a master of business administration
degree from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management
in collaboration with Massachusetts Institute of Technology, and a
Bachelor of Engineering degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong University,
Youth Talented Program.

Mr. JING Shen, aged 40, an executive Director and chief financial officer
of the Company, joined the Group in November 2016. Mr. Jing has over
10 years of experience in the consumer and retail business. He is
responsible for managing the company’s finances, including financial
planning, management of financial risks, record-keeping, and reporting.
Mr. Jing has also served as an executive director of Beiing HHG
Restaurant Management Co., Ltd* ({t RFIA REREE AR A7) (‘HHG”)
since 7 November 2017, executive director of Beijing New Spicy Way
Catering Management Ltd.* Qb R¥TEBERE R AR A T) (“New Spicy
Way”) since 30 October 2018, executive director of Tianjin Hanfangweiye
Food Limited* (K)2& 75 {Z % R mA R A 7)) since 30 June 2017, and the
general manager of Hongfu Restaurant Management (Shenzhen) Co.,
Lid* (ZREREER(FY)ARAF) since 10 April 2017, each being a
subsidiary of the Group. From April 2014 to October 2016, Mr. Jing held
the position of chief executive officer at Beijing Niologie Commercial and
Trading Co., Ltd. In 2008, Mr. Jing joined Hony Capital and was
eventually promoted to vice president. Mr. Jing obtained a Master’s
degree in business administration from China Europe International
Business School in February 2008 and a bachelor’s degree from Beijing
Foreign Studies University in July 2002.
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Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. LEUNG Kwai Kei, aged 58, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 4 January 2017. Mr. Leung has over 30
years of work experience in the food and beverage industry and retail
industry in Hong Kong and China. Mr. Leung worked in McDonald’s
Restaurants (HK) Limited and McDonald’s China Company Limited from
1988 and used to play managerial roles in various departments for more
than 20 years. Mr. Leung also held executive positions in other
multinationals including Walmart China Company Limited as the Senior
Vice President of business development and as country manager for
Regus Property (Shanghai) Company Limited. Mr. Leung currently works
in Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou) Company Limited as general manager for
their China headquarters and Japanese restaurant business. Mr. Leung
holds a master of management degree from Macquarie University and a
bachelor of economics degree from the University of Sydney.

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 42, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 18 May 2011.
Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Heng holds a master of science degree of the Imperial College of
Science, Technology and Medicine, the University of London. Mr. Heng is
a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Heng serves as an independent non-executive director in CIMC-TianDa
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 0445), Matrix Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1005), SCUD Group Limited (Stock Code: 1399) and Lee &
Man Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code: 0746). Mr. Heng also
serves as the company secretary and authorized representative of China
Life Insurance Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628).

Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence, aged 57, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 18 May 2011. Mr. Tsang was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1993 and is currently the sole
proprietor of Tsang & Co., H.M. Mr. Tsang obtained a bachelor’s degree
in science from the University College London, the University of London.
Mr. Tsang also holds a bachelor’s degree in law from the University of
Westminster, United Kingdom.
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Senior Management

Mr. XIAN Shunxiang, aged 54, chief operating officer of the Company,
joined the Group in August 2016. Mr. Xian was an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 9 August 2016, and resigned as
a director and reappointed as the chief operating officer of the Company
since 4 January 2017. Mr. Xian was the vice president of Cosmo Lady
(China) Holdings Company Limited (HKSE: 2298) and responsible for
their retail operations. From May 2008 to October 2011, Mr. Xian held
the position of chief operating officer at Real Kung Fu Catering
Management Co., Ltd.. In 1990, Mr. Xian joined McDonald’s (Shenzhen)
Limited as one of the trainee managers and was eventually promoted to
operations director. Mr. Xian graduated from China Europe International
Business School, Shanghai, upon finishing the China Europe Leadership
Development of Senior Level Programme in January 2010. He obtained a
college degree in Chinese from Shenzhen Institute of Education,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province in July 1988.

Mr. So Wai Yin, aged 45, company secretary of the Company, has over
18 year experience in financial reporting, management accounting,
auditing, tax planning and regulatory compliance, treasury, corporate
finance and company secretarial practice of listed companies. Mr. So has
been appointed as the company secretary of the Company since 9
August 2016. Prior to joining Hony Capital in September 2008, Mr. So
worked as the qualified accountant and company secretary at Golden
Resorts Group Limited (now known as Kingston Securities Limited,
HKSE: 1031) where he was overseeing overall financial control and
reporting functions, treasury, corporate finance, and regulatory
compliance matters. Before joining Kingston, Mr. So worked in Deloitte
where he engaged in audit assignments for various public/private
companies and leading several initial public offer (IPO) projects. Mr. So is
a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant and a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountant.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEREREEE™N ()

Mr. Zhao Shen, aged 70, chairman of HHG, joined the Group in 25
October 2016. In 1968, Zhao Shen had been to the Great Northern
Wilderness, stationed troops and reclaimed and safeguarded the border
regions for more than ten years; in 1982 entered the Beijing Second Steel
Rolling Mil. In February 1988, Zhao Shen took up the post of elevator
factory director in Shougang Group. On 1 July 1996, Zhao Shen took up
the post of general manager of Beijing Yoshinoya Fast Food Co., Ltd. In
2003, Zhao Shen founded Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co.,
Ltd., determined to inherit traditional Chinese food culture, and explore
the model of double-kitchen, to achieve the standardization of “Chinese
People Fast Food”. He has successively won the titles of “Shougang
Labor Model”, “Top Ten Factory Director of Beijing”, “Labor Medal of
National May 17, “Beijing Excellent Socialism Constructor of Chinese
Characteristics”, “Beijing Outstanding Communist”, “Chinese Catering
Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur”, “Chinese Restaurant Industry Annual
Top Ten Figures”, “Outstanding Entrepreneur in Chinese Catering
Industry for the 40th Anniversary of the Reform and Opening Up” and
other honors. Nowadays, Zhao Shen is the vice president of China
Cuisine Association, the Chairman of the Professional Committee of
Chinese Cuisine Fast Food, and the Chairman of Beijing HHG Restaurant
Management Co., Ltd..

Mr. Zhao Jingjing, aged 38, Chief Manager of HHG, joined the Group in
25 October 2016. Zhao Jingjing joined HHG in 2007, and started at the
bottom. He has been working in marketing, operation, R&D department
successively, and accumulated Plentiful experience of marketing,
operation management, product design and development,
informationization construction, establishing new model etc. In October
2015, Zhao Jingjing was appointed chief manager of HHG. He has been
rated as “Excellent Friends of Workers”, “The Best Emerging Enterpriser
of Chinese Food Industry”, “Top Ten Catering Entrepreneur of Beijing”
and “Outstanding Party Member in Community Field of Beijing”. He is
also a member of the 14th session of Central Peoples’ Political
Consultative Conference of Xicheng District, Beijing.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEREREEEH (B

Mr. Li Jian, aged 45, is the co-founder and the vice chairman of the
board of New Spicy Way, and joined the Group since 30 November
2018. Mr. Li is primarily responsible for the strategic developments and
monitoring budgets of New Spicy Way, and is involved in major decisions
of New Spicy Way, including the appointment of executives of New Spicy
Way. Mr. Li has been appointed as the chairman of New Spicy Way,
being responsible for overall development of New Spicy Way since its
establishment, and was involved in the business operation of the New
Spicy Way until 2015. Mr. Li has over 16 years in the food and beverage
industry as well as catering industry and restaurant operation business.
Prior to establishing New Spicy Way, Mr. Li established his own
restaurant business under the name Beijing Yuanpin Catering Co., Ltd in
2000 to provide catering services. Mr. Li has successively won the titles
of, among others, “Outstanding Figure of Chinese Catering Industry for
30 years” in May 2017 awarded by China Cuisine Association, “Outstanding
Entrepreneur of Chinese Catering Industry” in November 2016 awarded
by China Hospitality Association and “The Most Influential Entrepreneur
of Chinese Hotpot Industry” in 2015 awarded by China Cuisine
Association. Mr. Li has been the president of China Crayfish Association
since April 2018. Mr. Li completed a secretarial program at Linyi Teacher
Training College (currently known as Linyi University) in July 1995.

Mr. Zhou Penghui, aged 44, is the chief Executive officer of New Spicy
Way, and joined the Group since 30 November 2018. Mr. Zhou is
responsible for overseeing the overall management and the day-to-day
operation of New Spicy Way. Prior to being appointed as chief executive
officer of New Spicy Way in January 2017, Mr. Zhou joined New Spicy
Way in December 2011 as an optimization specialist, mainly responsible
for formulating internal system and providing training to the employees of
New Spicy Way. Mr. Zhou was then promoted as an operation manager
in October 2012 managing the operations of restaurants of New Spicy
Way, and in March 2014, he was promoted as the northern China market
manager, and in June 2014, Mr. Zhou managed the overall operation of
the restaurants of New Spicy Way in China. Mr. Zhou has over 6 years of
experience in restaurant operations, supply chain management and food
quality control. Mr. Zhou graduated with a diploma in physical and
chemical testing and separation technology from North China University
of Technology in July 1996.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHE

The Directors hereby present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
78-80 of this annual report.

The Board has determined not to declare final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
Management Contract

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.
Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, the Company has

not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHE (E)

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to shareholders represented the accumulated deficit of
RMB95,280,000 (2018: accumulated deficit of RMB8,283,000).

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 232 of this annual report.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Mr. Jing Shen (appointed on 30 April 2019)

Mr. Wang Yuanzheng (resigned on 30 April 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors is
the period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s articles of
Association.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHE (E)

And Chief Executives

At 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

\

-

) 87y -)
#
1T
5
i

15 191 8 352 15 28

RN
dl

N

BAEZHER

2019F 12 A31H ARFIZEE B R
BAEBRARGXEBE ZE(EERE
BEBIESTTEES RBERA([FH KB
&G ]) SEXVER) 2 B tn ~ AB R RR 1 ok & 4
FH BERBERARRBREESARPE
GEZELMzELR SR
BIEZEETAESTNE AR REBH S

RBMBRAR ([BRM]) 2 #ESMT

Number of
Shares
(including Approximate
Number of issued Shares percentage of
Name of Director/ Number of underlying and underlying interest in the
chief executive Capacity issued Shares Shares Shares) Company
(Note 1) (Note 2)
13 & B
(BEC#T R N
EE BROTHAER ERTRHG HER G BROREE #IHOELD
i3] 287 #A 2 A B 13) BOtk
(M$3E1) (Mf3E2)
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 () 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
HLBEE R¥EEEER (H3E3)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei Beneficial owner 472,000 (L) — 472,000 (L) 0.03%
REESLE EREEA
Mr. Wang Xiaolong Beneficial owner — 48,413,260 (L) 43,413,260 () 2.75%
(Note 4)
TERE EREEA (P &E4)
Mr. Jing Shen Beneficial owner — 15,786,640 (L) 15,786,640 (L) 1.00%
(Note 5)
RELE EREEA G
BREERERAR —ZE-NFFR 51
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Notes:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHE (E)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Based on 1,578,664,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2019.

Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps Limited,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P., an
exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as
sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund
VIl GP (Cayman) Limited. Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned
by Hony Group Management Limited, which is in tumn owned as to 80% by Hony
Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group
Limited. Mr. Zhao John Huan owns 49% of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. As at
31 December 2019, Sonic Tycoon Limited held 1,183,998,000 shares in the Company
and was beneficially interested in convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$610,676,840 which is convertible into 517,522,440 Shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.18 per Share.

These underlying shares represent the 27,626,620 awarded shares and the shares
underlying the 15,786,640 share options that the Board resolved to grant to Mr. Wang
Xiaolong pursuant to the share award scheme adopted by the Board on 11 November
2019 and the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 18 May 2011.

These underlying shares represent the 7,893,320 awarded shares and the shares
underlying the 7,893,320 share options that the Board resolved to grant to Mr. Jing
Shen pursuant to the share award scheme by the Board adopted on 11 November
2019 and the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 18 May 2011.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or

Debentures

Save

as disclosed below and note 33 to the consolidated financial

statements in this annual report, during the year ended 31 December
2019, neither the Company, its holding company nor any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body

corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERE(E

(a) Employee Share Option Scheme (@) EEBRESE

On 18 May 2011, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Employee Share Option Scheme”) in which the
Company’s directors and employees are entitled to participate.
Details of the Employee Share Option Scheme are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
Certain share options were granted under the Employee Share
Option Scheme since its inception during the year ended 31
December 2019.

On 11 November 2019, share options carrying the rights to
subscribe for up to a total of 31,573,280 new Shares (the “Options”)
were offered to be granted to three grantees (collectively, the
“Grantees”, and each a “Grantee”) under the Employee Share
Option Scheme.

Details of the Options granted under the Employee Share Option
Scheme are set out below:

R2011F5818H A A A B R4 —
HERESES((EEBRESSD -
KAREEREEBHLHEZE -
EHEEBRETINFBENESF
MER A I mER M FE33 - RE =2019
F1I2A31IBIEFE BEMBLAK -
RIEE B W& %D BR
T o

R2019F 11 A11H - RIEEB B E
FH& - [ B A R EE & % $£31,573,280 %
MR RER 2 IR (TR IRE] ER
ERTZEXBABBEARIZZEA]
EEA—RIZEAD-

RIBEEEBRETS XL 2 BRERF
BEImT

Changes during the year ended 31 December 2019

BZ2019F12A31BLEEZE2D

Outstanding Outstanding

Options as at Options as at

1 January 31 December

Name of Grantee 2019 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2019

BZ2019F BZ2019%

1A1H 12A31H

W RATHE 2 B RITHEZ

TEAER BRE 2R EXiK:d B BEM B E

Directors EE

Mr. Wang Xiaolong TELE — 15,786,640 - - - 15,786,640

Mr. Jing Shen SERE — 7,893,320 — — — 7,893,320
Employees of the Group  Z£EES

Mr. Xian Shunxiang HIERE 5 & — 7,893,320 — — - 7,893,320

31,573,280 - - - 31,573,280
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERE(E

Exercise price of the Options offered is HK$1.08 per Share, being R BE AR BE1T(HE (& B1.088 T Bl IA

the highest of: TEEHZERE :

()  the closing price of HK$1.08 per Share as stated in the Stock () RELABHBEIMSERERM
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant; and BRI, 2 KT E1.088 T

&

(i) the average closing price of HK$1.08 per Share as stated in (i REERHBHAMLEEEARE
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five RETEHMRERMEAERED 2
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and FHWTE1.088 T &

(i) the nominal value of HK$0.10 per Share. (i) TRERHEEONOETT

The closing price of the securities immediately before the date on ZEBEREERD BRI zES W T

which the Options were granted was HK$1.08 per Share. EAESR1.088 T -

Subject to the rules of the Employee Share Option Scheme, WRIEEEEIRESE ZHA 22

acceptance of the offer and the fulfillment of relevant vesting EahEEEBEEZ R ERE

conditions, the Options shall be vested in the Grantees in BRBETNIEBESERATEAR
accordance with the following vesting schedule: B :

Vesting Period Percentage of Options to be vested

BEBAH BFrREBzERETSL

From 31 December 2019 to 30 December 2024 (both days inclusive)  20% of the total number of Options granted

B2019F 12 A1 B E2024F 12 A30H (REHEEMA) ERHERERAZZ20%
Fron1 31 December 2020 to 30 December 2025 (both days inclusive)  20% of the total number of Options granted
B202012 A31 H£2025%12 H30R (BiEFEEMA) B H B AR A B2 20%
From 31 December 2021 to 30 December 2026 (both days inclusive)  20% of the total number of Options granted
B2021F 12831 HZ2026F 12 A0H (RIEEREMA) EREBRESZZ20%
From 31 December 2022 to 30 December 2027 (both days inclusive)  20% of the total number of Options granted
B2022F 12 A1 B E2027F 12 0B (REEEMA) EREBRESSZ20%
Fron1 31 December 2023 to 30 December 2028 (both days inclusive)  20% of the total number of Options granted
B2023F 12 A31H£2028F 12 A30B (RiEEHEREMA) B H B R 4 B2 20%
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERE(E

(b) Share Award Scheme (b) BB E

On 11 November, 2019, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”, the “Scheme”), to attract new
and motivate existing talents and retaining both. The Board shall
not make any further award under the Share Award Scheme which
will result in the total number of Shares awarded by the Board
under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 4% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

Subject to the Share Award Scheme Rules, the Board may select
the employee to participate in the Scheme (the “Selected
Employee(s)”) and determine the number of shares to be awarded (the
“Awarded Shares”) to the respective Selected Employee(s), the
applicable vesting date and make an award out of the pool of
issued Shares held by a professional trustee (the “Trustee”) to be
appointed to administer the Scheme to any Selected Employee.
The Awarded Shares will only comprise existing Shares which are
purchased from the open market by the Trustee out of cash
contributed by the Company. The Awarded Shares do not
comprise any issuance and allotment of new Shares.

In respect of a Selected Employee’s employment or service with
the Company or any member of the Group is terminated for cause
or due to resignation at any time prior to or on the vesting date, all
the Awarded Shares that have not yet been vested of the relevant
Selected Employee shall become returned shares for the purposes
of the Share Award Scheme.

The Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the 5th anniversary
date of the adoption date of the Scheme (i.e. 11 November 2019);
and (i) such date of early termination as determined by the Board
provided that such termination shall not affect any subsisting rights
of any selected grantee under the Scheme.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 11 November 2019 and
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

AR BFR2019F 11 A 11 B 4R () 22
Bhat 81 ([RX 0 2B 5T &) )) BAIR S| 3 A
TR AEEEREBASTLHEE i
EEeRERMEEAERL ZHEE
B0 48 8RB 3B K D BN 2 BT
24% EEGNERIERGD EE 2
SRR -

REBERMEEERA EFGAE
E2mzstEnERE(EERE]
TEEHATAETRERERLAOK
BB (RBEN]) EANEER
H kERSZRIEZFEEEANE
EXAANMZEADABEEETR
P EETAETRER L RE- 2
B & EREXTEANERRFER
MREEARME EBENRBR
0 o BB AR {0 B 15 A a3 17 M A B
#iAn o

WX RE A EMEREEER &
TREA-—TEEAIAHEME LR
BREARRXAEEEAKE R A
2R RIBRECREREMA W KR
Bz RBR MDD EBAETS
PR AR E B fn o

ZEEERNATESEEELIL ()
ZEtEIR A B B (B2019F11 A11H)
ZESERERD RNEZTERTIRS
BitzEBEBH HRBRETABY
EBZHEBTEWNETCIEAZLEM
IR A o

BRBRNDEBAINFBEIRARR
P

-
HEA2019F 11 A11HBNA AKF
MERE B IRER M FEB3 ©

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR

95



56

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

EETHE (&

On 11 November 2019, the Board resolved to grant an aggregate
of 43,413,260 Awarded Shares (representing approximately 2.75%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2019) to three Selected Employees (the “Awardees”), pursuant to
the Share Award Scheme Rules set out below:

R2019F 11 A11H EE2F RIIE
BEROREBEFERIIMN=-BETRES
([E®R A) & 1% 143,413,260 3% 42
Bh A% 5 (B E WA 2Q B HR2019F 12 B
S1THE BT ABEE 2 42.75%) # 5
LU

Number of
Awardee Position held within the Group Awarded Shares
BEA RAEE B REROEE
Mr. Wang Xiaolong executive Director 27,626,620
FhERAE WITES
Mr. Jing Shen executive Director 7,893,320
REXE HITES
Mr. Xian Shunxiang director of certain subsidiaries of the Company 7,893,320
B HE 5 4 RARAGBETHMEARIZES
Total: e 43,413,260

The amount of contribution by Awardee for the Awarded Shares
shall be HK$0.54 per Awarded Share, being 50% of the average
closing price per Share of approximately HK$1.08 for 20 business
days immediately preceding the grant of the Awarded Shares.

Assuming all the vesting criteria and conditions have been fulfilled,
the Awarded Shares granted shall be vested in the respective
Awardees in five equal tranches on 31 December 2019, 2020,
2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively. As at the date of this report, no
Awarded Shares have been vested. As at the date of this report,
the remaining life of the Share Award Scheme is approximately 4
years and 7 months.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial

Shareholders

At 31 December 2019, as far as the Directors were aware, persons (other
than directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests and
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

FTERRzER R

B

R2019F12A31H  BEEMAM U T A
T(RARREZXRSRITHABBRIN AR
NEI 2RO HAEERDF  HEEERLHR

REBE 7 M B & ) 5 336 15

4

ARARAEF

EzERMzERRARMT

LS

RRRFROI0E T2 EBKR

Number of
Shares (including

Approximate

Number of issued Shares percentage of
Number of underlying and underlying interest in the
Name of Shareholder Capacity Issued Shares Shares Shares Company
RH&E
BT HERG (BESBRTRE HEAQAAESR
REREB 514 RHBE #HE REERS) WHBLIEIL
(Note 1) (Note2)
(BE1) (BfEE2)
Exponential Fortune Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000(L) 517,522,440(L) 1,701,520,440(L) 107.78%
Group Limited
Exponential Fortune ZEEEE R (M 5E3)
Group Limited
Hony Managing Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000(L) 517,522,440(L) 1,701,520,440(L) 107.78%
Partners Limited
Hony Managing REEBEE R (FT3E3)
Partners Limited
Hony Group Management  Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3) ~ 1,183,998,000(L) 517,522,440(L) 1,701,520,440(L) 107.78%
Limited
Hony Group Management 5 1% % [B] 4 25 (Fff 5 3)
Limited
Hong Capital Fund VIII Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000(L) 517,522,440(L) 1,701,520,440(L) 107.78%
GP (Cayman) Limited
Hong Capital Fund VIl ZEEEE R (M 5E3)
GP (Cayman) Limited
Hony Capital Fund VIl Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000(L) 517,522,440(L) 1,701,520,440(L) 107.78%
GP (Cayman), L.P.
Hony Capital Fund VIl ZEEEE R (M 5E3)
GP (Cayman), L.P.
BREREREBRAE ZFE-NFFR
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Number of

Shares (including  Approximate

Number of issued Shares percentage of
Number of underlying and underlying interest in the
Name of Shareholder Capacity Issued Shares Shares Shares Company
K& 8E
BT HERG (BEESBTREG HEAQXAESR
RERER 51 RH#BE A REBRS) HHAEIH
(Note 1) (Note2)
(BF&E1) GEY))
Hony Capital Fund VIII Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000(L) 517,522,440(L)  1,701,520,440(L) 107.78%
(Cayman), L.P.
Hony Capital Fund VIl REEEE R (FT3E3)
(Cayman), L.P.
Fortune Eight Alps Limited  Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000(L) 517,522,440(L)  1,701,520,440(L) 107.78%
Fortune Eight Alps Limited 5 13 34 [ # 25 ( 5£3)
Sonic Tycoon Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000(L) 517,522,440(L)  1,701,520,440(L) 107.78%

RFARAF

Notes:

XA E R (EE3)

. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

2. Based on 1,578,664,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2019.

3. Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps Limited,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P., an
exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as
sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund
VIl GP (Cayman) Limited, Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned
by Hony Group Management Limited, which is in turn owned as to 80% by Hony
Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group
Limited. Mr. Zhao John Huan owns 49% of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. As at
31 December 2019, Sonic Tycoon Limited held 1,183,998,000 shares in the Company
and was beneficially interested in convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$610,676,840 which is convertible into 517,522,440 Shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.18 per Share.
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Connected Transactions

The following transactions were conducted between the Company with
its connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing Rules) during the year
ended 31 December 2019 which constitute connected transactions that
are not exempt from annual reporting requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

On 8 November 2019, the Company and South Land Development
Company Limited entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to sell, and South Land
Development Company conditionally agreed to buy the entire issued
share capital of Lee & Man Development Company Limited, at the
consideration of HK$276,487,923 (the “Disposal”’). Ms. Wai Siu Kee,
being a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, held the entire
issued share capital of South Land Development Company Limited.
Accordingly, South Land Development Company Limited is a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level and the Disposal
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as
defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) in respect of the Disposal
are more than 25% but all of them are less than 75%, the Disposal also
constitutes a major transaction for the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

Completion of the Disposal took place on 27 December 2019. For
further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
8 November 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 28 February
2020.

BERXS

REE2019F12A831HIEFE AR A B
HEBEALZ(EER EWAR)ETT
R HERAERRET EMAUNE4AE
FERERTHEER S :

R2019F 11 A8H ARRIHEBMBEERE
RARGZEEWSE Bt XARQRAFK
HREENE MERERERBR AR FIKME
AEBEENERARAAMNZICE &
TRA KRB HB276,487,923F Tt ([HEE
B -FrBLE(RAARETHERAZ
ER)RFERREEARAANEIEET
AR A BRERER AR ARNR AR
WEAREEmMmBEEAL BRELEMR
BIEE14AE  HEFHEEBEXNARAIZBHER
S -HRABHALEETEN —BXZHER
Aol E(FEER EMBAE14.071K) BB
25% B2 HIENT75% HESZTHEHITBX AR
AR LETRNEABEE N ZETERS -
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—FSHE B2HA QR HEA2019F 11
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions were conducted between the Company with
its connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing Rules) during the year
ended 31 December 2019 which constitute continuing connected
transactions that are not exempt from annual reporting requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(1) Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement

Certain members of New Spicy Way, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (“New Spicy Way Group”) and XLJ Food
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd (“XLJ”), a company controlled by non-
controlling interests of New Spicy Way (a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into a food ingredients
purchase agreement dated 19 June 2018 (as amended by an
amendment agreement dated 2 October 2018) (collectively, the “Food
Ingredients Purchase Agreement”), to enable New Spicy Way
Group to continue to be supplied with food ingredients after
completion of the acquisition of equity interest in New Spicy Way
by the Group (the “New Spicy Way Completion”). Pursuant to the
Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement, New Spicy Way Group can
purchase food ingredients, including fresh fish, processed fish,
spices, sauce ingredients, garlic flavored and pickled vegetable
hotpot condiments from XLJ. For further details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 19 June 2018 and 27
September 2018, and circular dated 2 October 2018.

The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable for
the goods to be supplied under the Food Ingredients Purchase
Agreement are RMB60,000,000, RMB69,000,000 and
RMB79,350,000 for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2019
and 2020, respectively. The actual transaction amount under the
Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to approximately RMB49,959,000,
which did not exceed the relevant annual cap.
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(2) Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning
Supply Agreement

On 19 June 2018, the New Spicy Way Group and XLJ also entered
into a hotpot condiment and crawfish seasoning supply agreement
(the “Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning Supply
Agreement”), pursuant to which the New Spicy Way Group will
continue to supply spicy condiment, pickled flavoring ingredients
and crawfish seasoning to XLJ. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount receivable for the goods to be supplied under
the Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning Supply Agreement
are RMB40,000,000, RMB48,000,000 and RMB57,600,000 for the
years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively. For
further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 19 June 2018 and 27 September 2018, and the circular of
the Company dated 2 October 2018. The actual transaction
amount under the Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning
Supply Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately RMB255,000, which did not exceed
the relevant annual cap.

As at 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report, XLJ is
majority-controlled by, together with their affiliates, Mr. Li Jian and Mr. Xu
Bochun (the “Remaining Shareholders”), each of whom remains to be a
shareholder of New Spicy Way upon New Spicy Way Completion. The
Remaining Shareholders are therefore connected persons of the
Company at the subsidiary level and XLJ is an associate of the Remaining
Shareholders. Accordingly, the Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement
and the Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning Supply Agreement,
and the respective transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
upon New Spicy Way Completion.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions of the Company and confirmed that such continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
respective transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, there were no other
transactions which fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules..

Related Party Transactions and Connected
Transactions

Related party transactions entered into by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 are disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards adopted for preparing the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts of
Significance

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company
or any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Controlling Shareholders’ Interest in
Contracts of Significance

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no contract of
significance was entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Business Review and Performance

A review and outlook of the business of the Company, a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators during the year ended 31 December 2019 and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position, an indication of likely
future development in the Company’s business and events occurred after
the reporting period are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis respectively from pages 4 to 7 and
pages 8 to 24 of this annual report.

Details of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

A review of the Company’s environmental policies and performance, the
Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations, and an
account of the Company’s key relationship with its employees,
customers, and suppliers and others that have a significant impact on the
Company and on which the Company’s success depends on are
provided in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 233 to pages 264 and pages
25 to pages 42 respectively of this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers comprised approximately 1% of the Group’s total
sales.

During the year, the aggregate purchases during the year attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised approximately 35% of total
purchases and the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
were approximately 15% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five
largest suppliers of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.
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Convertible Bonds

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 18
September 2016, 10 October 2016, 13 November 2016, 22 September
2017 and 22 March 2019, and the circular of the Company dated 29
October 2016 in relation to the convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,500,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) issued
by the Company under a specific mandate (the “Specific Mandate”)
pursuant to the investment agreement dated 18 September 2016 entered
into between the Company and the Investor. As at 31 December 2019,
the proceeds from issuing the Convertible Bonds had been fully utilised in
accordance with the intended use.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company received a
conversion notice dated 15 March 2019 from the Investor in respect of
the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$139,323,520 at the conversion
price of HK$1.18 per Share (the “Conversion”). As a result of the
Conversion, the Company allotted and issued a total of 118,070,780
Shares (the “Conversion Shares”) on 22 March 2019 to the Investor
pursuant to the Specific Mandate, representing approximately 7.48% of
the number of issued Shares as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
the Conversion Shares. The Conversion Shares rank pari passu with all
the existing Shares at the date of allotment and issue, and among
themselves in all respects.

The issued share capital of the Company has been increased to
1,5678,664,000 Shares upon completion of the allotment and issue of the
Conversion Shares. The Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange has
approved the listing of, and granted the permission to deal in, the
Conversion Shares. After the completion of the Conversion, the Investor
holds an aggregate of 1,183,998,000 Shares, representing approximately
75.00% of the number of issued Share as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of Conversion Shares. After completion of the conversion of the
Convertible Bonds, the Company is still able to, and will ensure to,
comply with the public float requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(@) of the
Listing Rules.

Details of the Conversion are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 22 March 2019.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share award
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the
schemes are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

Competing Business

Save as disclosed below, during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this report, none of the Directors had any interest in any
business (apart from the Group’s business) which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group,
as defined in the Listing Rules.

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei, an independent non-executive Director, is currently
the General Manager of Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou) Company Limited
(“Mei-Xin”), responsible for their China headquarters and Japanese
restaurant business.

Although the business carried out by Mei-Xin is of a similar nature as that
carried out by the Group, Mr. Leung does not hold other positions in the
Company apart from being an independent non-executive Director, and
Mr. Leung also does not control the Board. The Board therefore is of the
view that the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from the business carried out by
Mei-Xin.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricrwaterhouseCoopers.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Zhao John Huan
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M % BED

_
pwec

To the Shareholders of Best Food Holding Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Best Food Holding Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 78 to 231, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

A Rl K 8 51 B3

BB R

HAHE : +852 2289 8888 » fHHE : +852 2289 9888
www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2289 9888
www.pwchk.com
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite
useful life
° Impairment assessment of investments in associates

° Disposal of equity interest in discontinued operations

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBEN RS (A

Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life

BAERAREREAFHNERRETGE

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLHERETHREWE21 -

The Group has a significant balance of goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life arising primarily from the
acquisition of Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd.
(the “HHG Group”) in 2016 and the acquisition of Beijing New
Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd. (the “New Spicy Way
Group”) in 2018. As at 31 December 2019, goodwill
amounted to RMB580,931,000 and trademarks with
indefinite useful life amounted to RMB499,346,000.
EEENRELARERCAFHNEREEREL
MABEREAFHNEREEZREN2016F KEIL
AMEREREBAERAR(MEAKE]) KHX20184F
WEILRHREEREBERAGA(HREREREH]D - R
2019412 A31 H » 72 /580,931,000t A R ¥ - M1 &
B ER (A F HH B 1R R 499,346,000 7T A R -

Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life are subject
to impairment assessment annually and when there is an
indication of impairment.
HEMAEEREAFHOARAETF REFERED
KRG HEITIRME T -

In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
judgements are required to estimate the future cash flows of
the cash generating units (“CGUs”) of the relevant group of
restaurants and to determine the assumptions, including the
revenue growth rates, gross margin and long term growth
rate used in the cash flow projections and the discount rate
applied to bring the future cash flows back to their present
values.

FEETRENGER FEEHERHEAGTEAERRE
SENREEAEUNAKRRERE TETRRK &
RReREB|AFEANBABRE EMX R KEAE
RE URRERKREREFREHRAEMEABOFT
B -

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:
REHZBERESER  RARTUTER

° Evaluating the management’s process in performing
impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful life, including the assessment
as to whether any indication of impairment exists
during the year ended 31 December 2019;

e HHEEEYRELRAFERCAFHNER
BB ERT R - BIERT M E2019F12 431 H
LTFEERAFERENR

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer engaged by the
Group to determine the recoverable amounts, based
on value-in-use method, of the CGUSs;

e I EXEEANBUMGEAEER- 8
REBUYE UEREREELAETRSELEN
BRI B & 58

° Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;
e FHEFTAMERERNEE M
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Based on the results of the impairment assessment
conducted by the Group, it is determined that there is no
impairment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful
life as at 31 December 2019. This conclusion is based on
recoverable amount, which is determined based on value in
use, exceeding the respective carrying amounts of the CGUs
including goodwill, trademarks with indefinite useful life and
operating assets as at 31 December 2019.

BE BEEEETHRENGEAR BENELAEE
PRAEFAFEMEIZNR2019F 12 A1 B L &R E - & &
wIDARIB R B e FRAE E - P U £ 5 T 1R2019F 12 A
STAZEABESE THEBENE AEERER
FHNEBEAREEEERNNBECELASEUSANERE
R
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Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used by management and the
independent valuer in the determination of value in
use of the CGUs, mainly in relation to:

A ERERBE L EMEETREeEEEN
EREEREANIZRRNAELE 2%
N

— the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial

data;
— BHAHEEMEMNE SEUABERELPB
HEETHER

— the long term growth rate, by comparing it with
the relevant economic forecasts; and

— REERE BAEEBBLHEEIETL
B Rk

— the discount rate, by comparing the rate used
by the Group to those of comparable
companies;

— WHRX - SEERANLXEAEL
BRARIM L EEITHER

Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amounts of the CGUs and the
relevant carrying amounts, including goodwill,
trademarks with indefinite useful life and operating
assets as at 31 December 2019; and

Bl Rt E R2019F12A31E R EEEMKD
AlpeBERBEERE EEEREAFHD
BRLREEEEAANEBAREENSFER
MR

Evaluating management’s sensitivity calculation over
the recoverable amounts of the CGUs, focusing on
those key assumptions to which the calculation was
most sensitive.

TEEEEHRSEASUMA KL S BN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Impairment assessment of investments in associates

BEQARARERMENG

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
FLHEETHEREWE20-

The Group has significant investments in associates, which
are accounted for under the equity method. As at 31
December 2019, investments in associates amounted to
RMB273,054,000.

ESEEEHBE RN KRESEEARN WRAEREX
H - R2019F12 431 B » B & 2 A 18 & /273,054,000
TTARE -

Investments in associates are subject to impairment
assessment when there is an indication of impairment.

e NRRERAEFEREDTREETRERSE -

In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
judgements are required to estimate the Group’s share of the
future cash flows of the associates and to determine the
assumptions, such as the revenue growth rates, gross
margin and long term growth rate used to prepare the cash
flow projections of the associates, and the discount rates
applied to bring the future cash flows back to their present
values.

EETRETER  FTEELERAG AL BE5E
EEBEARARREeRE  WEERE - flmARE
HEHERARREREFANCANBALEE  EFER
FRHEERE URAFEARKEERENREHBEMRE
e iR -

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessment to be consistent with the available evidence.
BERTORF  RMBEERRETEAEANEE
BERBIBEAMK-

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:

REHZAREAFTE HABRTATRERF:

° Evaluating the Group’s assessment as to whether
any indication of impairment exist during the year
ended 31 December 2019, including:

o M BEEREHZE2019F12A31HILEFERER
FEEBET RO - B4

— significant adverse changes in the market or
economic environment in which the associates
operates;

— BERARKEMENTSIEBERFTELEAXN
THEAE

— significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the associates below their costs;

— BERRAABEABBREHABEEENERK
7N

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer engaged by the
Group to determine the recoverable amounts, based
on value-in-use method, of the investments in
associates;

o MMt BESEEAMNBUGEMNER  EORE
Bt UWRERBEZIETHEARRENF KD
BHE

° Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;
o HMEFTAMERENEEM

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Based on the results of the impairment assessment
conducted by the Group, it is determined that an impairment
of RMB14,971,000 was made against the investment in an
associate as at 31 December 2019. For the investments in
other associates, it's determined that there is no impairment
as at 31 December 2019. This conclusion is based on
recoverable amounts, which are calculated based on value in
use, exceeding the respective carrying amounts as at 31
December 2019.

B EEEETHRETHELER  BEN2019F12
A31H 82 A TR ERE /14,971,000 AR o 1
2019F 12 AT AR A B & R B MR E W EIRE ° %
EmDIRBEIWE 2 EEE - TREES5EIIE2019412
AB1HZEREESL WEHEaMREE-
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° Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used by management in the
determination of value in use of investment in
associates, mainly in relation to:

s IAEREEAETEHe/RRECAEERERNY
FERENESEY - F2HR

— the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial

data;
—  TEASEEMEMNEX - SEHETRE L IHBEE
HEITLRE

— thelong term growth rate, by comparing it with
the relevant economic forecasts; and

—  REERE - GHEMERMAETRAETILE
M

— the discount rates, by comparing the rates
used by the Group to those of comparable
companies; and

— FEX . EEERANLERATERRA
ML REITHER - &

o Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amount of the investments in

associates.
e AHFEBEQARENTRE BN T LR
Moo

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessment to be consistent with the available evidence.
BERTHER  RMOEREBETHAEANEE
BRFBERK -
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE BEMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Disposal of equity interest in discontinued operations

HECERILREEBLHIRE

Refer to note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLMERAEVFEREWFEST

In December 2019, the Group has disposed its entire equity
interests in Lee & Man Development Company Limited.
Consequently, the Group has recognised (1) loss on disposal
of RMB39,994,000 before reclassification of foreign currency
translation reserve; and (2) loss of RMB7,637,000 arising
from the reclassification of foreign currency translation
reserve on discontinued operations upon disposal during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

R2019F 128 ESECEHEERNEXERARAA
2HKRE SEECRABNEHOBIINEREFEERN
B I & B 18 /39,994,000 A B ¥+ K (28 £20194612
ABBILEFE AREEREHNHSBRERIELEEBTD
SNE M E BT E £ 8 E 18 R7,637,0007T A R -

Management presented the operating results up to the date
of disposal and loss on disposal as discontinued operations
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2019.
ERERNEE2019F12A31A L FENGEAEZE K
KRABEELERHNKERELLEBFRZIARER
IE#EE T o

We focused on this area due to the materiality of the disposal
and the significance of the discontinued operations to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.
HRHEFENEARERIEREEBHEA M BRE
BRNE2M  MEAMBINZEL -

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following audit procedures:
REHZARETEE  BMATUTENEF

° Understanding and evaluating management’s
assessment for the determination and presentation
of discontinued operations;

s THIKNAEEEBHERNZIDKIREEBEN
B

° Examining the sale and purchase agreement;
s HEEEWZ

° Testing the satisfaction of disposal consideration and
other terms of the sale and purchase agreement to
assess the appropriateness of the date of disposal;

e AHEEMZENEEREREMGROBITIERA
FHE S B EAREE 1

° Testing the mathematical accuracy of the calculation
of the loss on disposal of discontinued operations;

and
J B E N E R RIEEEXEHBENETER
54

° Assessing the appropriateness and completeness of
disclosures of the loss on disposal of discontinued
operations.

s HARBEHEEKRUIREXRBERENESIERTE
Mo

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
presentation and disclosure of the disposal of equity
interest in discontinued operations to be consistent with
the available evidence.

REBEATORF HMAERARLEESREREEBR
N2 RREBEBEK -

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hon Chong Heng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AeEZHWER

NOTE
M 3

Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue LN 5
Cost of sales 858 KA 8
Gross profit |
Distribution and selling expenses DIEEEERX 8
General and administrative expenses —MERITHEA 8
Net impairment losses on financial assets PRMEEREEEFE 3.1(b)
Other income E A YA 6
Other gains/(losses), net Hav s,/ (B18) F58 7
Operating profit FE=i |
Finance income B 75 U A 9
Finance expenses B 75 & A 9
Interest on convertible bonds AR ES T B
Finance expenses — net B8 A F 9
Share of loss of associates FEAR B A R ES B 20
Impairment losses on investment in an associate Bt & 2 &)1 & 8 R (E 518 20
Loss before taxation bR B AT S 18
Income tax expense Frig®i s 10
Loss for the year from continuing FRABERLELEKER

operations
Discontinued operations: ERIEREET:
Profit for the year F N A 37
Loss on disposal of equity interest in B ENNEBREREN T

discontinued operations before reclassification €& & 4% | 4% 4 2 15 IR #E S

of foreign currency translation reserve, net of 18 (OB FT 15 %)

income tax 37
Reclassification of foreign currency translation A HEBEFH DA DK LK

reserve on discontinued operations upon B 7 INEE MR E R

disposal 37

(Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued FRE & IF E& %7

operations

(B 18), 5 F

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

RMB’000
TAR®

998,250
(407,912)

590,338
(491,179)
(109,581)

(2,849)
19,622
968

7,319
258
(24,754)
(35,920
(60,416)
(11,189)
(14,971)
(79,257)
(7,013)
(86,270)

12,514

(39,994)

(7,637)

(35,117)

2018
Restated
Epul
RMB’000
FAR®

470,181
(199,933)

270,248
(226,811)
(46,708)
277)
10,827
(3,737)

3,542

189
(2,686)
(4,125)

(6,622)
(4,394)

(7,474)
(2,348)

(9,822)

915

915




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

RezERER (&)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018
Restated
Fil
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
M 3 FAR% FAR®E
Loss for the year FABE (121,387) (8,907)
Loss for the year attributable to: FRAERERER:
Equity holders of the Company RATERTFEA (121,634) (11,144)
Non-controlling interest JEFE AT RE S 247 2,237
(121,387) (8,907)
Other comprehensive income Htz2mkz
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T2 EF HIEEEBE 2
JERE R
Remeasurement of defined benefit assets of ENHEERERKEER
discontinued operations ZHREM=BEE 228
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to  H &A@ EHHEEER
profit or loss: ZIEH
Exchange differences arising on translation of BREBINEBMEEZ
foreign operations PE H =% (7,790) 19,456
Exchange differences arising on translation of BMECKIEREEERT
discontinued operations EEZENZ5 11,295 (5,185)
Reclassification of foreign currency translation R HEEEH D ED K IE
reserve on discontinued operations upon G 7 N E
disposal &t 1 37 7,637 —
Other comprehensive income for the year FRE M2 W R 11,142 14,499
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year 4F A2 E (E18) W25 44 %8 (110,245) 5,592
Total comprehensive (loss)/income forthe £ R 2@ (&i8) WHEBE
year attributable to: EER:
— Equity holders of the Company —AREEEFEA (110,492) 3,355
— Non-controlling interests — JEIERE S 247 2,237
(110,245) 5,592
Total comprehensive (loss)/income forthe FEEBRAQATEZFE A
year attributable to equity holders of the ~F A2 (F18), W
Company wem
— Continuing operations —RBELEER (94,307) 7,397
— Discontinued operations —ERIEEEER (16,185) (4,042)
(110,492) 3,355

BEERERAE —ZE-NEFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
mEEERaER(E

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018
Restated
Esgi
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 FAR% FARY
Loss per share for loss from continuing FERARATERZEEAZ
operations attributable to equity holders BREKEERFRAZER
of the Company: B
Loss per share (RMB cents) — basic BREER(DAREK) - EXR 12 (0.83)
Loss per share (RMB cents) — diluted BEB(DAREK) —HE 12 (0.83)
Loss per share for loss attributable to FEREATERZEEBAZ
equity holders of the company: EERE2SRERE:
Loss per share (RMB cents) — basic REE(DARE) —ER 12 (0.76)
Loss per share (RMB cents) — diluted KREEB(DARK —HE 12 (0.76)

80 Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019

NOTE RMB’000
B 7 TARY
Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WER&E 15 151,830
Prepaid lease payments BN ERIEA 17 =
Right-of-use-assets TREEE 16 372,944
Investment properties "EME 18 =
Investments in associates & ARIIRE 20 273,054
Goodwill EES 21 580,931
Intangible assets BVAE 21 507,468
Deferred tax assets ELEIEE E 29 25,205
Defined benefit assets AEMREE =
Trade and other receivables JEUE 5 R HMKIE 22 43,116
Financial assets at fair value through EZAnEBEAFTEBEZEHE
other comprehensive income AHMEERKZE 2R
BE 23 5,000
Other non-current assets HA3EmBEE 27 2,075
1,961,623
Current assets REEE
Inventories VERSS 19 35,935
Prepaid lease payments FEN A ERIA 17 =
Trade and other receivables B E 5 & H 38 22 29,338
Other current assets HiRBEE 27 59,392
Tax recoverable Ay Y Bl 18 =
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBEFEREEZE
profit or loss FFAERCEREE 26 62,792
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEY 25 131,285
318,742
Total Assets EERE 2,280,365
BEERERAT

2018
RMB’000
TAR®

248,048
40,663
35,426

292,975

583,931

508,106
31,388

5,183
43,379

2,000
4,745

1,795,844

94,202
531
120,323
82,067
996

42,194
302,277

642,590

2,438,434

—E-NEEH
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

REEEEER (A

NOTE
B 7
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables BN E 5 R H M8 28
Contract liabilities AHBEE 31
Lease liabilities HEAE 16
Borrowings EEA 30
Tax payable FES R IR
Convertible bonds AMKRES 24
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Payable in relation to put right of FERT B IEVE R i m RO M B
non-controlling interests BB 38
Convertible bonds AR EH 24
Lease liabilities HEBE 16
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRBREE 29
Borrowings &K 30
Deferred government grants i FE IR 4 B 32
Total liabilities BEAR

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2019

RMB’000

FTARY

129,060
61,746
116,709
5,000
7,495
34,183

354,193

99,024
448,380
263,580
123,579

1,200
5,443

941,206

1,295,399

2018
RMB’000
TAR®

366,412
79,261
5,000
5,206
19,800

475,679

103,496
517,592

124,868
229,742
3,761

979,459

1,455,138



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
HnEEERERE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
M 3E FARM FARE
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital A% 7 35 133,023 122,949
Reserves == 766,427 776,128
Equity attributable to equity holders of FREBRARRETREEAZ
the Company pr ey 899,450 899,077
Non-controlling interests IR R S 85,516 84,219
Total equity EREAsE 984,966 983,296
Total liabilities and equity EEREREE 2,280,365 2,438,434

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 231 were approved #H W E78E231 E NG A Bz EES 2
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2020 7202043 B30 B #t /& & 324 T 2% - 37 & LA

and are signed on its behalf by: TATREREZ:
Zhao John Huan Wang Xiaolong
HSHE EEE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
FE EFE

BEERERAE —ZE-NEFER 83
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREBEDR

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
GEREDAERRFEA

Non- Asset Non-
Share Share distributable revaluation  Translation Special  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamnings Sub-Total  interests Total
Tk BEEMR FER
RA RiDEE f#1E #E ERHE BHHESGE REEN et En CHl
NOTES RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
HaE FTARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TAR® TARE TARK
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 818 122,949 582,056 929 9,020 (14,066) (43,121) 231,340 889,107 36,755 925,862
(Loss)/profit for the year 1 (& 18),/ % - - - - - = (11,144 (11,144 2,237 (8,907)
Other comprehensive FREMZEKRE:
income for the year:
Remeasurement of ENEE AT
defined benefit assets i - - - 228 - - - 228 - 228
Currency translation EHBEEE
differences—associates —BE AT 20 - - - - 10,227 - - 10,227 — 10,227
Currency translation EHAQEES
differences—others —Hip - - - - 4,044 - - 4,044 - 4,044
Total comprehensive FREEKELE
income for the year - — - 228 14,271 — (11,144) 3,355 2,237 5,592
Issuance of convertible BEOTRRES
bonds 24 - — — — — 128,088 - 128,088 — 128,088
Dividends provided foror B & & BRI &
paid - - — - - - (18,623)  (18,623) - (18,623)
Payable in relation to put ~ JE & 3E 1 Ak 25 22
right of non-controlling HEEEE
interests 38 - - - - —  (102,850) —  (102,850) — (102,850)
Non-controlling interest U8 B B 22 A1 JE 42 AR
arising from acquisition i
of subsidiaries — — — — — — — — 45,227 45,227
At 31 December 2018 R2018%E12831H 122,949 582,056 929 9,248 205 (17,883) 201,673 899,077 84,219 983,296

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REEREH X (&)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
REREQRERBEA

Share Share distributable

capital premium

BE ROEE
\(O)]=s3 RMB’000 RMB’000

Asset
revaluation
reserve

BEE

1]

RMB’000

Translation
reserve

ERRE
RMB'000

Special Retained
reserve earnings Sub-Total interests Total

Non-
controlling

FER

BolEE RERN P i Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

LGN TAR%® TARY TAR® TAR% TAR%® TAR%® TAR® TAR%® TAR%

At 1 January 2019 R2019%1 818 122,949 582,056 9,248 (17,883) 201,573 899,077 84,219 983,296
(Loss)/profit for the year &/ (18) /% F (121,634)  (121,634) (121,387)
Other comprehensive ~ F R E 2 E U3

income for the year:
Currency translation EHREES

differences—associates —BENH 20
Currency translation EBBREES

differences— —BRIEEE

discontinued operations ES 37 18,932 18,932
Currency translation BEHAQEES

differences—others —HEit (14,029) (14,029)
Total comprehensive FREE(HR)/

(loss)/income W BE

for the year 11,142 (121,634) (110,492
Non-controlling interests ~ # A I I B2 B E £

arising on newly ZHERER

established subsidiaries
Change in fair value of

BT JER R B R

1,050

payable in relation to EEBEBAR

put right of non- BEZH

controlling interests 38 5,072
Shares converted from ARkEFERY

convertible bonds B’1 24 10,074 111,332 (23,794)
Value of services provided & IR i 51 & J2 B (7 82

under share option Bt BB T AR

scheme and share HR%EZEE

award scheme 33 8,181 8,181 8,181
At 31 December 2019 H20195 128318 133,023 693,388 11,347 (28,424) 79,939 899,450 85,516 984,966

BEERERAE —ZE-NEFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GRERTRER

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Income taxes refund

Income taxes paid

RETHFBRERE
rEEBME/ TR RE
EENRUNS)

R @)

TS TR K

B FEH

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

REFTBHRB/(FARSE
BE

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash and
cash equivalent acquired

Payment of consideration payable for acquisition
of subsidiaries

Cash outflows from disposal of subsidiaries, net
of cash disposed

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from redemption of financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of intangible assets

Government grants received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Investment in financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Loans granted to third parties

Loans granted to related parties

Repayment of loans by third parties

Repayment of loans by related parties

Interest received on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Interest received on loans to related parties

REZHFBRERE

WM B AR (RMER
T REEFEY)

S UL BB BT B X A R A R (B

HEMERRRESIR G
(B HERS)
BEWE BE&E
BEEAABEAERHEE
ARG EREE
BREAREBEAEEESE
Bt ABREZEREERMN
BRAE

BEBVEE
2R AT B

HEME  BFERERERF
IR
BRAnEFFEREZEHFTA
HizmWRa s emMEE
"AE

ME=TTER

) B8 Bt 75 B 5K
FE=HEEER
BaEE Ty B B
BMAREEFEREEEG
ABZZEREEMK
UES)

17) [68 Bt 73 B 5 P IO B,

Net cash used in investing activities

REEFDFARE TR

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE
192,283 (62,929)
(332) (238)

259 189
1,970 —
(1,065) (6,998)
193,115 (69,976)
(678,179

(139,500) —
(7,240) —
(59,766) (34,466)
(138,707) (93,800)
90,101 78,606
(1,422) (1,585)
6,246 145
3,101 237
(3,000) —

= (4,990)

(600) (2,286)
1,111 35,000
12,000 50,264
1,205 883
941 65
(235,530) (650,106)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

HERTREXR(A)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE FTAR% FARM
Cash flows from financing activities MEITBHMEBEESRE
Capital injection from non-controlling interests ~ FE#E I #E 25 2 ST & 1,050 —
Dividends paid to shareholders TR 2R E (363) (18,278)
Repayment of borrowings BEEN (5,000) (33,680)
Proceeds from borrowings EE GRS 5,000 -
Principal elements of lease payments HEFRBEARSBY (127,660) -
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds %77 A] # i% (& % A 18 738 24 - 666,021
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEZE(FFA), FEES
financing activities FE (126,973) 614,063
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B2 RESZEYR LD T8 (169,388) (106,019
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REF ZIR S RIBEEEY 302,277 398,033
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash BWENRSZEEWZIER
equivalents (B18), M (1,604) 10,263
Cash and cash equivalents atend ofyear NEXRZRERBREEEY 131,285 302,277
BRERERAT —ZE—NEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

General information

Best Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
operation of chain restaurants and manufacture and sale of
handbags under various locations.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
company is Sonic Tycoon Limited, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and its ultimate holding company is
Exponential Fortune Group Limited (“Exponential Fortune”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of Exponential Fortune is Zhao John Huan,
who is also the Chairman of the Company. The addresses of the
registered office of the Company is Hutchins Drive P.O.Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-111 Cayman Islands.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK
dollars” or “HK$”), while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the following:

° Investment property — measured at fair value,

o Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
payable in relation to put right of non-controlling interests and
derivative financial instrument — measured at fair value, and

o Defined benefit pension plans asset — plan assets measured
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2 ERGFTHEHME

MUZEGEEVHEREMEANER
SAABREINWAT - HHAIN
EERR —BEARMERENSE

(2

21 REER

AEENGEMBERRCRETES
AEHAERMOABERNETEM
BHREEN(TEER KRS EL DR
o REWBRERVBRELKAED
B METHINERRI :

e KREME-—BRAAEBEE

© BARMEEIEAREBIAK
RSN SBEE  BAR
EEEAXREDHARRDS
B - 8 A0 JE 2 IR 3 RO
EMEBERTESMIA - &
DAEENE R

. BEFMERKSHEEE —
BAERD A MEHE-

MRBRTT AT B RS 2R B 55 R
REBRERETHRS A T2
KEREERBAKRE S BRMNB
RATEREHES D - P REEREEH
MM EE KBREGH
ZEGRAVBRRMEBERNE

B ORI AR IRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

In December 2019, the Group completed the disposal of 100%
equity interest in Lee & Man Development Company Limited (“Lee
& Man”, previously a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company) to
South Land Development Company Limited (“South Land”) (Note
37). The related revenue, expenses, and other operating results
before the completion of disposal and net disposal loss are
presented as a single amount in the statement of comprehensive
income as “loss for the year from discontinued operations”.
Comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2018 are also
reclassified for consistent presentation purpose.

2.1.1 Going concern

As of 31 December 2019, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB35,451,000. The liquidity of the Group is
primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows
from operations and sufficient financing to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Considering the Group’s
ability to generate net cash inflows from its future operating
activities and the loan agreements entered into with certain banks
up to the date of approval of the financial statements, the directors
of the Company believe that adequate funding is available to fulfil
the Group’s debt obligations and capital expenditure requirements
during the 12 months period from 31 December 2019. Therefore,
the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern
basis.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (Continued)
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments
for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement
Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

HK(FRIC) 23

Annual improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRS
project Standards 2015-2017 cycle

The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result of
adopting HKFRS 16. The Group elected to adopt the new rules
retrospectively but recognised the cumulative effect of initially
applying the new standard on 1 January 2019. This is disclosed in
Note 2.2. The other amendments listed above did not have any
material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

BEAXAETHRBME @

21 REER @)

211 BHELKE @)

(a) AEERAZHETREIEET
A

REBEDP2019F1 A1 BB FERAN

BRERTHER RERTA

EBTIERE HE

AEBI 1655

EEVISHRELE ABBHEZIEH
B 95 & 7K B
EEGHENE REZ[AREE
2857 (EE] A< RNAElZ R
BB ER FrEIEET - B
ERIeLiAC N JE1E

55 (BBRTIESR AAEHEES TE
LREZEE®) TH

— 235
FEMETER BB B R EER
2016F 2017 F
PR F [E

RRERNE BB REERE165%
AEECEEFESHEE AEHE
BRAPEMBEATRTE HEBRER
2019F 1 A1 A R IRMFER 2 25t
FE -BRFBRWE2EE - Lt
Hiiss HER AR HMERZ S5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The following are new standards and amendments to standards
that have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2019 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material "
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business "
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts ©

Amendment to HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
and HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
and Non-current ©®

(1) Effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2020.

2) Effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2021 (likely to be
extended to 1 January 2022).

(©)] Effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2022.

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the
Group’s financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16
Leases retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the
specific transition provisions in the standard. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019. The
new accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.27.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in
relation to leases which had previously been classified as 'operating
leases’ under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities
were measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1
January 2019 was 4.75% per annum.

(@) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the
following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics

° relying on previous assessments on whether leases are
onerous as an alternative to performing an impairment review
— there were no onerous contracts as at 1 January 2019

o accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term
of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as short-term
leases

° excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-
of-use asset at the date of initial application, and

o using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(@) Practical expedients applied (Continued)

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is,
or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for
contracts entered into before the transition date the Group relied
on its assessment made applying HKAS 17 and HK(FRIC) 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.

(b) Measurement of lease liabilities

2 EAEBTHEXEME @

22 SR BERRHEEZL @

@ FFERMAZERBERE
(%)

AEECEETHEEREABHEN
et —HANEAAXEBEHE -
R-$REBEBMBAGIZZAEH
AEBERERABEB S ERETH
rEEBEREMEREREZES)R
BFE4RIBEE-—RLHFREETREE A
ME1EH 271 -

b) HEEBGBZFE

RMB’000
FARY
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 7 2018F 12 31 B E 2 K& & H S & #
December 2018 464,304
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental FRAAEARBRNEAB B ZESERFE
borrowing rate of at the date of initial application #7747 1% 390,798
Less: short-term leases recognised on a straight- Jil : ME G AR AER 2 EHHEE
line basis as expense (21,570)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 201961 A1 BHR A EEE 369,228
Of which are: Hep:
Lease liabilities — current portion HEBE &K 95,621
Lease liabilittes — non-current portion HEBE - ER b 273,607
369,228

() Measurement of right-of-use assets

The right-of use assets were measured at the amount equal to the
lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2018. There were no onerous lease
contracts that would have required an adjustment to the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(d) Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on
1 January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the

balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

o right-of-use assets — increase by RMB407,452,000

o other assets — current portion — decrease by
RMB14,817,000

o lease liabilities — non-current portion — increase by
RMB273,607,000

° lease liabilities — current portion — increase by
RMB95,621,000

o other payables and accruals — decrease by RMB17,787,000

° prepaid lease payments— decrease by RMB41,194,000

2.3 Subsidiaries

2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and balance sheet respectively.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquiree’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date;
any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKIFRS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments
in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to 'share
of profit of investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive director of the
company that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(@ Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency’).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Group’s presentation currency. The Company’s functional
currency is HKD.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

All the foreign exchange gains and losses statement of
comprehensive income are presented in statement of
comprehensive income comprehensive income within “other gains
— net”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting 2 EXRESTTHEBEw@

policies (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 26 INEHBRE @

(c) Group companies c EEBRARQTF

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of W EHEHZNEEARAR ZAERR

which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a EEL(HEESIEENEERE

functional currency different from the presentation currency are WAEF) 2 & & R MBS0 - =

translated into the presentation currency as follows: THEHRE 52| .

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are () B BEABRPIRZEENR
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance BERZEERAZHREXRK
sheet; &

(i)  income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive i) B—2EEmRPIWAHEMSE
income comprehensive income are translated at average HEHFHERBLE (BRIEZTF
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable YEXWIIZTHBEER R 8
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing BEENE EHBER T
on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses ANERYESSGRHEXRKRE)
are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); X
and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in iy FIBEAZINEBREEZREINE
other comprehensive income. 2 E KSR -

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a WEIINREEMELEZEERLAR

foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity BEARIEAIIRNELE  EENEE

and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences WIREARE R & - HNME M E Z 20N
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income. HEh2E K= FER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other property, plant and
equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings
— Leasehold improvement

40-50 years

Shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life

— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 years

— Motor vehicles
— Plant and machinery

4-10 years
5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within “Other
gains/(losses) — net” in the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production or administrative purposes, are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
construction expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs
capitalized and other relevant expenses directly attributable to such
projects. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time when construction work is complete and
the costs of construction are transferred to the appropriate
category of fixed assets when available for use.

2.8 Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and
buildings, is held for capital appreciation, and that is not occupied
by the Group. It also includes properties that are being constructed
or developed for future use as investment properties. Land held
under operating leases are accounted for as investment properties
when the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concermned are accounted for as if
they were finance leases. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recorded in the statement of comprehensive income as part of a
valuation gain or loss in “Other gains/(losses) — net”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets
(@ Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or Groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or Group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwiill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have an indefinite
useful life. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on non-financial assets (Note 2.10)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued)

(c) Software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of five years.

210 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

211 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographic area of operations, or is part of a
single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is
presented in the statement of comprehensive income, which
comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation
and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation. Comparatives figures are
reclassified for consistent presentation purpose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

212 Financial assets

() Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

212 Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the statement of comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

212 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

212 Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised
in other gains/(losses) in the statement of comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

213 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the transfer
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges for
purchases of raw materials.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within 180 days
and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 22
for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1 for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

216 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. In the consolidated balance
sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

217 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

218 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

219 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

220 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

221 Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise
convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the
option of the holder, and the number of shares to be issued does
not vary with changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not
have an equity conversion option. The equity component is
recognised initially at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component, which is included in shareholders’ equity in
other reserves. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a
compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to
initial recognition except on conversion or expiry.

If the convertible financial instrument is converted, the respective
equity component of the compound financial instrument, together
with the carrying value of the liability component at the time of
conversion, are transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is classified as
current unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

222 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

222 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

223 Employee benefits

The Group operates short-term employee benefits and post-
employment schemes.

(@ Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include wages or salaries, bonus,
allowances and subsidies, staff welfare, premiums or contributions
on medical insurance, work injury insurance and maternity
insurance, housing funds, union running costs and employee
education costs, short-term paid absences and etc. The short-term
employee benefits actually occurred are recognised as a liability in
the accounting period in which the service is rendered by the
employees, with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the
current period or the cost of relevant assets. Non-monetary benefits
are measured at fair value.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group classifies post-employment benefit plans as either
defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Defined
contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund and will
have no obligation to pay further contributions. During the year, the
Group’s post-employment benefits that are defined contribution
plans mainly include the premiums or contributions on basic
pensions and unemployment insurance. A defined benefit plan is a
pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically
defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
During the year, the Group’s post-employment benefits that are
defined benefit plans were open to qualified employees of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Post-employment benefits (Continued)

Basic pensions

The Group’s employees participate in the basic pension plan set up
and administered by local authorities of Ministry of Human
Resource and Social Security. Monthly payments of premiums on
the basic pensions are calculated according to the bases and
percentage prescribed by the relevant local authorities. When
employees retire, the relevant local authorities are obliged to pay
the basic pensions to them. The amounts based on the above
calculations are recognised as liabilities in the accounting period in
which the service has been rendered by the employees, with a
corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current period or
the cost of relevant assets.

Payment to the MPF scheme

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of
defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value
of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in
the statement of profit or loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

223 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Post-employment benefits (Continued)

Payment to the MPF scheme (Continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

(c) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. These plans comprise a share option scheme
and a share award scheme. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options or shares is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options or shares
granted as at date of grant, including any market performance
conditions and excluding the impacts of any non-market service
and performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period) as well as any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options or shares that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options and shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

224 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, and the relevant business taxes
on value added taxes.

(@ Revenue from food and beverage business

The Group operates chains of restaurants for selling fast food and
hot pot food. Sales of goods are recognised when a restaurant of
the Group passes the food to the customer. Retail sales are usually
in cash, by credit card or by online payment platforms.

Prepaid cards issued for which the services have not been
rendered are recognised as contract liabilities until the relevant
services are performed.

The Group operates customer loyalty programme where customers
accumulate points for purchases made which entitle them to
discounts on future purchases. The Group accounts for award
credits as a separately identifiable component of the sales
transactions in which they are granted (the “initial sale”). The fair
value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of the
initial sale is allocated between the award credits (based on fair
value), which is credited to contract liabilities and the other
components of the sales. Revenue from the award points is
recognised when the points are redeemed. The amount of revenue
is based on the number of reward points redeemed relative to the
total number expected to be redeemed.

Sales of finished goods are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are delivered
the products to the franchisee and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the franchisee’s acceptance of the products. The
franchisee does not have a right of return upon receipt of the
products. The Group does not operate any loyalty programmes for
its franchisees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Revenue from manufacturing and sales of
handbags business

Revenue from the sales of goods are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the buyer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the buyer's acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the buyer, and either the buyer has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

225 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost (2017 —
loans and receivables) calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.
Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the
loss allowance).

226 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

227 Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The
new policy is described below and the impact of the change is
disclosed in Note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Group
as lessee were classified as operating leases (Note 36). Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it
has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

227 Leases (Continued)

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Company,
which does not have recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

227 Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight- line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

229 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

230 Earning per share

(@) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

° the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares

° by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

o the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including currency risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance department
under policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
The Company’s finance department identifies, evaluates financial
risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The
Board of Directors of the Company provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

(@ Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in HK dollars,
US dollars and RMB, which is exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to transactions denominated in currencies other than HK
dollars, RMB and US dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group did not enter into any forward contract to
hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk for the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE MR RNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Financial risk management (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in currency
other than functional currencies of the respective group entities are
as follows:

31 December 2019
201912 H31H

HK dollar  US dollar
BT EP

RMB’000 RMB’000
TARYE TAR®

Cash and bank balances IR & K iR 1745 #4 11,621 10,457

Trade and other receivables [E U E 5 & H fh 5UIE -

Trade and other payables ~ JEI & 5 & H fth 5018

Payable in relation to put & - B9 3F 1% % 4 %5 520

right of non-controlling EEEE

interests

As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5%
(2018: 5%) with all other variables held constant, pre-tax loss for
the year would have been RMB3,833,000 lower/higher (2018:
RMB11,384,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of HK dollar and US dollar-
denominated cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables and payable in relation to put right of non-
controlling interests which are denominated in RMB.
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(i) SME R B (4E)

R2019F 12 A31H  REBU S AE
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31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

=8 HK dollar  US dollar RMB
AR® BT e AR
S RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SN T ARE AR TARE
5,426 22,185 27

6 288 —

9,610 — 142,500

— — 103,496

M2019F12 A31H AR B ES
8 5% (20184F 1 5%)  MRF A A
Hab & ETE  F RS ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings
obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates. As at
each balance sheet date, substantially all of the Group’s borrowings
were carried at a fixed rate.

Based on the simulations performed by the Group, the impact on
post-tax profit of a 1% shift of interest rates for borrowings with
floating interest rates would be a maximum increase or decrease of
RMB9,000 for the year ended as 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB47,000). The simulation is done on an annually basis to verify
that the maximum loss potential is within the limit given by the
management.

(b) Credit risk
The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:

o trade receivables, and
o other receivables.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties provided by
the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet. Sales to retail customers are required to be settled in cash
or using major credit cards, mitigating credit risk. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure
to individual customers, specific industry sectors and/or regions.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales
over corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 was determined as follows for trade receivables:

B 7% B b2 B I )

31 BEEREZR @

(b) AR @)

FEWE 5 2 E
AEBHRAEBUBRELENFEOR
THELES B EEERIELS DR
MEREEAERKE SR ERRE
A ERERRARE AT EEE
EAE%  REXZEHRREHMN
BHEE HERBESREETTH
48 -

EHERABRAXERRBEHEEDNRER
5% B [ P 4 8 ) JE 52 {5 R R P&t
HEw -BELERBRAREEAERE U
RBEMAMAEERZNER S8
REFETFPHEERWEZFAEMNE
$ o

ook - R2019F & 2018 12 A31 H
MEBXBEEHEERTIERE FHAEE
el

Within
6 months Over 6 months
618 A LA HiB6MEA

As at 31 December 2019

Gross carrying amounts IR (A
Expected loss rates TEERB R X
Loss allowance BREH

MA2019F12H31H

286

54.20%
155

As at 31 December 2018

Gross carrying amounts AR (A
Expected loss rates JEHIE LR
Loss allowance BREE

7H2018F 12 A31 H

77,395 11,462
0.13% 1.52%
102 175

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

Other receivables at amortised cost mainly include amounts due
from related parties, loans receivables and others. Impairment on
other receivables is measured as either 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition by considering available, reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

During the year, the following losses were recognised in profit or
loss in relation to impaired financial assets:

B 7% & b2 B 1 )

31 BEEREZR @

(b) 1=ARkE @

Hfb W2 E
RBBRRAHEHMERREEE
BERKERSSE BERERRE
o Hb JE U R T SR (B AT AR ¥ E 15 A
BRENEERESDEZHMN &
12 B ATEEIE A B AR RERAEE
AN TEHIE AR AR ER - B T4
FRARMRTEZMN AEEEE
THA ABRAEASRSHATENE
B BEEERSBEREEHNHEAR
BENEERBEEEHOZARET
b8 o

FR-TIEBERERERESREE
MHEA RS RER

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

Impairment losses on trade receivables
Impairment losses on other receivables

&M E 5 SRR B & 1R
H A [ YR TR R (B &5 1R

THMEERERER

Impairment losses on financial assets

2018

Restated

E-Ru

RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FARM
226 277
2,623 —
2,849 277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuation in cash flows. The Group also has available
banking facilities to meet its short-term working capital
requirements. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent the
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

B 7% B b2 B I )

31 BEEREZR @

) RBELRAMR
EEERDELRARE  AEEER
PEFRERACSENRERER
BRMNAKT BT AEEYSE .
WHEBSRERHNTE AEE
MAREETREN R EHENYE
B4 B - EREERRITERER
BR - THRHEETERAN -

TRFAVNAEBEFTESREEZH
HARIMA -ZRIREAKEER
NRz&xEFEAMZEMABRFTRR
TRERR AHEEMIETESRE
BZHHMADERBEERAHM
E-RREENERATHERE -
HWAHEBRESRERFESNE AR
BB RERROMEPES -

Between Between
Within 1 year 1and 2years 2 and 5years Over 5 years
1F R 1FZE25F
RMB’000
FARY

2 FE6F BiB5E
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

RMB’000
TAR®

As at 31 December 2019 20194 12 H31 H

Trade payables ERE 5 3B 50,915
Other payables and H b BT FIB R

accruals TEIREH 94,599 =
Borrowings & & 5,215 =
Convertible bonds A R & 34,183 581,485
Lease liabilities REa’E 120,811 140,337

Payable in relation to put &< #9 FF 12 AR 4 25
right of non-controlling ROLHEEBEE
interests 123,500

Total = 305,723 115,493 845,322
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BXKEKRERE®m

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEEREZR @

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) ) REEZ R @)
Between Between

Within 1 year 1and?2vyears 2and5years Over5 years
1F R 1FE2F 2EESEF HBiB5F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FARE FAR®

As at 31 December 2018  RR20184F 12 31 H

Trade payables e 8 5 FIA 91,413 — — -
Other payables and H b A FOE K

accruals JBIRE A 220,225 — — —
Borrowings [EE 5,371 256,450 — —
Convertible bonds R & 5 19,800 19,800 719,400 —

Payable in relation to put &< &9 FE 12 A 4 25
right of non-controlling ROhEEEE

interests — — 123,500 -
Total At 336,809 276,250 842,900 —
3.2 Capital management 32 EXREHE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard NREBEEERNBEASH T NEBFIE
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to BREREN UAEARFIEHLORAE
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders A EEEFAIERNS TRFESE
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of REELURIKE @K AR -
capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may BHESARERNGEHE  NEBE g
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital @RHBI I TFREZERESE  BE
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. R F AR « BITH R AR AN sk H

EEE URLAEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including ’current and non-current borrowings’ and convertible
bonds as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as 'equity’ as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt. As at 31 December
2019, the Group’s gearing ratio was 27% (2018: 32%).

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 31 December 2019 by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that

are measured at fair value at 31 December 2019.

Assets BE
Financial assets at fair ZA A EEMFEAH
value through other BEGAHMEZR

comprehensive WEzEe@MEE
income
Unlisted investment FEETEE

Financial assets atfair R AR EBEIELEH
value through profitor @B ABZE £

loss MEE
Investment in unlisted RIELEMEYE®
wealth management ®E
products
Total &5t
Financial liabilities EA- =R

Consideration payable in  FE 5 {% 4 25 32 0 78
relation to the put right of &% (B 89 FE [ R &
non-controlling interest (KT 3E38)

(Note 38)

Level 1
F1R
RMB’000
FAR%

Level 1
E14R
RMB’000
FARY

B 75 B B B B m)

3.3 A AEBEMF W

TRINRAEBR2019F12 531 B U
NAhBEFEZEENAE -

Level 2
24
RMB’000
FAR%

Level 2
E24k
RMB’000
SN

Level 3
E3H
RMB’000
FARY

Level 3
E34K
RMB’000
SN

BEERERAE

Total

A
=]

RMB’000
FTAR®

Total
At
RMB’000
TARH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HHEREKEEE @
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AAEEMF @
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that TEIRAEBR2018F12 A31 H A
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2018. AREEFAECEERAE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERF F2M FE 3 &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TARE TAR® TAR® TAR®

Assets BE
Financial assets atfair RAAEBEIERH
value through other EEHTAHMEE
comprehensive income WHZERMEE
Unlisted investment JEEMIRE - - 2,000 2,000

Financial assets atfair RAAREEEAH
value through profitor & Et AEH 2 &

loss mEE
Investment in unlisted wealth 7 3F _F 1 38 Bf & &

management products ’&E — — 42,194 42,194
Total &t - - 44,194 44,194
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERF F24 F3 A&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FARKE TFARK

Financial liabilities cRasE

Consideration payable in JEVE IR S R R
relation to the put right of B {& &9 J& {5 1 (B (Ff
non-controlling interest F138)
(Note 38) — — 103,496 103,496
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 3
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for

the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Opening balance R34 84
Addition NE
Redemption &[0

Change in fair value BREBEEEE
Disposal of subsidiaries i £ [ff & A &)
Currency translation B E =5

difference
Closing balance B R 4 84

RMB’000
TAR®

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
RAAREBEETE
BH#ZHTA
Ht2E W= 2

2,000
3,000

3 HMERBEREw@

3.3 A AEBEMF W

FEIMEMTE
TRIRE ZE 20194 £ 2018412 A 31
BIFFEZS3RTAEH -

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY® TARYE TARM
Payable in
Financial relation to
assets at the put right
fair value Derivative of non-
through financial controlling
profit or loss instrument interests
RAREE FE 13 9
FTEEHS IE 42 IR R =
EEt AE = o fE
ZEMEE BEE
42,194 (103,496)
138,707
(90,101)
992
(29,000)

(600)

(99,024)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B I AR R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 H¥ERERE@
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 D AEEME @)
Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued) EIRERM I A @)
2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® TFARE TAR® TARE
Payable in
Financial assets relation to
at fair value Financial the put right of
through other  assets at fair Derivative non-
comprehensive  value through financial controlling
income profit or loss instrument interests
RARBEFE KRAnEAE FE AT EY
BEZHTAHE FEEHE FEFE AR =
mEEkE s  BEAES PTHE Roh
PHEE ZERAE eRMIA BEE
Opening balance HA ) 4 — 27,000 1,029 —
Addition NE 2,000 93,800 — (102,850)
Redemption f& [0 — (78,606) — —
Change in fair value NREBEEH — - (1,029) (646)
Closing balance B R & 4 2,000 42,194 - (103,496)
The fair value assessment methods and related key assumptions REBEEEBEMNZ AABEFTEE
and judgements adopted by the Group’s management is as follow: LEBE KBEELRHE T
° For financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive ° HIEARBESAERE ST A

income, price of recent investment method is adopted and
related key assumptions include the price of the recent
investment and changes subsequent to the relevant
transaction date;

° For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and .
payable in relation to put right of non-controlling interests,
discounted cash flow method is adopted and related key
assumptions include expected rate of return, discount rates
and expected future cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

The Group has a team that manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purposes. The team manages
the valuation exercise of the investments on a case by case basis.
At least once every year, the team would use valuation techniques
to determine the fair value of the Group’s level 3 instruments.
External valuation experts will be involved when necessary.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@ Impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful life
The Group tests annually whether goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life have suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of
groups of cash-generating units (the “CGUs”) have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates (Note
21).

As of 31 December 2019, as the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs that contain goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life were higher than their carrying
amounts, there was no impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life.

B R B B )

3.3 A REEMF @

E3RETHMIT A @
AEBEREEK AP BHRE R
ETEIRT AN -ZEBKERE
HEERREZEETY ZEBES&
LEF-RERGBERNEEASE
FIRTAZAABE AEBEHREA
FERZEIMBEEER -

CE AR L |

fBEr R A E S RIFBEE SR R EME
ERBETHE ZEREREESR
MELTHESRKREHARZRE
Al

4.1 BRI AT REBR

AEBHRKELBARER -BS
B&E G RIZAMEBERIE
Mo Ttz fhat RRFJMEH A B
RTEVBRFERNEREEREREZ
FREEHRERHE -

@ EBMEREEEREAFEH
ZEFEEERE
AEBEFFREWF20MM S
ABRRAHEERAFERER
FH2EFEESGLERE-
ReErsBEM((ReEEELENM])
2 Al Bl & B TR R B E AT
EET ZEHEFEEITER
(P 5E21) °

HZE2019F12A31 0 BiEEHE
LEEBREAFH o EREE
ZHEESEABUZIREEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of interests in associates

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for interests in associates at the end of
each reporting period in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in Note 2.10. Interests in
associates are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of interests in an associate exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful
lives

Management of the Group determines the estimated
useful lives for intangible assets based on their historical
experience in the industry and various studies and
market research performed by them, which support
that the trademark may have no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the trademarked products are
expected to generate net cash flows for the Group. It is
possible that future results of operation could be
affected by changes in this estimate. A change of useful
lives of the trademarks from indefinite to finite would
increase amortisation charges and decrease non-
current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment have been determined
based on the higher of fair value and value in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of
judgment and estimates.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on the
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables. The loss
allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Management
reassesses the provision at each balance sheet date.

4 BEESTHEFTTRHAE @

41 RS EHFTTREBRR @

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE MR RNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

()

Fair value of customer royalty program

The fair value of programme awards under the Group’s
customer loyalty programme is deferred and included in
revenue. This deferred revenue arises as members of
the programme accumulate award points by purchasing
food of the Group. The deferred revenue is recognised
as revenue when the related goods or services are
provided subsequent to the redemption of award
points. The proportion of points that are expected to
expire, is recognised to reduce fair value, and is
determined by a number of assumptions including
historical experience, future redemption pattern and
programme design.

The amount of revenue is based on the number of
points redeemed relative to the total number expected
to be redeemed.

5 Revenue and Segment information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

4 BRI E @

41 BREFEHEFTRBR@®

)

xﬁ/u\uﬁkn—i—%J/ Ju 'Tg
(=]
AEEBEPEAHMFEET

ZitBlEEZ AR EEE
FEEBREIWAAMA - EF
SHlegmAEEEERM
?ﬁﬁgii,\ii’\ CEEEEN
BEEWBA -ES8HREE
BOVEREEEEY X
fRigHE BT W ASHER
BUA - BHIBEZES L

Bl - PABR B R LURIE R A
BE YREZEBRIME
EBREBRTKR RRKE
PR RETEIRG

WAZBETER N B2 8
ERODHERYNERN
BMIZBHE-

5 WARZHESR

REER

Continuing operations: = ,Zt T
Revenue from food and beverage business BEREE WA
Discontinued operations: B IEREEET :

Revenue from manufacturing and sales of

handbags business

HREMHEFREBRA

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019

NERZRADHET

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLFE
2018
Restated
Hift
RMB’000
FAR®

RMB’000
TAR®

998,250 470,181

383,899



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Revenue and Segment information (continued)

The Company’s executive directors are the chief operating decision
maker (the “CODM”). The CODM periodically reviews the Group’s
internal report, which focus on types of goods or services delivered
or provided, in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
The CODM has determined the operating segments based on
these reports.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had two
reportable segments namely, the food and beverage business and
the manufacturing and sales of handbags business. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed its 100% equity
interest in Lee & Man, and upon completion, the Company has
ceased to hold any interest in Lee & Man, each subsidiary of Lee &
Man has ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and the
financial results of Lee & Man and its subsidiaries were no longer
consolidated into the financial statements of the Company. Thereby
the manufacturing and sales of handbags business was classified
as discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December 2019
and it will not be a reportable segment of the Group in the future.

WARDEHER @

ARBNTEETRIERERRE
([EBRERKED - TBELERK
EEHEHNASBE ZHPHRE UK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

5 Revenue and Segment information (continued) 5 U A K 5 ZE K @)
Segment revenues and results DEBARFEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by T AEAREBIESRED I 2 A K ZE
reportable segment: BT

Discontinued
operations
BRIEREEL

Continuing
operations

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZ2019%F12831H

LtFE
Total revenue PN L
Inter-segment revenue 2 EE A
Revenue from external customers 3K G 4858 % B 2 W A
Segment gross profit 7 #E A
Segment operating profit 7 B A T
Distribution and selling expenses 9 8 R 5 E M X
General and administrative —MRITHRER
expenses
Other information: Hib&EH
Significant non-cash expenses BEXRIFBEIE
Depreciation and amortisation rE R

As at 31 December 2019
Total assets
Including:
Investments in associates
Total liabilities

R2019F12 A31H

BIE
Bt N ERE
BERE

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019

Food and
beverage
business

BUREH
RMB’000
TAR®

998,250

998,250

590,338
7,319

(491,179)

(109,581)

164,995

2,280,365

273,054
1,295,399

Manufacturing
and sales of
handbags
business*
HERHEHE
FREK
RMB’000
FARY

444,751

444,751

119,562
15,594

(19,477)

(89,341)

Total
ait

RMB’000
TAR®

1,443,001

1,443,001

709,900
22,913

(510,656)

(198,922)

177,250

2,280,365

273,054
1,295,399




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ma

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY 5 (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

5 Revenue and Segment information (continued)

5 WARDIER =&

Segment revenues and results (Continued) TEUWAREE @
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations
Manufacturing
Food and and sales of
beverage handbags
business business* Total
FERIHE
BEREB FREB =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARE TFAR®
Year ended 31 December 2018 & 2018128311
(Restated) IEFEE(E)
Total revenue I A 42 %8 470,181 383,899 854,080
Inter-segment revenue 2 30 U A — — -
Revenue from external customers B INLE P 7 WA 470,181 383,899 854,080
Segment gross profit 73 #BEH 270,248 96,230 366,478
Segment operating profit 7 B AE & v K 3,542 4,388 7,930
Distribution and selling expenses 5 84 R4 EFH X (226,811) (16,320) (243,131)
General and administrative expenses — 8 & 17 & (46,708) (82,126) (128,834)
Other information: HEiER
Significant non-cash expenses BERIFBREEIH
Depreciation and amortisation e K Y 20,571 8,153 28,724
As at 31 December 2018 R20184F 12 H31H
Total assets BEMRTE 2,118,770 319,664 2,438,434
Including: B
Investments in associates R /NI = 292,975 - 292,975
Total liabilities BfEMEE 1,362,440 92,698 1,455,138

The manufacturing and sales of Handbags business has been classified as
discontinued operations. As a result, the related revenue, expenses and
income tax are presented as a single amount in the statement of
comprehensive income under “profit for the year from discontinued operations”.

HWERHETFREBCOERDKRILEE
Ei5o Bt HEAWA FAXEAEHR
EHEWERANFARDKIEEEZEBEF]
BTEBZY-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE MR RNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Revenue and Segment information (continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

For continuing operations, no revenue derived from transactions
with a single external customer represented 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018. For discontinued operations, revenue of approximately
RMB191,935,000 (2018: RMB155,162,000) was derived from a
single external customer of the manufacturing and sales of
handbags segment for the year ended 31 December 2019.

A reconciliation of operating profit to loss before taxation is
provided as follows:

WARDHER @

DERARESE @

EXREZDEUWAIER IR
FrEE £ 2 WA o & Z 20194 K& 20184
12A3M B IEFEBES BEEE -

RHECEESN S BMEXGE—
IBEEFZRHBRAGARAEEEZE
20194 N 2018F 12 A31 H Ik F B W
ANBEE10%HIA L - RERIEELEE
% s & E2019F12A31H IF F
€ - #9191,935,00070 A R # (20184 :
155,162,000 A R®) 2 Ik AR B &
EREEFROFZE—IIRBREF -

BRUAT & 2 m A BB R HRWT

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

2018

Restated

=it

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARYE FARE

Operating profit from continuing operations REFFELEES 2 % 7,319 3,542

Finance income B 75 A 258 189

Finance expenses B %8 A (24,754) (2,686)

Interest on convertible bonds AR ES T E (35,920) (4,125)

Share of loss of associates JELEE & A RIEIE (11,189) (4,394)

Impairment losses on investment in 2N AR E R R E B 1B

an associate (14,971) —

Loss before taxation BRERTE R (79,257) (7,474)
Operating profit from discontinued operations % B & 4% |F 48 & 2 15 7 18 &

Skt A 4,388

Finance expenses VB ER (149

Profit before taxation B 4 A1 i 4,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Revenue and Segment information (continued)

Geographical information

As at 31 December 2019, less than 10% of the Group’s total non-
current assets are located outside the PRC. As at 31 December
2018, the Group’s non-current assets, other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets, are located in the
PRC, Thailand and Myanmar amounting to RMB1,639,259,000,
RMB35,426,000 and RMB84,588,000 respectively.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, all of the
Group’s revenue from continuing operations are derived from the
PRC. The Group’s revenue from external customers of discontinued
operations by geographical location during the year is as follows:

WARDHER @

& & =

R2019F 12 A31H » AN £ B i A &
BEIINZIETREEERBLINI10%
201812 A31H » A £ E 7 1
B -ZEEAEAZERDEE(S R
TARBREMSHEERIN D5l A
1,639,259,000 7T A R ¥ + 35,426,0007C
AR % 84,588,000 7T A R H#E o

B 20194 K2018512 A31 F Ik F
B AEBBESEEBZ2HTKRA
HEEHRE FAAEBKREE LI
E R 2 HNER P 2 AR & E
DEBWT

A

Revenue from external
customers of discontinued
operations
RECKRIEREEK
HMEEF WA
Year ended 31 December
HE12A1BLLEE

The USA x
Canada il N

Italy Nl
The PRC =
Germany 1=

Hong Kong 55

South American countries BEEMNBEXR
The United Kingdom o

The Netherlands RS

The Middle East and Africa
Other European countries
Other Asian countries

R K IEM
H A B B 2K
H i 55 M B R

2018

Restated

=gl

RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARYE
165,692 166,572
93,437 46,706
39,828 22,198
27,309 24,332
18,488 23,767
11,640 20,577
8,476 6,976
6,032 4,089
4,112 5,824
516 663
35,645 28,993
33,576 33,202
444,751 383,899

BRERER2TE —Z-AFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

6 Other income 6 HMWA

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018

Restated

E

RMB’000 RMB’000

FTARY FARY

Franchise income SEE PN 7,640 3,468

Government grants B I #7 BY) 4,704 1,736

Management service income (a) BEERBHAQ) 2,500 2,500
Investment income on wealth management B EMEERA(D

products (b) 2,197 883

Interest income on loans B HR B WA 732 348

Rental income el A 345 390

Others HA 1,504 1,502

19,622 10,827

(@ Management service income mainly includes service fees @ BERBBAFZEEARAEER

received by the Group in relation to the provision of
commercial, management and administrative support
services.

(b)  For the year ended 31 December 2019, investment income (o)
on wealth management products includes realised gains of
RMB1,205,000 (2018: RMB883,000) and unrealised gains of
RMB992,000 (2018: nil), both of which are recorded as “other
income” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

Other gains/(losses), net

7 Httis (B18) FHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

RMB’000
FTAR®

Net exchange gain/(loss)

Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on fair value changes on derivative
financial instrument

Others

(& X Wzs (B 18) % 5
HE®EBEEE RS
HEME  BELREBE

TEeMIARAEBEE
LS
H At

913
1,340

(1,266)

(19)

968

BEERERAE

2018
Restated
Hi
RMB’000
FAR®

(1,916)

(655)

(1,029)
(137)

(3,737)

“E-NEER

147



148

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

8 Expenses by nature

8 BUHESsEZXH

Raw material used and changes in inventories
of finished goods

Employee benefit expense (Note 14)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Water, electricity and fuel

Property management fee

Expenses relating to short-term lease and
variable lease payments not included in
lease liabilities (31 December 2018:
Operating lease payments)

Advertising costs

Transportation expenses

Office expenses

Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit service
— Non-audit services

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Transaction cost in relation to business
combination

Other expenses

B T Z BT R MR R

EERMNAZ (E14)

FREEENE

& i 8

KE R

MEEEB A

et AERGERAZEHEEH
HErRATERENZRZHAX
(20185412 A31H : ®ETHE
30

J& 45 X AR

RBEA

PN

Z SN BN &
— EBH R
— EEARS

ME - BEREERE

EEEBAHZRIAAR

H Al 37

Total cost of sales, distribution and selling
expenses and general and administrative
expenses

HERAE DHEHEMRX
AR —RRITHE R AE
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Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

RMB’000
FTAR®

383,131
279,024
115,187
49,808
38,827
25,265

1,008,672

2018
Restated
Hi
RMB’000
FAR®

193,336
119,796
20,571
19,955
6,668

77,663
6,684
2,712
1,691

2,200
168

5,099
16,909

473,452



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

9 Finance income and expenses 9 HMBKUAREHR

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018
Restated
Ep
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARK
Finance income B 75 A
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A B U A 189
Finance expenses B %8 A
Interest on convertible bonds (Note 24) AR E A T S (B aE24) (35,920) (4,125)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGNE (18,702) -
Interest on loan from a third party FEZFERFE (5,925) (2,238)
Others HAh (127) (723)
Less: Interest expenses capitalised VA= N = 275
(60,674) (6,811)
Finance expense, net WEER TR (60,416) (6,622)
Weighted average effective interest rates used 3T E A& B EEE L L EFT
to calculate capitalisation amount on RAmEFERF =
qualifying assets 1.25%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

10 Income tax expense

10 FrE%ix

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

RMB’000
FARY
Current income tax B EFFT 15 51
Hong Kong profits tax EENSH
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) REERER
([EmMBHD
Deferred tax IEEF I8

Income tax expense is attributable to:

— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

THEHEEEOPTEH X H
—REKEER
—ERIEREXR
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2018
Restated
Hi
RMB’000
FAR®

2,589

1,464

4,053

1,619

5,672

2,348
3,324

5,672



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

10 Income tax expense (Continued) 10 FISEB X wm

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018
Restated
Fi
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FAR®
Loss from continuing operations before BEAIFECEER BB
income tax (79,257) (7,474)
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations BREAERIEREEL 2
before income tax (E518) & 7 (32,126) 4,239
(111,383) (8,235)
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% 15 25% Tt KT (2018 4F : 25%)
(2018: 25%) (27,846) (809)
Tax effects of: UTEBZHMBEE
— Associates’ results — B E N R EE 2,797 1,009
— Effect of different tax rates of —WBRARTRAEE &
subsidiaries 25,427 2,148
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  — 5T iR Al R 2 % H 526 677
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised —ERLER AR 2
tax losses &5 18 (206) (468)
— Income not subject to tax — AW A (1,018) -
— Tax losses for which no deferred —KERELEFMEHREEZ
income tax asset was recognised T 7 5 18 10,324 3,025
Tax charge s ER 10,004 5,672
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

10 Income tax expense (Continued)

11

Cayman Islands

The Company is incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of Cayman
Islands and accordingly, is exempted from Cayman Islands income
tax.

Hong Kong

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profit above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% (2018:
16.5%).

The PRC

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Myanmar

The Myanmar subsidiary is subjected to Myanmar Corporate
Income Tax at a rate of 25%. No provision for Myanmar Corporate
Income Tax has been made for both years as the Myanmar
subsidiary incurred losses for both years.

Thailand

The Thailand subsidiary is subjected to Thailand Corporate Income
Tax at a rate of 20%. No provision for Thailand Corporate Income
Tax has been made for both years as the Thailand subsidiary
incurred losses for both years.

Dividends

The Board resolved not to declare any dividend for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

12 Loss per share 12 BRE#E

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018
Restated
Ep
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FAR®
Basic loss per share (a) % E AR E 18 (a)
From continuing operations attributable to SERNAQRREZEBEAAZ
equity holders of the Company RELEED (0.83)
From discontinued operations REERIEEEER 0.07
Total basic loss per share attributable to BERANFIEEFEAGR
equity holders of the Company AXEEBEE (0.76)
Diluted loss per share (b) % ¥ B 518 (b)
From continuing operations attributable to FERARTEZBAEAZ
equity holders of the Company FREICEET (0.83)
From discontinued operations REBERIEEEER 0.07
Total diluted loss per share attributable to ERANFEEFEAGR
equity holders of the Company WEFEBRTE (0.76)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

12 Loss per share (Continued) 12 BRE B @

(a) Basic loss per share (@) BREXEIE

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BREAERINEFEBR AR
BafBBAZEBERRIAFACH
TEBBRINEFIHETE -

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

RMB’000
TAR®

Loss attributable to equity holders of the FTESREAEERNMAZ

(86,517)

(35,117)

(121,634)

Company used in calculating basic loss EBRARREEFAA

per share: it

From continuing operations (RMB’000) REAFELEET
(FAR®)

From discontinued operations (RMB’000) & [ B 4% || 48 & % 7%
(FAR®)

Weighted average number of ordinary BETEBRME T A
shares in issue (thousands) (F%)

1,556,787

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019

2018
Restated
st
RMB’000
FARM

(12,059)

915

(11,144)

1,460,593



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

12 SREB @
b) ERFEEIR

12 Loss per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of shares in issue to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential shares. The Company’s dilutive potential
shares comprise shares to be issued under convertible
bonds, share option scheme and share award scheme. In
relation to shares issued under share option schemes, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market share price of the Company’s shares during
the year) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 did not assume the issuance of
any dilutive potential ordinary share since they are antidilutive,
which would decrease loss per share.

BRWEBERDEBHBE #HIT
By g F T UBRERE
BHBBERERD - NQAE
EREBRMBEBEREATRKE
7 BB A B K B A0 B2 R Rt &)
s T #1722 B - BLARIREE K
BFECBRTZEROME AR
AMELREE  UEBEERBARITRE
BREMMNRBE:EBEER
AABEGRARF RN FAF
B mEEE) A R 2 K
& AE - EMAFEZROBE
EERITERBREMAIEETZ
Pefn 8B ETTLLE

i E # E220199F K20184F 12 A
AL FEzSRWEERE
HMRAHEREELERAEEGR®
BREMRLESRER I E
BERETIMNAIHEBEEL R
A% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

13 Directors’ and chief executive’s 13 EERTHEARZMNE
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BWiEERAZ FTHRAEDTIER - F
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rule and Companies Ordinance, NEERTHAH  HWEHEENT :
is as follows:

Contributions
relating to social
insurance,
housing fund
and retirement

Salaries scheme Other Benefit
HERE-
EEAEER
BikectEEB
e e AL AT H 1 15 7 =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARYE TARY TAR®E TARE TARY TAR®

2019 2019 F

Executive directors HiTEE
Zhao John Huan BB (FE)

(Chairman)
Wang Xiaolong (i) FEER()

(Chief Executive) (1T 4E#)
Jing Shen (ii) KIE()
Wang Yuanzheng (i) T & 1 (i)

Independent non- BUHNTEE

executive directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei IS
Tsang Hin Man g EX
Terrence
Leung Kwai Kei ZEH
Total ikl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

The executive directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were paid for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group

and for their services as directors of the Company respectively.

The bonuses paid to the directors are fixed in amount.

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
a compensation for a loss of office. No directors waived any
emoluments during these years.

13 Directors’ and chief executive’s 13 EERITTHARZMNS
emoluments
Contributions
relating to social
insurance,
housing fund and
Fees Salaries Bonus retirement scheme  Other Benefit Total
Bt g R
FEABEESRR
KeirélaH
we ¥e TE4r 2R H 38 Fl =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARK FARK TFARK TFARK FARK FARK
2018 2018
Executive directors HITEE
Zhao John Huan WIE(FE)
(Chairman) - - - - - -
Wang Xiaolong T
(Chief Executive) (T4 %) — — — - — -
Wang Yuanzheng TR - - - - - -
Independent non- BUIHTEE
executive directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei MR 135 - - - - 135
Tsang Hin Man 94
Terrence 135 - - — — 135
Leung Kwai Kei Z2EHE 135 - - - - 135
Total k] 405 - - - - 405
Notes: Bt 5
0] Mr. Wang Xiaolong was appointed as the chief executive officer on 26 August [0) FNEER ER2019F8 A26 HEZE A 1T
2019, EEE A
(ii) Mr. Jing Shen was appointed as executive director on 30 April 2019. (ii) SIEALEN2019F4 308 EZ T AT
-
(iil Mr. Wang Yuanzheng resigned as executive director on 30 April 2019. (ii) TR K AENR2019F4 A30B BHEMITE
=

EXFRZHTESTREILFNTE
EME DR REEREEARR
RAREBEEHARBEEEARFE
EZRBEMA

MEBEEXNZEAREESHE -

B E2019%F K20185E12 A31 A Ik &
E AEEVERNESER AL TS
AT HERNMESERNAREER
BN A AN 5 B B 2 52 B BX 1F A B B A
B-BEEERNZEFTERARELM
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

14 Employees benefit expenses 14 EERFABX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018
Restated
Fi
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FAR®
Wages and salaries IENE= 225,044 98,597
Social security costs and housing fund HtEREXEAEREEQAES 34,290 17,273
Staff benefit and welfare EERA B 11,509 3,926
Share-based compensation expenses (Note 33) LA B% {5 /& L7 19 & I B 2
(FF7E33) 8,181 —
279,024 119,796
Two (2018: none) of the five individuals with the highest AEBRAZRTFMATPEAE
emoluments in the Group were directors of the Company whose (2018%F : |) BA RN A ES - HEF M
emoluments are included in Note 13 above. The aggregate EHEHA EXXH 13 82~ = % (2018
emoluments of the remaining three (2018: five) highest paid FRAEL)ESHEMA T ZEWME W
individuals, were as follows: ™~
Year ended 31 December
BZE12ANBLEE
2018
Restated
Fi
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM
Salaries and other benefits FrekHMEF 3,828 4,957
Share-based compensation expenses LARS 1 A E5 0 60 2 B A =2 1,677 -
Discretionary bonus payments EYISIEAL T X 300 51
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes iR k18 | 5 2|t 7% 293 324
Other benefits H 48 F 310 —
6,408 5,332
Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to the Group’s BB IR EREFHREELE
operating results, individual performance and comparable market BMAXRBREABL®MBSEtEEMm
statistics. BT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

14 Employees benefit expenses (Continued) 14 EERABE X @
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no remuneration was HE2019F12A31BIEFE A& H
paid by the Group to the three highest paid employees as an WA A = B & = 5 R B S AHE ] BN
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation SEAMARER S INANERR 2
for loss of office. RE S ERBERE -
The emoluments were within the following band: BeNFE T HEE:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018

Number of Number of

employees employees

EEHE BE#HE

Restated

Eif

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 #8135 1,000,0007%8 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 1,500,000 JT —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T &= 2,000,000 7% 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T = 2,500,000 7T -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7% 7T = 4,500,000 7T —
5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

15 Property, plant and equipment 15 Y% - BERKE
Furniture
Plantand  fixtures and Leasehold  Construction
Machinery  equipment  Motor Vehicles Buildings  Improvements in progress Total
B %8
B fE R es T E BF HEHR ERIR Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

TARE TARH% TARE TARK TARS TARE TARE

Year ended 31 December 2018 # Z2018% 128311

LEE

Opening net book amount FENREFE 26,884 17,188 1,730 32,354 43,959 46,528 168,643
Currency tranglation differences ~ E# ik & =5 (682) 54 (34) (4,103) 393 (1,017) (5,389)
Additions AE 6,509 6,241 57 2,321 4,767 11,927 31,822
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EEH B A A 568 13,012 472 - 66,597 1,178 81,827
Disposals He (19) (126) (243) - (505) - (887)
Transfer upon completion A ES R - - - 43,026 9,300 (52,326) -
Depreciation charge TEZH (5,033) (5,585) (479) (2,647) (14,224) - (27,968)
Closing net book amount ERREAFE 28,233 30,784 1,503 70,951 110,287 6,290 248,048
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31 R
Cost A 50,037 98,058 10,476 152,308 230,478 6,290 547,647
Accumulated depreciationand T E RFAE

impairment (21,804) (67,274) (8,973) (81,357) (120,191) - (299,599
Net Book Amount RERE 28,233 30,784 1,503 70,951 110,287 6,290 248,048
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15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

Furniture

Plantand fixtures and
Machinery  equipment Motor Vehicles

B -£B
BERKE ES ] AE
RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TAR® TARY

Year ended 31 December 2019 # Z20195 128318

LEE

Opening net book amount FOEREFE 28,233 30,784
Currency tranlation differences A E £ 1,708 87
Additions NE 2,891 14,551
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT

(Note 37(b)) (FI5E37(0)) (21,621) (1,592)
Disposals He&E (291) (2,517)
Transfer upon completion bilidt T = =
Depreciation charge TEXH (6,997) (9,595)
Impairment charge (Note 8) BEZ W (HEs) ©4) (374)
Closing net book amount EXREEEE 3,829 31,344
At 31 December 2019 RW2019%12A31A
Cost B 32,724 108,587

Accumulated depreciationand 2T E LA E

impairment (28,895) (77,243)

Net Book Amount FEEE 3,829 31,344

(@

(b)

The carrying value of the Group’s property interests comprises buildings on
land under medium-term land use rights in the PRC.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting to RMB
nil (2018: RMB275,000) on qualifying assets.

Depreciation expenses (excluding the portion attributable to discontinued
operations) of RMB5,089,000 (2018: RMB3,072,000) has been charged to
cost of sales, RMB40,562,000 (2018: RMB16,463,000) to distribution and
selling expenses and RMB2,097,000 (2018: RMB280,000) to general and
administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2019, buildings with net book value of RMB24,145,000
were pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowings. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had no secured bank borrowings (Note 30).

15 ME -BERZRHE@®

Leasehold Construction

Buildings improvements  in progress Total

- E5 HEXRR EEIR A

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
TARE TAR® TAR®  TAR%

70,951 110,287 248,048

2,506 243 - 4,556
1,665 PARS 9,234 49,785

(47,994) (10,562) (1,361) (83,444)

= (2,037) - (4,980)
997 12,740 (13,737) =

(3,980) (37,872) - (58,943)

= (2,716) - (3,192)

91,489 151,830

109,482 252,268 513,564

(85,337) (160,779) (361,734)

24,145 91,489 151,830

AEEMERSCRAAEEETERERZ
RHE LM E AL E 2T

FRN - AEEzEEREEENMOERK
A BZ L ARE (20184 : 275,0007T A R
K)o

MERIX(TEEREBRERILEEER
2 B ) /5,089,0007T A K ¥ (20184 :
3,072,000t ARB)BEFF AHEERAE - M
40,562,0007C A & # (20184 : 16,463,000
TARBIEHFASBEERHEER S &
2,097,000t A & # (20184 : 280,0007T A
RE)ESA—BRERITEHER -

MN2019F12A31E K @ % & A
24,145,000t AR 2 EFEEAREE
B2 G o 2018412 AB1H - K&
B I 8 B 3K 48R 77 5 5K (i 5£30) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

16 Leases

16

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to

leases:

HE

i) REEEBEBRABRIZ
T 5

BERBRZINTHEBEERRH

ZER

31 December
2019

20194
12A31H
RMB’000
FAR%

372,944

372,944

Right-of-use assets FEHEEE

Leasehold land/Land-use rights FE £+ b f A
Properties L7ES

Lease liabilities HESE

Current mE

Non-current ETRB

116,709
263,580

380,289

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019 financial

year were RMB132,702,000.
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1 January
2019*
2019
118"
RMB’000
FAR®

41,194
366,258

407,452

95,621
273,607

369,228

o FAHEE ER 20199 B F E &N

132,702,000 7T A R # -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

16 Leases (Continued) 16 HE @)
(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of (i) AZHURERANBERZ
comprehensive income okl

For the year
ended

31 December
2019

B Z2019F
12A31H
RMB’000
FAR%

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FRHEEEZIEXE
Properties Ly 115,187

Interest expense (included in finance expenses) MBEBREZGIARBKER) 18,702

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in - 4G BT E B E R Gt A D B RIHE
distribution and selling expenses and generaland F XA R —RETHEER)
administrative expenses) 19,183

Expense relating to variable lease payments not ~ T st ATHEBEZ A S M EN KB
included in lease liabilities (included in distributon &R (Gt A HEEREER L)

and selling expenses) 4,507
The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was HERS R RBRENR22019F A
RMB127,660,000. 127,660,0007C A R # o

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how (i) FEE2HEEZHRH
these are accounted for ABRAR
The Group leases various offices, warehouses and AEBHEZEARRAE BEBEX
restaurants. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed BER-HMEAABTEE A2
periods of 2 years to 10 years. FE0F o
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain SR NIZEANEERTEL R
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease FEEZ 2 TRER AR - B i
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the HAFBEHEHEEEY 2 | IF#E
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the = 4N - T E ek W 4 i 0 AT fe] 32
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for o MHEBENSREERZER
borrowing purposes. Han e

BRERER2TE —Z-AFFR 163



164

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE MR RNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

16 Leases (Continued)

(iv) Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that
are linked to sales generated from a restaurant. For individual
restaurants, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis
of variable payment terms with percentages ranging from
12% to 26% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a
variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base
for newly established restaurants. Variable lease payments
that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the condition that triggers those payments
occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all restaurants in the Group
with such variable lease contracts would increase total lease

payments by approximately

17 Prepaid lease payments

RMB1,831,000.

16 HE @)
(iv) TEBEENSR

HomEHeEssEEEHER
85 7 AT # A KSR o BhE B & B
mE ERAENRERZHEE
&S ] E100% © B 4 & 5
BN F12% 2 26% o 7] &
REFERSERAMERS &
EEFTHREBRZETEKABRE
HE-BTHEEEMT oA
BT IR B AT G IR B R

EHIESER -

WAREBFEZSUEHESD
2 BEEHEEEEMI0%n B
& 4B R A 1L N 491,831,000 7T
AREE o

17 BHEHENRK

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAR®
The PRC A 17,580
Myanmar oK) 23,614
Analysed for reporting purpose as: LERAP>WTWT - 41,194
Non-current asset IERENEE 40,663
Current asset mEAE 531
Balance at the end of year FRE 41,194
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

18 Investment properties 18 WEWE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FAR®E
At fair value BRAAREE
Investment properties HEME
Balance at beginning of year F S 35,426 32,896
Loss on property revaluation YEEHEE = (402)
Effect on foreign currency translation difference M & =58 7 & 2,051 2,932
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37(b)) & M E 2 7 (it 5E37(0)) (37,477) -
Balance at the end of year FREH 35,426

The Group’s property interests held for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties. Upon the
completion of the disposal of 100% equity interest in Lee & Man in
December 2019 (Note 37), the Group does not have any
investment properties as at 31 December 2019.

AEBRBEENABENEEZ MER
mIREARARBERXGE o
MABERBREME - H2019F 12 A%
B IR X 2 1009% I AE 1% (B 5E37)
KEBER2019F12 531 B I EE (] 3%

BRERER2TE —Z-AFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

19 Inventories 19 FE&
As at 31 December
MA12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY TFARK
Raw Materials R # 8 20,105 53,767
Work in Progress &5 - 19,039

Finished goods 2Rk T 15,830 21,396

35,935 94,202

20 Investments in associates 20 BEENTKRE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FAR®
At 1 January M1 A1H 292,975 087,142
Share of losses for the year FE{GFAEIER (11,189) (4,394)
Impairment NEREN (14,971) -

Currency translation differences B E =5 6,239 10,227

At 31 December W12 A318 273,054 292,975
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

20 Investments in associates (Continued) 20 &N TRE @)

Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2019 are as RNEBEZ AR NR2019F12A31H 2
follows: HBWT

Place of business/ Measurement
Name of entity country of incorporation % of ownership interest method
EREB A B R LB R BREDL FEAR
2018

Qidiantongzhou Restaurant Management The PRC 18.92% Equity

(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Qidiantongzhou”) (Note 1)

AHRAZRERGER)BRAR(THRAA]D)  HE ¥ m A
(MEsE1)
Guangzhou yujian xiaomian catering Management The PRC 20.00% Equity

Company Limited (“Yujian xiaomian”) (Note 1)

BMNEBRNEERERBERAR(BR/NE]) H B ¥ m A
(ME&E1)

Shenzhen Love’s Kitchen Internet and Technology The PRC 21.43% 21.43% Equity
Limited Company

A B FEEEEREER AR I ¥ m A

Jiezhi Restaurant Management Limited The PRC 20.00% 20.00% Equity

RYNTREERERBR A A H B ¥ m A

Yuepin Restaurant Management Limited The PRC 20.00% Equity

AT ERERBR A A H B ¥ m A

Tianshuilai (Beijing) Catering Trade Management Co. Ltd The PRC 26.26% Equity

(“Tianshuilai”)
IERRKEERERBBHR AR ([RAKK]) B ¥ m A
Shanghai Seesaw Coffee Company Limited (“Seesaw”) The PRC 25.00% 25.00% Equity
FeAEsmER AR (TES]) H B #m A
Xinyi Technology (Beijing) Company Limited The PRC 42.86% 42.86% Equity
BB EER) R AR H B ¥ m A

Shenzhen SpicyFoook Food Chain Service Co., Ltd. The PRC
(“SpicyFoook”)

25.00% Equity

R IREEEREHRBBER QA Eall=Y A
(M E )

Note 1: Although the Group’s shareholding in Qidiantongzhou and Yujian xiaomian is fizr1: BEAEERFTYURARER/NEFR D
less than 20%, the Group is able to exercise significant influence over Ro0%  REFAUHAFERARBR /NE
Qidiantongzhou and Yuijian xiaomian, because it has the power to appoint one THEEREEH TVHANIBIEZ AR AE
out of seven directors of that company under the Articles of Association of that SRME AEBEREEEZATNLERE
company. Ehz—REF-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

20 Investments in associates (Continued)

20 BME DN BRE @)

(@) The following table illustrates the summarised financial @ TRISFHRH EE- KK

information of Qidiantongzhou, Seesaw and Tianshuilai and
SpicyFoook that are individually material to the Group:

KEmREE(EaEAEEM

EREXNNMBERME
Qidiantongzhou Seesaw Tianshuilai SpicyFoook
FHEA i3 KRR EEE

2018
SRR RMB’000 [a0=000 s RMB’000
SNSL N T ARYE NN TARY

LEROIE RMB’000 [alid=300 s RMB’000
SWNEL N T AR BNSLE T ARK

39,777 BRGEN 39,176 QY 23,846 QLM 5681

206,968 MEVGIZGN 157,475 BRIV 112,506 BRRARFXGE 58,216 BTN
(20,652) PR  (26,278) | (24,553) ] (7,720) BRGREE)
TREIN (44,731 BNEOREE)  (30,475) BMPENER) (23,125 BERED]  (8,250)

WERORR 187,278 BRPAPILE 136,004 BRCERELE 95,130 RCIA-PY

EuRE 140,934 BLARTER 57,450 ERPLPPIE 139,799 BRVLCHEPE 48,267
(8,569) EE(RerIoN = (15,800) IEENGEANN  (6,984) EENUNCEIE  (6,359) I B2Y)]

Current assets MEEE
Non-current assets FRHEE
Current liabilities e E R
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Net assets BEFE
Revenue WA

Loss for the year FRER
Total comprehensive loss 2T 184 5

) (5,620 BEEEE  6,517) BGRE (4,638 BGRES]  (1,257)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

20 Investments in associates (Continued) 20 BME N TIRE @)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the =i ﬁ% ﬁ BHMEBENGASBHRE
carrying amount of the interest in associate recognised in the NERNRBE A Ea2REE LY
consolidated financial statements: BE :
Qidiantongzhou Seesaw Tianshuilai SpicyFoook
THEA i PR iR IE

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
SRS RMB'000 LU0 RMB’000 fafl=Kibls RMB’000 {31 1=5000 s RMB’000
SWNCL N T ARY BNSLE TARY BN TARY BPNSLE T AR

Net assets of the associates HER 72%&%”%@ WEOEN 187,278 FRPZZE 136,004 ! 95,130 | 51,746
Proportion of the Group’s direct < £ Bl A Bt & A A)

ownership interests in the ERBEREER

associates B LRPEE 18.92% FPRNNEAS  25.00% PRIV 26.26% AR 25.00%
Net assets of interest in associate 7 £ [ & {4 Bt & 1 &)

attributable to the Group BRBEEFE 33,812 35,433 30,051 34,001 23,147 24,981 11,982 12,937
Goodwill EES 20,176 20,176 17,520 17,620 14,593 14,593 9,608 9,608
Effect on foreign currency I EB R E

difference 5,606 4,287 3,651 2,490 3,431 2,624 2,991 3,087
Carrying amount of the Group’s 7% 5 ] A B & /A &) 2

interest in the associate w2 EHE 59,594 59,896 51,222 54,011 0 42,098 pLE | 25,632
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE MR RNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

20 Investments in associates (Continued)

(b) Individually immaterial associates

In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, the
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial
associates that are accounted for using the equity method.

20 BiE QN ERE @)

(b) 3&%3‘37{2%%@

B EXFTIERE SRR 2
Sh o AEBIRE TRESDIEA
REEBAAERZEBZE QA
B

As at 31 December
MW12A318
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TFARE

Aggregate carrying amount of individually BRI TERZEEREZ

immaterial associates FRmAE 96,486 111,338
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of:  SEBRANEE 2 A N4EEE

Share of loss of associates FEAL B & N RS B (2,194) (168)
Total comprehensive loss 2HBEERE (2,194) (168)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

21 Goodwill and intangible assets 21 BEREREE
Computer
Goodwill software Trademark Total
mE  EMEH Gl &3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TARE TAR® TAR® TAR®

At 1 January 2018 7A2018F1A1H
Cost [N 45,495 2,369 99,669 147,533
Accumulated amortisation 2 &5t # §5 R E

and impairment — (503) — (503)
Net book amount BRMEFE 45,495 1,866 99,669 147,030

Year ended 31 December # Z20185F12H31H

2018 LEFE
Opening net book amount 4 %] R E /F & 45,495 1,866 99,669 147,030
Additions NE — 1,585 — 1,585
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y& & 1 /& A 7 538,436 6,065 399,677 944,178
Amortisation charge BT W — (756) — (756)
Closing net book amount K R [ /F & 583,931 8,760 499,346 1,092,037

At 31 December 2018 R2018F12H31H

Cost jo@%N 583,931 10,019 499,346 1,093,296
Accumulated amortisation £ 54 45 & R A

and impairment — (1,259) — (1,259)
Net book amount BREEE 583,931 8,760 499,346 1,092,037

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

Goodwill

HE
RMB’000
SN

Year ended 31 December & Z2019512H31H

21 BEREFEEE@®

Computer
software  Trademark
B A e 5k
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TARY

RMB’000
TAR®

2019 LEFE
Opening net book amount  4F %] BR [ )% (& 583,931
Additions NE -
Measurement period 2 AR A

adjustment (Note 38) (P75 38) (3,000)
Amortisation charge BSE Y =
Closing net book amount K ERE FE 580,931

At 31 December 2019

H20195612A31H

Cost X A 580,931
Accumulated amortisation  Z =t 85 R E

and impairment
Net book amount REFE 580,931

8,760 499,346
1,422 -

(2,060)

8,122 499,346

11,441 499,346

(3,319)

8,122 499,346

1,092,037
1,422

(3,000)
(2,060)

1,088,399

1,091,718

(3,319)

1,088,399

(a)

Useful life of intangible assets

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the expected useful life of 5 years.

The trademarks have a legal life of 10 years and is renewable
every 10 years at minimal cost. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group would renew the trademark
continuously and has the ability to do so. Various studies
including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and
environmental trends and brand extension opportunities have
been performed by management of the Group, which support
that the trademarks have no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the trademarked products are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group.
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e B IS AR M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Useful life of intangible assets (Continued)

As a result, the trademarks are considered by the
management of the Group as having an indefinite useful life.
The trademarks will not be amortised until the useful life is
determined to be finite. Instead they will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired.

Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life have been allocated to
groups of CGUs in the food and beverage business segment,
which comprise: (1) Beijing HHG Restaurant Management
Co., Ltd. (“HHG”) and its subsidiaries (the “HHG Group”); and
(2) Beijing New Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd. (“New
Spicy Way”) and its subsidiaries (the “New Spicy Way
Group”).

For the HHG Group, the recoverable amount of the CGUs
has been determined based on a value in use calculation.
The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
forecast approved by management covering a five-year
period, and pre-tax discount rate of 16.1% (2018: 16.2%).
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. If
the pre-tax discount rate had increased by 3.1%, it would
have decreased by 18% for the VIU of the CGU, which would
approximate its carrying amount.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21 BB REFEEE @

(a)

(b)

BIELEEUFERAFH @

At AEBEEERRBERA
BERAERFHY - miREH
EETEMNERFHME TS %
RS ETERERERNR
KRR AR EZ R EETTR
BRI -

BERERRENR

BHERNANE BEMARE
RAGERAFHIBAEDIDESR
EREBOBZRATELEEN
e BE:)IERMERERK
EEARABRITMES]D REWH
Boam(Mmeas®E]): kit
RAREEREERAR AR (T
REDLEMBRAB(HREE
=) -

MMEAREEMs  ReELE
fuzr el £ B IREFERAEER
FTEMER - ZirENIRIEEE
Bt /ERE R F BB % TER
X B #OBT 3T B X £16.1% (2018
F:16.2%) IKAR S K ETEA
T - AFHEZREERE NN
3% BEMEEREH -ZIBE
EDENRBEBRTEERBASG
- B T@BEAEETE TS
R AP R 2K o {w Bk B BT 47 35 K18
131% MEeEEELEHEM ZF A

BB # R 2 18% » H H iR [ {8 48
F=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

21 HEREREEE @
(b) B8R EZRERR @

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

For the New Spicy Way Group, the recoverable amount of
the CGUs has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial forecast approved by management covering a
nine-year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 15.9%.
Management considers it appropriate to apply a financial
forecast covering a nine-year period in the VIU calculation of
the New Spicy Way Group, based on the factors including: (i)
predictability of the trend of operating scale in the chained
hotpot restaurant industry; (i) expected sustainability of
business growth; and (jii) length of period to achieve business
targets. Cash flows beyond the nine year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. If the pre-tax discount rate had increased by 1.8%
or the expected revenue growth rate had been 2% lower than
management’s estimates for each of the nine years during
the forecast period, it would have decreased by 15% for the 15 &K 1% 01 .8% 3k T8 HA Ui A 18 R R
VIU of the CGU, which would approximate its carrying WEIEEGE1K2% - IR EE
amount. Bz EREER/MKI15% &
HEREERE -

My HELEEMNS  ReELE
fuza o< 8 HREFEREE
FTEMEE - ZAtEHIRIEERE
BHOERZENFHME 2 0 %18
B K2 B Bt BT T IR R B15.9% ¢ R
AReREFEANET ERER
B ERUTEEZ R¥HEsE
BrERAEBEFEFEAREN
FHEZUBBANBEE  ZE
EEaE ((EHARERERL
BB 2 A BB M )RR
EBER2AUFEME : RHER
¥KBEZERE - NEHE 2R
EREDIUN%RZEBEFTERRH
B - s8R RV E R AERI 1T EE
EBEASE  BXYRN@BHAEBT
¥ FHRBBREE - W 1E 8l
HEZNAWEFESFE BB

Cash flow projections during the forecast period for the HHG
Group and the New Spicy Way Group are based on the
expected revenue growth rates and gross margins during the
respective forecast period. Forecasted revenue growth rates
and gross margins were determined based on past FERTBPERNMISERRE ZBETRIR
performance and the management’s expectations for the FEEREBEESE - EIEEME
market development. Management believes that any = BFEEAZEREZLIRTM
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions SERgeEE HE T2 E83IR
would not cause the carrying amounts of the CGUs to SEABNZEEEBEETRK

MEAREEFFRESERER
HREZRERERR T ER AR
BRHEZ BHRALREERRE
MESH - FBRARAZERRRE
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exceed their recoverable amounts.

Based on above assessment, management of the Company
are of the view that there is no impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life as at 31 December
2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

22 Trade and other receivables

22 BWE SR HMRE

As at 31 December
MA12H31H

2019
RMB’000
FTAR®

Trade receivables (a)
Other receivables (b)

FE U B FIE ()
H i JE U FRIE ()

14,142
61,161

Total trade and other receivables

FEUE 5 I B Al SRR 48 R

75,303

Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables

provision for impairment of other
receivables

Trade and other receivables — net

B EWE SR IERERE

HL A & U 3R TEURL (B

FEUE 5 & B A RIA — 3R

(226)

(2,623)

72,454

Less: Non-current portion

B SEBVERER 3

(43,116)

Trade and other receivables — current portion & U E 5 & H fth 7818

— B &R

BEERERAE

2018
RMB’000
TAR®

88,857
75,122

163,979

277)

163,702

(43,379

120,323

“E-NEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(@) Trade receivables

22 EWE 5K HMFIE @

() EWE % XKIE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE
Related parties (Note 39(b)) 7 Bk 77 (MY 5£39(b)) 15,247
Third parties F=h 73,610
Subtotal INEE 88,857
Less: provision for impairment R EEE (277)
Trade receivables — net JEWE S FIE — F 5 88,580

The aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BB HHRIARRERRIZER

Within 6 months
6 months to 1 year

61E A R
618 A =14

BEAZERER DT T :
As at 31 December
MR12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARE
13,856 77,395
286 11,462
14,142 88,857
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

22 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 22 EWE 5K HMFIE @
(@) Trade receivables (Continued) (a) EWE 5 FKIE @)
Movement for impairment VERIER:

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM TFARE
As at 1 January »w1A1H 277 —
Impairment provision DRI=R G & 226 277
Written off during the year as uncollectible 45 il #4 /& 7~ 7] Y [@ (277) -
As at 31 December W12 A31H 226 277
Trade receivables are denominated in the following FEWE 5 REIN TG
currencies: H1E :

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARE FARE
RMB AR 14,142 34,089
HKD &I 164
usD ETT 54,604
88,857
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

22 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement for impairment (Continued)

For dine-in and take-out revenue of the Group’s food and
beverage business, the Group’s trading terms with its
customers are mainly on cash and credit card settlement. For
other sales transactions, including sales of finished goods to
customers of the food and beverage business and the
manufacturing and sales of handbags business, a credit
period not exceeding 180 days is granted to the majority of
customers. The credit period provided to customers can vary
based on a number of factors including nature of operations
and Group’s relationship with the customer.

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amount is considered to be the same as their fair
value.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The loss
allowance decreased by RMB51,000 to RMB226,000 for
trade receivables during the current reporting period (2018:
RMB277,000). Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the
calculation of the allowance.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the
Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

22 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b) Other receivables

(c)

(d)

22 EWE S K HMKE @
(b) HibfEWFHE

As at 31 December

Lease deposits
Amount due from related parties (Note 39 (b)) J& Uk 28 B
Loans receivable due from third parties (i)
Advance to employees

Franchise fee

Others

HEZS

BRTEE
RAReEER
HAth

W =T7 E3K()

Less: provision for impairment

B R B B

Other receivables — net

H i & WKIH — F 8

Notes:

(i) The balance includes:

)

Loans receivable of RMB5,610,000 (2018: RMB5,260,000) due
from certain shareholders of an associate of the Group, which
are repayable in March 2021 and bear interest at 7% per
annum. The loans are secured by the equity interests in the
associate of the Group held by the borrowers.

Loans receivable of RMB2,150,000 (2018: RMB3,261,000) due
from a third party controlled by the non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2019, non-current portion mainly
comprised lease deposits and loans receivables.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values of trade and other
receivables approximated their carrying amounts.

M12H831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE
40,502 41,865
FRIE (M 5E39(b)) 9,094 17,336
7,760 8,521
1,765 2,364
= 664
2,040 4,372
61,161 75,122
(2,623) —
58,538 75,122

) EneE

(1) AEEEYETEERARK
H 2 E355,610,0007T A R
(20184 : 5,260,000 A R
) AR2021FE3 AEHE
FRREBT% > EFRAE R
BAENEERE QA RiE
VEE A -

(2 B H—EMEA R EE
R RIS 2 E = ER
2,150,000t A K # (2018
F 13,261,000t ARE) - B
KR %8 RAEN2021F
12A31AEE-

(c) ®2019412A318 - FENHBHEH
FTEREHEREREWRENR-

(d) #2019 128318 EHEH R

HMRBZAABEAREKEE
& e
BEERERAT —ZE-NEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE MR RNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

23 Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

BARBEHBOESE
HARREEEE SR

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARE

2,000 2,000
3,000 —

Opening net amount of the year FUFE
Additions NE
Closing net amount of the year FREFH

5,000 2,000

The balance represents the investments in certain unlisted
companies at an original amount of RMB2,000,000. As at 31
December 2019, the fair value of the investments approximates
their carrying amount as there is no observable change in fair value
subsequent to the recent investment made by the Group.

24 Convertible bonds

24

ERIEHRETIIHE LT AR ZRIAE
& £ 882,000,000 A R ¥ o 7220194
12H31H  KREZAABEEAERERR
BERE REAARAEERIOETZ
WERAREBEVEATERE -

CE: Y, 8¢

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARE

Current REE D

Convertible bonds A R & 5 19,800
Non-current FEREE 2

Convertible bonds IR E % 448,380 517,592

As at 31 December 2019, current portion of the Convertible Bonds
amounted to HK$38,053,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB34,183,000), which represented interest payable commencing
from the issue date to 23 November 2020 and was calculated at
the coupon rate of 3% per annum. The remaining amount of the
Convertible Bonds were classified as non-current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

24 Convertible bonds (Continued)

The major terms and conditions of the convertible bonds issued by
the Company (the “Convertible Bonds”) are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Interest rate

The Company shall pay an interest on the Convertible Bonds
at 3% per annum.

Conversion price

The Convertible Bonds will be convertible into the Company’s
shares at the initial Conversion Price of HK$1.18 per share,
subject to adjustments. The Conversion Price will be subject
to adjustment for, amongst others, consolidation, subdivision
or reclassification of shares, capitalisation of profits or
reserves, capital distribution, dividends, rights issues of
shares or options over shares, rights issues of other
securities, modification of rights of conversion and other
offers to shareholders.

Availability period for the Company to
issue the Convertible Bonds

The availability period for the Company to issue the
Convertible Bonds is a fixed term of two years commencing
from 13 November 2016 and neither party will have the right
to extend.

Maturity

The fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the Convertible
Bonds, or subject to the agreement of the bondholder, the
seventh anniversary of the date of issue.

Redemption on maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled, the Company will redeem the Convertible Bond at
an amount equal to the principal amount on the maturity
date, plus accrued interest and all other amounts accrued or
outstanding under the Convertible Bonds which remain
unpaid on the maturity date. The Company may not redeem
the Convertible Bonds at its option prior to the maturity date,
except on redemption on change of control and redemption
on delisting as described below.

24 TR EF @)

ZIN/N

AT ABRES ((ATRRE

7)) EBIERRAFRFLT

(i)

(ii)
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(iv)

(v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

24 Convertible bonds (Continued)

(vij Redemption at the option of the
bondholder

(1)

Redemption on change of control

Following the occurrence of a change of control, the
bondholder will have the right at its option, to require
the Company to redeem in whole but not in part such
holder’s Convertible Bonds.

The redemption price is the HK dollar equivalent
amount which is the outstanding principal amount, plus
the amount of interest representing 8% of the internal
rate of return of the principal amount of the Bond from
the date of issue to the payment date (the “Early
Redemption Amount”).

Redemption on Delisting

In In the event that the Company’s shares cease to be
listed or admitted to trading on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the bondholder shall have the right, at its
option, to require the Company to redeem, in whole but
not in part only, such bondholder’s Convertible Bonds
at the Early Redemption Amount.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using
a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond
at the issue date. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated
to the conversion option and recognised in shareholders’
equity on special reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

24 Convertible bonds (Continued) 24 TR EF @)
The movement in the components of the Convertible Bonds during 220184 N2019F12 B31H IEFE -
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 are as follows: ATRRESFAK D 2 BT
Liability Equity
component component Total
8EHD I &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE TFARH FAR®

As at 1 January 2018 »20184F1A1H - - -

Issuance of Convertible bonds (i) BT A B E () 537,933 128,088 666,021

Interest expenses (i) A2 F 3 (i) 4,125 — 4,125

Exchange difference PEH ZRE (4,666) - (4,666)

As at 31 December 2018 M2018412 A31 H 537,392 128,088 665,480

As at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1H 537,392 128,088 665,480

Conversion of Convertible bonds (jii) # #2 7] 32 i% {& 2 (iii) (97,612) (23,794) (121,406)

Interest expenses (i) ) BB X (i) 35,920 — 35,920

Exchange difference PEH ZRE 6,863 - 6,863

As at 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 482,563 104,294 586,857

Notes: B 5 -

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company issued Convertible [0) HZE2018F 12431 B IFEE - AR A E1T
Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of HK$750,000,000 (equivalent to Al % (& % 2 AN 4 48 %8 /750,000,000 7T
approximately RMB666,021,000). (#8 % 7 47666,021,000 T A R #) ©

(i) The interest expense of RMB35,920,000 (2018: RMB4,125,000) was (ii) F B B 5%35,920,0007T A ¥ (20184 :
calculated using the effective interest method. 4,125,0007T A R#) Th 5B B R A K5

=

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Convertible Bonds was (iil HZE2018F12A31BIFEE - WEAJ K
converted. During the year ended 31 December 2019, Convertible Bonds with BEEEEIR B E2019F12A31H It &
principal amount of HK$139,323,520 were converted into 118,070,780 E - AN& % 5139,323,520% 7T 7 A # j% (&
ordinary shares of the Company, which resulted in an increase in share capital %402 E i AN A F118,070,780 I% & i A%
of HK$11,807,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB10,074,000) and share & AR AN N AR 9 5 8 5 BIlEE AN 11,807,000
premium of HK$129,394,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB111,332,000), B ot (FB 8 7 410,074,000 A K #) &
respectively. 129,394,000 7T (48 & 7 49111,332,000 7T

ARE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

25 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and
short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The deposits carry prevailing market interest rates.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

25 BERREEEY

HeRBLSENEEALEBE Y
HeRENEABSEARANTE
B9 1T 17 4K o 2% S5 17 SRR 0 A 08 A
BB o

RekReEEMUTIERE:

currencies:
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FARM
RMB NG 71,064 57,506
HKD 7B T 49,764 206,499
usD ETT 10,457 35,275
MMK Kb 2,967
THB ZR ek 17
Euro BL T 13
302,277

26
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2018
RMB’000
FAR®

RMB’000
TAR®

Investment in wealth management products

RIEMEmMITE

62,792

42,194

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all

denominated in RMB.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent
investment in wealth management products issued by listed banks
in the PRC and redeemable within one year. The fair values of
investments in wealth management products are based on cash
flow discounted using the expected rate of return (ranged from
3.2%-3.6% per annum) based on management estimates and are
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). Management is
not aware of any observable significant change in macro-economic
environment or fluctuation in short-term market interest rate as at
31 December 2019 that may significantly affect the expected rate
of return of the unlisted wealth management product invested by
the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of these financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Other current assets and other non-
current assets

27

RAREBESTEELHEHSE
STABREZERMEE @

BEARnEBEFEEEEHTABEL
TREEERNTRH EMRITETZ
BHEREE WAE—FARED-
BYERREZARBEEDEARER
Bt IRBEATERE®RE(F X
NF32%E36%) MR ZEERER
Y EAREBEEBREIRAN (T
3.3)° R2019%F12A31H EEE L
THBEREBRERSBEEMNABRERSE
AL EHMIERE LR LE - m
AR ErErsEMEEELT

BYERZEHRREE-
RBREAM ERAARZEGARA
ZERAREBEAEBEZEHT AR

HmZEMEEZREME-
HtWRBEEREMIER
BHEE

As at 31 December

Prepayments (a) B FRIE (a)

Deductible VAT input

A] R (B 1R

M12B31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARM
25,772 53,660
35,695 33,152
61,467 86,812
BREREBRASE —hWEFEFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

27 Other current assets and other non-

current assets (Continued)

27 %f&)ﬁiﬂﬁ%&ﬂf&#iﬁ

= )

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARY

Non-current
Current

2,075 4,745
59,392 82,067

61,467 86,812

(a) Prepayments

(a) ENRE

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARH® FARE

Prepayments for raw materials

Prepayments for property management fees,

water electricity and fuel

Prepayments for software and digital services #1 {4 N & F R 2

Prepayment for property, plant and

JR# L 2 FEA 5RIR
MEERE KERKEZ

12,507 8,164

5,612 6,399

3,693 3,170

equipment 461 4,745
Prepayments for rental MEZBEMNFRE 161 23,284
Amounts due from related parties (Note 39(b)) J& U B8 Bk 5 2018 (M 3139(b)) - 738

Others

3,438 7,160

25,772 53,660

(b) As at 31 December 2019, non-current portion mainly
comprised prepayments for property, plant and equipment

and software and digital services.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

28 Trade and other payables

28 BRNEZRHEMARE

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding ENESREMTBIEZERIEE SE
for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period ERFEERYRAZANESE -E5

obtained for trade purchases is 7 to 180 days.

BEZFHUREHRATE180K -

As at 31 December

Trade payables(a)
Other payables and accruals (b)

MW12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® FARY
FEH & 55K TE () 50,915 91,413
Hih e IE R TEIRE A (D) 78,145 274,999

129,060 366,412

(@) Trade payables

() ENEZXKE

The aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice FENE S FBEBRNRERREHRE
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HEHIZERE®S O T :

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FAR®

Within 6 months
Over 6 months

61E A AR 50,658 91,023
61& A A+ 257 390

50,915 91,413
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&

)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

28 Trade and other payables (Continued) 28

(a) Trade payables (Continued)

Trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

ENE S R HMRE @

(a) B E S FE @
FEN B 5 ERIE A T 5 S M EHE

As at 31 December

RMB AR
HKD BT
usD ETT

R12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TFARE
50,915 71,273
11,112
9,028
91,413

(b) Other payables and accruals

m)%@@ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARM
Wages, salaries and other employee TE HehEMESREF
benefits 48,364
Payables for renovation costs EAREIEIF 27,957
Payables for franchisee FE 00 B2 7 3R OB 4,613
Payables for transportation expenses ENRBEER 2,895
Tax payables (excluding current income tax  J& < 5 18 (7~ & 4% B 23 P 15 ¢
liabilities) BB 1,456
Payables for rental expenses ENHEEEA 25,641
Interest payable FEASTFI B 6,393
Consideration payable for acquisition of BB B A R ERARE
subsidiaries (Note 38) (P 5£38) 142,500
Dividend payable J& - BB, 363
Others Hh, 14,817
274,999

(c) As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of trade and other
payables approximated their carrying amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IS AR M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

29 Deferred taxation

The analysis of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

29 JEIEHIE
BEFREMEE/(AE)DTWT

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARM
Deferred income tax assets RIEMSMEE 25,205 31,388
Deferred income tax liabilities REMGHAE (123,579) (124,868)
The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year is as ERNECFEREESESNT
follows:
Payroll and Customer
accrued Amortisation  Unused tax loyalty
expenses differences losses program Leases Others Total
IR ABARK EFBH
EER BHER [ HE HE Hity it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE
At 1 January 2018 H20185181A 3,381 6,745 201 - - 478 10,805
Acquisition of subsidiaries 4z i B BB 2 & 5,449 4,386 8,870 3,296 - 511 22,512
(Charged)/credited to profit (REZE K ) /5t A
or loss B (3,319) (1,229) 3,004 (86) - (117) (1,741)
Currency translation EkpEER
differences (188) — — — — — (188)
At 31 December 2018 2018128 31H 5,323 9,908 12,075 3,210 - 872 31,388
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEM B A7
(Note 37(v)) (F3£37(0)) - (2,425) (451) - - - (2,876)
(Charged)/credited to profit (RBZE K ), /5t A
or loss B& (1,202) (4,578) (1,562) (1,303) 4112 1,173 (3,360)
Currency translation ERHBEEE
differences - 53 - - - - 53
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12831H 4121 2,958 10,062 1,907 4112 2,045 25,205
BREERERAR —ZE-NFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

29 Deferred taxation (Continued) 29 E Bl EH )
The movement in deferred income tax liabilities during the year is as FERNELEFRESEHABESEE WO T :
follows:
Fair value Fair value
adjustment change on
on intangible investment Amortisation
assets property  differences Others Total
AREEAE AAEEAE BHER Hth &ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARY FAR® FAR® FAR®
At 1 January 2018 A20185F181H (21,800) (2,784) — — (24,584)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y B8 M B A 7] (99,919) — - - (99,919)
Credited to profit or loss & A8z — 80 - 42 122
Currency translation ERBREERE
differences — (487) — — (487)
At 31 December 2018 201812 H31H (121,719) (8,191) — 42 (124,868)
Disposal of subsidiaries & [f & 2 7
(Note 37(b)) (Ff7E37(0)) - 3,493 - (42) 3,451
Charged to profit or loss R Bz B (248) (164) (1,448) — (1,860)
Currency translation BERBmE=E
differences - (802) - — (802)
At 31 December 2019 742019512 A31H (121,967) (164) (1,448) — (123,579

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had tax losses of RMB59,788,000 (2018:
RMB41,186,000) to carry forward, which were not recognised as
deferred tax assets as management considered that the utilisation
of these tax losses in the foreseeable future is not probable, of
which an amount of RMB19,977,000 would expire through year
2019 to 2023 (2018: RMB20,095,000 would expire through year
2019 to 2023), the amount of RMB39,811,000 (2018:
RMB21,199,000) with no expiry date.
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0] B R R R E R s A2 B m st
BT 4 88 2 T35 B 18 1E 1 58 - 122019
F12A31H AEEAEE 2 REE
18 /59,788,000 A R ® (20184 :
41,186,000t ARM) - IR ERER
ABEAERAREAZSHEEEZ
AREMEM MU AGHBERAELT
TRi5 & & - £ #19,977,0007T A R ¥
18 R 20194 ZE 20234 J& jm (20184 :
20,095,000 A R ¥ & R2019F &
20234 J@ M) © M39,811,0007T A R
(20184F : 21,199,0007T A R # ) & 5|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

29 Deferred taxation (continued)

30

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary difference attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB38,580,000 (2018:
RMB15,733,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

29 IE 7 B 18 (@)

R4E A B2 FTS % - B 20084 1
A1BE# - B E A R AT EUE F M
ERzZBEEHEHMBRHEE AR
ANEEEMITEH BOEREZB
M RRATERRKGA gD
TREESE WRAVMBERRTER
EERNTENBAR R AN T
M 2= %838,580,0007C A R # (20184F :
15,733,0007C A R #) 5t 42 i 1& 7 18 £
1o

Borrowings 30 X
As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Current B &
Secured HEA
Bank borrowings AT IE -
Unsecured £ 45 1
Bank borrowings H|ITERK 5,000
5,000
Non-current JEENER
Unsecured A
Loans from third parties(c) FE=FEFH0 229,742
Total borrowings BB 234,742

BRERER2TE —Z-AFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

30 Borrowings (Continued)

(a) Maturity of borrowings

30 ER @

(@) EXZEHA

As at 31 December

6 months or less
6-12 months
1-2 years

2-5 years

6 A KT
6= 1218 A
1524
2FE54F

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
5,000 —
- 5,000
1,200 228,542
= 1,200
234,742

(b) Weighted average annual interest rates

(b) oI F R &R

As at 31 December

Bank borrowings
Loans from third parties

L=
[ 2

o 5
w g
pal

MR12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FAR®
5.22% 5.73%
3.48% 1.25%

(c) Loans from third parties

(c) BE=FERX

As at 31 December

A former director of the Company (i)
Other third parties (i)

RNGE—ZETEE()
H A 5 =77 (i)

R12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FARE
228,542
1,200
229,742

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019



30 Borrowings (Continued)

31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

(i) The amount represents a loan from a former director of the 0]

Company of HK$260,000,000. The loan bears interest at 3.75%
per annum and is originally repayable on 31 December 2020.
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”) in relation to the disposal of Lee & Man, the
above loan was set off against the consideration upon
completion of the disposal on 27 December 2019. Refer to
Note 37 for details.

(i) The amount represent loans from third parties which bear (ii)
interest at 10% per annum and are repayable in April 2021.

30 fBER ¢

FeBEEREARA —BAE
% 7 B 7260,000,0005 7T » &%
BFFEIT75% B HRELAR
2020F12AGIHEE- RIEAF
Eﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ(Zé‘iETﬁ%*ﬁ(m%Tﬁ
&) Bl EFR2019F12 A 27
EItH mm BAEEE -5
BN EST -

HEBEREEZAZET &
F R E10% 51 B B 7B 2021 F4
AEE-

Contract liabilities 31 GHER

Prepaid card R
Customer loyalty programme B RS
Advance from customers EFE#ER

Advances from group-purchasing websites EE AR R
Amounts due to related parties (Note 39(b)) JiE < B B 5 378 (M 7E39(b))
Others HA

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARY
51,207 59,992
7,628 12,839
2,422 5,646
130 212
- 6
359 566
61,746 79,261

BRERER2TE —Z-AFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

31 Contract liabilities (continued)

31 68 Ewm

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities: ) HedaEBRIAZKA:
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRBATRAREHRHER WA
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried- ML hBEARBZ o8-

forward contract liabilities.

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A1BLEFE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE

Revenue recognised that was included in
the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the period

Prepaid card

Customer loyalty programme

Advance from customers

Advances from group-purchasing website

Amounts due to related parties

Others

FABIEHBEREZE
BN

SEANRR 10,839
P AMEE 374
PR 1,544
& B8 48 0k 2 3 1
e R B 5 308 —
HAitb 2,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

Deferred government grants

32 IE fE BT #E BY

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

Opening net amount of the year FHFRR
Additions NE
Amortisation B8
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEW B A A

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARE
3,761 2,175
6,246 145
(4,564) (1,054)

= 2,495

5,443 3,761

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group received
government grants amounting to RMB6,246,000 (2018:
RMB145,000), mainly for the establishment of restaurants and
purchase of manufacturing machineries. Such government grants
were recorded as deferred government grants and would be
credited to the statement of comprehensive income over the useful
life of the corresponding assets using straight-line method.

Share-based payments

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 18 May 2011 for the
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible persons.
The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years from
adoption of such scheme and will expire on 17 May 2021.

33

HEC019F12A31IB IEEE - KN&
B U B B AT # BH6,246,0007T A R
(20184 : 145,000t AR¥E) T B
RHAREERBEEEERWM ZS5HK
BB st NEER T B - W5 E
REGEERBEEEZNFERFHA
ATAZAERER -

BARR A7 5 B 1 A K

ARABRE—TBR2011F5 8180 &
BZREBE DEMNERETE(H
D LEBEERAERAL F
SR M Z B REFT1I0FAB K - W
R2021F5 17 B fg@m °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

33 Share-based payments (Continued)

Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company could at
their discretion grant options to () any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);
or (ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include
any director, employee or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any customer,
supplier or adviser as may be determined by the directors of the
Company from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the
Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options might be granted under the Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 82,500,000 shares, representing 10% of the
Shares in issue at the time dealings in the Shares first commence
on the Stock Exchange and approximately 5.23% of the Shares in
issue at the date of this annual report. The maximum number of the
shares of the Company in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue on the last date of such
12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company was obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange.

Options may be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
could be exercised) as may be determined by the directors of the
Company (which shall be less than ten years from the date of issue
of the relevant option). Options may be granted without initial
payment. The exercise price is determined at the discretion of the
Board but shall not be less than the highest of (i) nominal value of
the shares of the Company; (i) the closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the
grant of the options; and (i) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

33 Share-based paymentsiContinued) 3B LURGAERSIR@
(a) Employee Share Option Scheme (a) EEERES &
Movements in the number of share options outstanding FANRBARGTE S ATEZEIR
during the year under this scheme and their weighted average RS E REMEFEYITEE &
exercise prices are as follows: Ban T
2019
Average
exercise price
per share Number of
option options
BHERE

THITEE BREHE
HK$ (Thousands)

BT (F 1)
As at 1 January »1A18 - —
Granted during the year FRRE 1.08 31,573
As at 31 December M®12A31H 1.08 31,573
Exercisable at 31 December M12 A31 BRI {71 — -
No options expired during the periods covered by the above FRARENHE A EEERE
tables. ZIHR o
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e B I AR R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

33 Share-based payments(continued)

(a) Employee Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options outstanding at 31 December 2019 have the
following exercise period and exercise prices:

Exercise Period

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

33 URHAERSRE@

(a) EEBREE @

MR2019F 12 A31H K 171 &
[t 2 fTREBR R ATEB T ¢

Exercise price
(per share)

Number of options

THEH TEEER) BREHE
HK$ (Thousands)
& T (F4)
From 31 December 2019 to 30 December 2024
(both days inclusive) HK$1.08 6,315
H2019F 12 A31 A £2024512 A30R (REEEMA) 1.08/8 7T
From 31 December 2020 to 30 December 2025
(both days inclusive) HK$1.08 6,315
B2020F 12 31 A E2025F 12 A30H (REEEMA) 1.08/8 7T
From 31 December 2021 to 30 December 2026
(both days inclusive) HK$1.08 6,315
H2021F 1231 HZ=2026F 12 A30H (BEEREMA) 1.087 7T
From 31 December 2022 to 30 December 2027
(both days inclusive) HK$1.08 6,315
B2022412 A31HE2027 12 H30R (BEEEMA) 1.08% 7T
From 31 December 2023 to 30 December 2028
(ooth days inclusive) HK$1.08 6,315
B2023F 12 A1 HE2028F 12 A0H (RIZEEMA) 1.08/8 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IS AR M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

33 Share-based payments(continued)

(a) Employee Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options
outstanding at 31 December 2019 is 7 years (2018 — not
applicable).

)

Fair value of options granted

Share Option Scheme fE AR AT 2l

The weighted average fair value of options granted
during the period determined using the binomial model
was HK$0.42 per option. The subjectivity and
uncertainty of the values of options are subject to a
number of assumptions and the limitation of the model.
The significant inputs into the model were weighted
average share price of HK$1.08 at the grant date,
exercise price shown above, volatility of 35.58% to
36.55%, zero expected dividend vyield, contractual
option life ranging from 5.14 to 9.14 years, and an
annual risk-free interest rate of 1.66% to 1.71%. The
volatility measured at the standard deviation of
continuously compounded share returns is based on
statistical analysis of daily share prices over the 5.14 to
9.14 years.

33 URGBABEBSR@

(@) EEBREE @

M2019F 12 A31H » M ARTTFE
PRz MEFIBTENTEHA
7F (2018F —T @A) »

EhBEREZLAE
(=]

As at 11 November 2019
Fair value
M2019%F11 A11 8
AREE
HK$’000 RMB’000
TET FAR®

13,337 11,704

FTR_DEANENFE 28
W% B AR R 2 N 15
AREEAESHEREL2
BrLoEREBE ETEK
FTHEUESZEBZR
ZAER 2 RFIRR o sz 8 A
ZERBABEAENRER
BHEIZ in#EFHRE1.08%8
T EXFIRZITEE K
&) R3558% % 36.55% &
TEERIR Bz R - AR 2
BHFEN F5.145F0.14F
FEEERRFE1.66%E
1.71% - IREEE AR KD E
WMEBREEHEZ R X
THEPBAS14E914F [
SAREZHFTOW -

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

33 Share-based payments(continued)

(b) Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 11 November 2019 for a term of 5 years
commencing from the adoption date, subject to any early
termination as may be determined by the Board pursuant to
the terms of the Share Award Scheme. The purposes of the
Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the contributions by
certain employees and to provide them with incentives in
order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (i) to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

Subject to the Share Award Scheme rules, the Board may
select the employee(s) to participate in the Share Award
Scheme and determine the number of shares to be awarded
(the “Awarded Shares”) to the respective selected grantees,
the applicable vesting date and make an award out of the
pool of issued shares held by a professional trustee (the
“Trustee”) to be appointed to administer the Share Award
Scheme to any selected grantee. The Awarded Shares will
only comprise existing shares which are purchased from the
open market by the Trustee out of cash contributed by the
Company. The vesting and transfer of Awarded Shares to
selected grantees are subject to the compliance with the
Company’s articles of association and all applicable laws and
regulations (including without limitation, the Listing Rules and
the public float requirements thereunder and the Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs).

The maximum number of Awarded Shares shall not exceed 4%
of the Company’s share capital in issue from time to time.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any shares held by it under the Share Award Scheme. All
cash income and the sale proceeds of non-scrip distribution
declared in respect of a share held upon the trust under the
Share Award Scheme will be applied towards (a) the payment
of the fees, costs and expenses of the trust and (b) the
remainder, if any, remain as part of the trust fund.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

3B UBRBAERNSR@
(b) B 17 3E B 5T 2 m)

33 Share-based payments(continued)

(b) Share Award Scheme (Continued)

On 11 November 2019, the Board resolved to grant an
aggregate of 43,413,260 Awarded Shares (representing
approximately 2.75% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2019) to three selected
grantees (“Awardees”). The amount of contribution by the
Awardees for the relevant Awarded Shares shall be HK$0.54
per Awarded Share, being 50% of the average closing price
per share of approximately HK$1.08 for 20 business days
immediately preceding the grant of the Awarded Shares.
Assuming all the vesting criteria and conditions have been
fulfilled, such Awarded Shares granted shall be vested in the
Awardees in five equal tranches on 31 December 2019,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares, based on the difference
between the market value of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant and the consideration to be contributed by the
selected grantees, is charged as employee benefit expenses
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the respective vesting periods.

R2019F 11 A H  EFEHS

MZRBEEXEA(ERADA
H % 143,413,260 5% #2 B A% 19 (48
BN AR R R2019F12A31 8
BBEITREBE 2 H2.75%) « &
BAREBEERROIELHSE
18 & & 0% 2B A% 19 0.54 7% JT (8D
BRAD P B B 1 S8 B AR 19 BT 20 (&
BEAZERFHRTEL.08
BIL250%) c B FTE B E
ERGEHEEEER BEZ2E#H
REN D 78 7 B 20194F ~ 2020
£+ 20214 ~ 2022 F 2023412
A31H 5 AEESEH A RERA
=

RBHE L A AR ™ E R
BEXBABINREZZEG
q BRpEOzAABED R
EERBHEANGE2ERER
WA fE B 18 M S5 BR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE MR RNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

33 Share-based payments(continued)

(b) Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Movement of the shares granted under the Share Award
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2019 is as

33 URBABEBMSR@

(b)

% 17 5% B 51 &l (@)

B E2019F12A31H L FE R
Ry B Bl IR B fp 2

follows: [N
2019

Average
exercise price Number of
per awarded awarded
share shares

BREBRG
THITEE RBROHE
HK$ (Thousands)
BT (F1)
As at 1 January ®1A18 - —
Granted during the year FREED 0.54 43,413
Vested during the year FANEHB - -
As at 31 December w12 A31H 0.54 43,413

(c) Expenses arising from share-based
payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share-based payment
transactions recognised during the period as part of
employees benefit expenses were as follows:

(c)

URGHBER 2R
SEEZHEX

HAERAREERMA 8D
ZABMDRERZNRRBEE
ZHAXEEET

Year ended
31 December
2019

RMB’000

TARY

Share option scheme BREETE
Share award scheme AR 10 BEEp &t &)

2,782
5,399

8,181

202 Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

34 Cash flow information 34 BEeREEH
(a) Cash generated from/(used in) operation (@) REEKFMSB(FFA)
R&

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARY BN

Loss before taxation from KB Ty 2 BRBAEE
Continuing operations BHEKEER (79,257) (7,474)
Discontinued operations PRI ET (32,126) 4,239
Loss before income tax including discontinued MRETEHATEE(BREEALE
operations LT (111,383) (3,235)
Adjustments for: FE
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries before B OBEINEBEFEN D
reclassification of foreign currency translation Ef B AR EIE
reserve 39,994 —

DELENB AR 2

Reclassification of foreign currency translation

=
reserve on disposal of subsidiaries BmE A 7,637 -
Depreciation and amortisation Pr & N 8 177,250 28,724
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME - BB NMFRERE
(Note 15) (Mf5E15) 3,192 -
Amortisation of deferred government grants 3% AT R 7 B 5
(Note 32) (Pff 5£32) (4,564) (1,054)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment T8 (- 782 & 7008 B 5 = 1,045
Finance expenses-net B i5 B R FE 60,505 6,771
Share of loss of associates (Note 20) e 1 B = A R ES 18 (M9 7E20) 11,189 4,394
Impairment losses on investment in an associate  — R B & A 7138 & 89 (&
(Note 20) 518 (M 3£ 20) 14,971 -
Non-cash employee benefits expense — share FHELEERMFAL — UL
based payments (Note 33) 19 A EERE AT 3 (T 5233) 8,181 -
Fair value adjustment to derivatives (Note 7) PTETAERAREBEERARZ
(M5E7) - 1,029
Fair value adjustment to investment WEMEARBEERE
property (Note 18) (Mf5E18) = 402
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME WMERZEBISE
equipment (Note 7) (FFsE7) 1,266 650
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets (Note 7) & {F FA#EE =Wz (M:E7) (1,340) —
Net impairment losses on financial assets EHMEERBERETRE 2,849 277
Net exchange differences N Z 55 E (3,901) 2,085
Interest income on financial assets at fair value EAnBEAEAEHEE
through profit or loss (Note 6) FFABRCERMEENE
WA (B 7E6 (2,197) (883)
Interest income on loans (Note 6) BERF B WA (H7E6) (732) (397)
Decrease in trade and other receivables EUWE 5 & H fth ZE e 7,184 60,412
Decrease/(increase) in other operating assets Hap 2 & ERL /(3 m) 3,252 (86,812)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEm), md (20,905) 8,795
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities A BB ORD), 1 (17,075) 79,261
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  JE & 5 & H b 5k IBIE fin,~
G 16,910 (164,393)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations K EBHSE (TR B 192,283 (62,929)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

34 Cash flow information (Continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation

34 REREER @

(b) EHFEH K

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FAR®

Cash and cash equivalents

Liquid investments

Borrowings — repayable within one year
Borrowings — repayable after one year
Lease liabilities

RehBREEFEEY
mEBERE
fER— —FREE
fER — —FRER
HE&RE

&

131,285 302,277
62,792 42,194
X)) (5,000)
(1,200) (229,742)
(380,289) —

Net (debt)/cash

(&%) BReFaE

(192,412) 109,729

Cash and liquid investments
Gross debt — fixed interest rates
Gross debt — variable interest rates

RBeRRBERE
BHRE TS
BBEE ¥

194,077 344,471
(5,000) (228,542)
(381,489) (6,200)

Net (debt)/cash

(&%) B &8

(192,412) 109,729

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019



34 Cash flow information (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued)

(c)

34 BEREEH @
(b) B FEER @

Borrowings.  Borrowing.
Liquid due within due after Lease
Cash investments 1year 1 year liabilities Total
&R —-E#
e RBHRE HEER BHEER HEEE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARE FTARE TARE TARE TARE TARE

Net cash as at R2018F1 8182

1 January 2018 BEFE 398,033 27,000 (221,000) - - 204,033
Cash flows Bene (123,983) 15,194 33,680 - - (75,109)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U EE B A A 17,964 - (38,680) (1,200) - (21,916)
Currency translation ElmEER
differences 10,263 - - (7,542) - 2,721
Other non-cash movements ~ H {t1 3£ 3 4 & &) - - 221,000 (221,000) - -
Net cash as at R2018F128318 2

31 December 2018 REeFH 302,277 42,194 (5,000) (229,742) - 109,729
Recognised on adoption of  £L#V A i B R R 5 &

HKFRS 16 BIE1655 4 R - - - - (369,228) (369,228)

302,277 42,194 (5,000)  (229742)  (369,228) (259,499)

Cash flows RenE (159,742) 48,606 - - 127,660 16,624
Acquisition — leases i - HE - - - - (132,702)  (132,702)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR (9,646) (29,000) - 233,558 - 194,912
Currency translation EHhEER

differences (1,604) - - (5,016) - (6,620)
Other non-cash movements ~ H ft1 3£ 37 4 & &) - 992 - - (6,019) (5,027)
Net cash as at R2019F12A318 2

31 December 2019 ReTE 131,285 62,792 (5,000) (12000 (380,289) (192,412)

Significant non-cash transactions

(i) The purchase of property, plant and equipment
amounting to RMB17,979,000 have not been settled as

at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB27,957,000).

(c) EXFBREXRS

M 2019412 A 31 H -
BEDE BELXE
17,979,000 7T A & # (2018
F 1 27,957,0007T A R )
R EEE ©

U)

BREREBERAT

—E-NEERH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B I AR R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

34 Cash flow information (Continued) 34 BEREER @)
(c) Significant non-cash transactions (Continued) (c) EXHFREXRE W
(i) In December 2019, loans due to a third party and the iy H2019F128 ENF =

respective interest payable in an aggregate amount of
HK$273,746,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB245,907,000) were set off against the
consideration receivable in relation to the disposal of
Lee & Man (Note 37).

FERREBEMSTES
273,746,000 T (M & %
47245,907,0007C A R #E) 2
KRB ER X HEREZE
WARAE (MF5E37) ©

(i)  Refer to Note 16 and Note 34(b) for the addition to iy E@EEMFEARAEEEZLHE
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities respectively. EBE EoR28MW=
16 S Bt 5% 34(p) °
35 Share capital 35 IR
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZERHE |
HKD’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: TSR EEO10E T2 LB :
Authorized: JETE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 201841 A1 H ~ 20184
and 31 December 2019 12 4318 k201912 A31H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Number of
ordinary shares Amount Amount
ZEREAE 8 8
HKD’000 RMB’000
FET FTAR®
As at 31 December 2018 R 2018F 12 A31 H 1,460,593,220 146,059 122,949
Share converted from AmkESER
convertible bonds (Note 24) Bt (Bt 5 24) 118,070,780 11,807 10,074
As at 31 December 2019 7R2019F 12 A31 H 1,578,664,000 157,866 133,023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

36 Commitments 36 HiE

(a) Operating lease commitments — Group (@) BREHEHRE — XK
as lessee fERAMEA
As the adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, the lease R 2019F1 A1 K4 & 5 B
commitment disclosed only included the short-term lease, BHREERE165 FIEE2M
low-value lease and lease contracts signed with lease terms EREEAEEHHEE KEE
has not commenced. As at 31 December 2018, the Group HMERBIINYESHAESRE N
had commitments to make the following aggregate minimum AFEBZHEE X - 2018F 12
payments under non-cancelable operating leases in respect A31H AEBEAEREIA
of its offices, warehouses and restaurants: E -REREERETAIHHEL

EHEXNATRENRERE

As at
31 December
2018
20184
12A31H
RMB’000
FAR®
No later than 1 year —F R 140,213
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years — A EB RAF R 301,405
Later than 5 years BFEUE 22,686
464,304
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAEIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but HBEFROFTHBREEZER
not yet incurred is as follows: iR NN

As at 31 December
M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FAR®

Property, plant and equipment LE N 6,550
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37 Discontinued operations

As disclosed in Note 2.1, Lee & Man was sold on 27 December

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

37 El/n\ -Itl%(:(é

£

WM E2AREEIN  ARABER

2019 and is reported in the current period as discontinued
operations. Financial information relating to the discontinued
operations for the period to the date of disposal is set out below.

(@) Financial performance and cash flow
information

The financial performance and cash flow information
presented are for the period from 1January 2019 to 27
December 2019 and the year ended 31 December 2018.

2019F 12 A27TH L EE X W R A E R
EWMAERIEKEEBL - BHEE &I
KEXEBRERNELERMZUBE
BIER T3 o

(a) i{{?’]’%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ

T~ & 7 )k B2019F1 818 &
201912 A27H M K & =
2018F 12831 H L F & 2 81 &
%iﬁ&fﬁi/mgéﬂ'

For the period from
1 January 2019 to
27 December 2019
H2019F1H1H

For the year ended
31 December 2018

£2019F12H27H HE20184F
HE 12A31HIEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARY
Revenue WA 444,751 383,899
Expenses X (429,246) (379,660)
Profit before taxation B B A1 v ) 15,505 4,239
Income tax expense FT 1S i Sz i (2,991) (3,324)
Profit after income tax of BRIFEEER 2 BRAG
discontinued operations i 18 % 7 915
Loss on disposal of equity interest in & 7 9 ¥ N 1R & fT H &
discontinued operations before ERIEEEEBRES
reclassification of foreign currency 18 (3B TS 74)
translation, net of income tax (Pt 5E37(b))
(Note 37(b)) (39,994) —
Reclassification of foreign currency R HEEREFHHEC K I
translation reserve on discontinued & & ¥ 5 2 N EEHRE
operations upon disposal 1 (7,637) —
(Loss)/profit from discontinued B &R IFEE %K (&)
operations i A (35,117) 915
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

37 Discontinued operations (Continued) 37 ERUEREER @
(@) Financial performance and cash flow (@ BBERERRERESE
information (Continued) & @)

For the period from
1 January 2019 to For the year ended
27 December 2019 EEChNBClerlaglolcI@2{ORES]

H20191H1H

Z£2019F12A27H EHZE20184
B 12A318IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAR®
Other comprehensive income/ Hth2HEKZE (EiE)
(loss)
ltem that will not be reclassified to & B HIEEE %
profit or loss: HH:
Remeasurement of defined benefit HE#HE &R EMHEE
assets 228
ltem that may be reclassified HignegEmoEER
subsequently to profit or loss: wZIEE
Exchange differences on translation & 4% [ 4% ‘& ¥ 75 2 [E 3,
of discontinued operations = (5,185)
Reclassification of foreign currency RHEBEH DA K IE
translation reserve on discontinued &L E K 2N E
operations upon disposal 1 -
Other comprehensive income/ EBRIEEEEK2EMEE
(loss) from discontinued mkE(EE)
operations 18,932 (4,957)
Total comprehensive loss from DR IFKEEKR2HE
discontinued operations BHEHE (16,185) (4,042)
Net cash generate from operating KRBTSR FEE
activities 23,249 12,619
Net cash used in investing activities & & &8 FTH IR & %58 (33,540) (11,464
Exchange losses oncashandcash & RIS ZEBY 2 EN
equivalents &5 18 (1,923) (486)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash WEBAREEZRS (R
generated by the subsidiaries ) 1R (12,214) 669
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

37 Discontinued operations (continued)

(b) Details of the sale of the subsidiaries

On 8 November 2019, the Group entered into the Disposal
Agreement with South Land to dispose its entire equity
interests in Lee & Man for a total consideration of
HK$276,488,000. Pursuant to the Disposal Agreement, the
consideration is satisfied in the following manner:

U

(i)

the amount of HK$273,746,000 will be satisfied by
setting off against the equivalent amount of the
outstanding loan amount owing by the Company to a
former director with principal amount of
HK$260,000,000 (Note 30) and the respective interest
payable owing by the Company; and

South Land shall pay the sum of HK$2,742,000 in cash
to the Company.

In connection with the disposal of Lee & Man, on 27
December 2019, the Group and South Land executed the
deed of waiver (the “Deed of Waiver”), pursuant to which, the
Company agreed to waive shareholders’ loans due from Lee
& Man amounting to HK$39,307,000 on the date of disposal.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019

37 DRI BEER @
(b) HEMBAT ZFHE

R2019F11 A8H » & » 7 &
MRV ERZE LNBRE
276,488,000/ T HEHERIEX Z
TEE - REBELERZE 2R
BT A ER

() 273,746,000 Tt #& & 1@ K
HARBRNAIEEFH R
BEENXsHERNLEE
260,000,000 7T ( B 5£30)
K AN B RS AR FE 9 FE
MENERESBEERMN: &

i FREAARAXNEAS
2,742,000/ 7T °

MHEHEEXME + R2019F12 4
7TH  ASEEERFEFLARR
BU#RELE]D Bt X278
EERLEHHRReRKIE 2
% 38 B 7% 39,307,00078 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

37 Discontinued operations (Continued) 37 ERUEREER @

(b) Details of the sale of the subsidiary (Continued) (b) HEMWEB AR ZF1E W@
On 27 December 2019, the Group completed the disposal of MR2019F 12 427 H + KRR ZE/K
100% equity interest in Lee & Man. Details of the effect on HEREBX 2 2ERE - B
disposal are as follows: EXHEFBOT

2019
RMB’000
FARY
Consideration satisfied: REZERNAR:
Cash R 2,406
Add: Amount set off against loans and meEEAEERRERRAERN
the respective payable owing by the Group FE S RIE € 88 (FF3E30)
(Note 30) 245,907
Total disposal consideration HERERTE 248,313
Carrying amount of net assets sold EHEEEFEEREE (286,787)
Less: expenses in relation to the disposal W BREEHE X (1,520)

Loss on disposal before reclassification of EFSENERERENZHESE

foreign currency translation reserve (39,994)

Reclassification of foreign currency translation A HEREF L/ EC R UL RBE XKL >
reserve on discontinued operations upon HNEE A B S
disposal (7,637)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

37 Discontinued operations (Continued) 37 ERUEREER @

(b) Details of the sale of the subsidiary (Continued) (b) HEWEB AR ZF1E W@
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities upon execution »HE B B(2019F12/8278)
of the Deed of Waiver as at the date of sale (27 December BEURCRBERZEENABER
2019) were: HiE :

2019
RMB’000
TARM

Current assets REEE
Inventories EASS
Tax recoverable A i 1=l B IE
Trade and other receivables B E 5 & H fth 3 E
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BARBEFEAEEEHTA

Base@EE
Other current assets HiRB & E
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) M BB KRR E (M EE15)
Right-of-use-assets TREEE
Investment properties (Note 18) wEWE (K1sE18)
Defined benefit assets AENM=EE
Deferred tax assets (Note 29) IR AT IR & B (MY 5E29)
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 REMMKIE (71,269)
Tax payable FE AT B 18 (2,632)
Contract liabilities aHhaE (440)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 29) IR AT IR B (E (MY 5229) (3,451)
Total identifiable net assets AR FEEHAE 286,787
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38 Transaction with non-controlling interests 38 R IERER IR S

On 19 June 2018, Delightful Year Holdings Limited (“Delightful
Year”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with Mr. Li Jian, Mr. Xu
Bochun and other individuals (collectively, “the Seller”), pursuant to
which:

(1)

The Group agreed to purchase and the Seller agreed to sell
72% equity interest in New Spicy Way for a cash
consideration of RMB696,143,000 (the “Tranche |
Acquisition”);

Subject to the occurrence of the Tranche | Acquisition, the
Group agreed to purchase and the Seller agreed to sell an
aggregate of 15% equity interest in Beijing New Spicy Way
on or before 31 March 31 2019 at specific consideration
stipulated in the SPA with a minimum amount of
RMB142,500,000 and a cap amount of RMB330,000,000 (the
“Tranche Il Acquisition”); and

In addition to the Tranche | Acquisition and the Tranche Il
Acquisition, the Group has granted the right in favour of Mr.
Li Jian and Mr. Xu Bochun (collectively the “Remaining
Shareholders”), pursuant to which the Remaining
Shareholders will have the right, but not an obligation, to
require the Group to purchase 13% equity interest in Beijing
New Spicy Way from the Remaining Shareholders at specific
consideration stipulated in the SPA with a minimum amount
of RMB123,500,000 and a cap amount of RMB286,000,000,
if the net profit of Beijing New Spice Way for any of the years
ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 exceeds
RMB41,000,000 (the “Put Right”).

R2018F6 4198 AR a2 B E
RAIEFERBERAG(EF))ESE
BEE -BAZTLEEREMAL (AT
(BRI EERE ([EEHED -
Bt

(1)

AEBEREBERBESFREDR
ERETRE BeRER
696,143,000 7T A F#& ([ 5 —HA UL
Bl

FE—HWEEER ~A5ER
BER2019F3A3THS 2RI E
mMEHRERZBPRZATHE
b FEFEFEE L15% MK RE
BEEHEIIBAZRESHE
142,500,000t A REE & LR & 58
330,000,000t A R ¥ (5 — HA L
Bl Rk

R —HRUREE R —HAUREE A -
REFEERBUZGAERKIA
HEhREAEBINgREDAX TS
ANZRER - Bt Wit R R iE
RE ZE 20194 ~ 20204 K 2021 4
128318 L E R/ FE 2 4 F 18
#141,000,0007C A R ® - F &4 3%
HEEBIEET 2R ABESAK
EERAFGREBEL R TRE
13%BE BTTERELEEEH=
BT 5] B 2 &% 1K 4 %8 123,500,000 7T
AR # K PR %286,000,000 7T
AREE([RERED -

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

38 Transaction with non-controlling interests

(Continued)

The Tranche | Acquisition was completed on 30 November 2018.
Based on the assessment performed on the date of completion,
management determined that the significant risk and reward of
ownership relating to the 15% equity interest in relation to the
Tranche Il Acquisition has been transferred to the Group upon the
completion of the Tranche | Acquisition. As a result, the Tranche |
Acquisition and the Tranche Il Acquisition were considered as
linked transactions for the purpose of accounting for business
combination. Management estimated that the consideration for the
Tranche Il Acquisition was RMB142,500,000, which was included
in “trade and other payables” in the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 December 2018.

The Tranche Il Acquisition was completed in June 2019 at the final
consideration of RMB139,500,000, which was mutually agreed by
the Group and the Seller. As the Tranche Il Acquisition was
completed within 12 months after the completion of the Tranche |
Acquisition, the difference between the final consideration and the
amount estimated by management, which amounted to
RMB3,000,000, was accounted for as a measurement period
adjustment and recognised as a decrease in goodwill during the
year ended 31 December 2019 (Note 21).

To reflect the amount payable in relation to the Put Right based on
management’s estimate of the possibility for the remaining
shareholders to exercise the Put Right, the present value of the
estimated amount payable of RMB102,850,000 is recognised as a
financial liability with the corresponding amount debited to special
reserve on the date of completion of the Tranche | Acquisition (30
November 2018).

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the payable in relation to
the Put Right was determined using the discounted cash flows
method and was calculated based on the estimated consideration
and discounted at the cost of debt of the Company of 7.10% (2018:
8.16%). As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the payable in
relation to the Put Right amounted to RMB99,024,000 (2018:
RMB103,496,000), which was recorded as a non-current liability in
the consolidated balance sheet. The change in fair value amounting
to RMB5,072,000 (before adjusting for currency translation
difference of RMB600,000) was treated as transaction with non-
controlling interests and recognised in special reserve during the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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b

% —H U BE 2 R 2018411 A30H =&
Ko RIBRTEK BT ZFE - BiE
BREBHEE _HHWHE 2 15%KEZ
EARRIRESEDFERE —HIK
Bl rEEzAEE - At 5 —
HKERE-_BHRERESAHZE
STEEME WA ABERS - K2018
F12A31H  EEEMTE BN E
2 KB A142,500,000C A R ¥ - %
RBEETHTARSEEAGBERIENE
SN EMKIE] -

F_HWED R2019F6A K &
&R {8 5139,500,0007C A R# » iR
SEEZFHFLEMAWBE BREZHK
BRE BB TKEI2EA AT
B MERREEREEEHS28EL
i /Y 2 583,000,000 7T A R ¥ 2 AR5
A RARE TERAEE2019
F12ANBEFEZHERD (WiE
21)

BHEEEEBGTRHGREITER
SHEZ AR ARBRAE 2N
BMEMKE HiEMZREZRE
102,850,000 T AR B E R A HE
& MEESBEERE —BHIRETR
H (2018411 A30H ) f& 52 A # Il &
1o

MR2019F12 A31H » R4 # 2 # B
ERFRBz2AABERANRR S
MEZETE UREGBIRETER
&K QB E B K AN7.10% (2018 4F -
8.16%) #T IR - 20194124318 -
RLEZHBENFKEBEZ AREE
499,024,000t A R # (20184 :
103,496,000 AR¥)  WEREREE
EAERAGFAAERSHAG - BE
2019412 A31H IEF & * 5,072,000
ANRBEZAAREBEEEZSH(REERE
£ 58 7 2 51 £600,0007T A RE) 18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

39 EHMEEELRE
(a) REBAZEARRS

39 Related and connected party disclosures

(a) Significant transactions with related

parties
The following significant transactions occurred with related HEEFETUNTEARS
parties:
Name of party Relationship Nature of transactions 2019 2018
BEFEB B% XHHE
RMB’000 RMB'000
TAR® TARH
Sonic Tycoon Limited Parent company Issuance of convertible bonds 666,021
EEERAA (SYNG] ROARARES
Sonic Tycoon Limited Parent company Interest on convertible bonds 4,125
EFERAA (SN AARESHE
Shenzhen Love’s Kitchen Internet and Associate Interest income 50
Technology Limited Company
RBFEEBERURERAF NS MEKA
Xin Liang Ji Fellow subsidiary of Li Gao Sales of goods 689
ERE BezZRARKBAR EmiHE
China BBQ Limited Significantly influenced by key Management service fee 2,500
managements of the Company
China BBQ Limited ARERTEERBABAERYE ERREER
Xin Liang Ji Fellow subsidiary of Li Gao Purchase of goods 8,016
FRE BezRAZNBERA BEEM
Zigong Yanweiyuan Food Co., Ltd. Fellow subsidiary of Li Gao Purchase of goods 98
BEERRRRERAA BEZRARKBAR BEEm
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing)  Significantly influenced by key Purchase of goods -
Co., Ltd managements of the Company
BeHt$ERER)ERAT ARAEEEBABAERYE BEEM
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing)  Significantly influenced by key Loans granted -
Co., Ltd managements of the Company
EeMAEERUR)ERAR ARAFEEBEABASAYE EHER
BREREREBRAT ZZFE-IFFR 215



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE MR RNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

39 Related and connected party disclosures 39 R R REE H I E @)

(Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances arising from b) EBEBIZ2RIELEZ
transaction with related parties KEEZ R
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the TH B T 2 X 58 2 &%
reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties: RIEH RS KRGS :

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FAR
Assets BE
Trade receivables e E 5 5KIR 15,247
Other receivables — current (i) H 4th e W 38 — B ER() 17,048
Other receivables — non-current (ii) E b fE Uk 5838 — FE B ER (i) 288
Other current assets Hi e & E 738
33,321
Notes: B 3F
[0} As at 31 December 2019, the balance includes: [0) R20194F 12 A31H @ &3
(1) Other receivables of RMB2,800,000 represented loans 1) H g Y ZX T8 2,800,000 7T A B #E &
receivable due from related parties, which were unsecured, bear FEWREE T EZ AEEWT . IRE
interest at 10%-15% per annum and repayable in 2020. T &= 10% = 15% =1 5. & 78 FA 2020 &
(2) Other receivables of RMB1,000,000 represented deposit due ©) H fih i UL FXTE 1,000,000 7T A R A&
from a related party. FEUR AR iR & -
) Other receivable of RMB5,000,000 represented management 3 H #b fE U 3k 185,000,000 A R B
service fees receivable due from a related party (Note 39(a)). BEWEREE S ERREE (KT
39(@)) °
(ii) The amount represented loans receivable due from an associate, which (ii) REBERKNBENRTNER  BEEMH .
was unsecured, interest free and repayable in 2028. %0 B RENRD028FEIE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARY FARE
Liabilities afE
Trade payables e E SRR 1,760
Contract liabilities AHEE 6
1,766
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

39 Related and connected party disclosures 39 REE R REE H I E @)

(Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management (c) TEEBAEFHFMN
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EENEMTEEHERENF
management during the year was as follows: NZFHMmT :

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARYE FARY
Short term employee benefits SR E R A 8,342 4,403
Share-based compensation expenses LARE (0 B AR EH A X 8,181 —
Post employment benefits RIKER T 538 273

Other benefits H 13 F 310 —

17,371 4,676

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries ofthe 40 XA R FTEMB AT 25
Company B

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal (@) R20194F K 2018F 128
subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 and F1IEAALBFTENREB A
2018 are as follows: MZHEBEOT :

Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation/ interest held by the
Name of company establishment Registered capital Group Principal activities
SR 5 AEBEREZER
ARER REH AMEX RA TEXK
2019 2018
HHG™ The PRC Registered capital cPA e 82.50% - Chinese fast food
02 December 2003 RMB12,000,000 restaurants chain
nan HE BRI REEHEREE
2003512 A2H 12,000,0007C A & %
Tianjin HHG Restaurant Management ~ The PRC Registered capital CPR 82.50% - Chinese fast food
Co. Ltd. 11 September 2013 RMB500,000 restaurants chain
RENERERERERDA HE AR HREEHEREE
2013F9A11H 500,000 A R #
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40 ARFEEMBRAAZHF

15 (@)

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

218
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(a) (continued) (@)
Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation/ interest held by the
Name of company establishment Registered capital Group Principal activities
SRR 5 AEBEREE2EMR
NAER REH HAMEX RAESE TEXK
2019 2018
Tianjin Han Fang Wei Ye Food Co. Ltd*  The PRC Registered capital (iR 78.38% - Chinese fast food
19 June 2014 RMB27,368,400 restaurants chain
REMEFBERRERDA HE BRI REEHEREE
201456 A19H 27,368,400 7T A R #
Beijing Hefeng Technology Co. Ltd.*  The PRC Registered capital 82.50% —  Chinese fast food
2 January 2019 RMB2,000,000 restaurants chain
I RMERRERAF HE AR HREIEHEREE
20195 1A28 2,000,0007C A K B
HHG (Beijing) Supply Chain The PRC Registered capital 82.50% —  Chinese fast food
Management Co. Ltd.* 2 January 2019 RMB2,000,000 restaurants chain
MEAULR) RIERER FE FHEAR HREEHEREE
BEREFEAA 201961 A28 2,000,0007C A & ¥
Hehegu International Company Limited Hong Kong Registered capital 82.5%  Chinese fast food
21 July 2017 HKD1 restaurants chain
Hehegu International Company Limited % 7 &R REEHEREE
20176 7H218 18T
New Spicy Way™ The PRC Registered capital CIAEA 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
30 December 2005 RMB15,000,000 restaurant
HHE FE &R REEHENRER
2005412 A30A 15,000,000 70 A K %
Shanghai New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital CrAEA 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd.* 05 July 2010 RMB1,000,000 restaurant
ENRERRERERDA HE AR REEHENRER
2010%7A5H 1,000,0007C A R #
Tianjin New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital Crpie 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd." 20 October 2010 RMB1,000,000 restaurant
REFRERRERERDA R BRI REIEHENIRER
2010F10A 208 1,000,0007C A R %
Xi'an La Zhi Dao Catering The PRC Registered capital S 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd.* 11 October 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
BARKERRERERDA FE AfEAR HEIEENIRER
20115108118 100,0007C A &%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

40 ARFETEMBRAAZHF

15 (@)

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Zhengzhou New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital Sy 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd." 09 December 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
BN REBEREERRAT e FHER HEIEENIRERE
2011512490 100,0007C A &%
Tangshan New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital SrAe 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd." 16 December 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
BUMREERERERAA lc AMER REEHARER
201151275160 100,0007T A &%
Huhehaote New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital CrAEA 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd." 12 March 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
HAERERERERAA hE &R mEIEHARER
2012%3A12H 100,000t A B H#
Beijing Hong Ri Hong Yuan The PRC Registered capital CieYa 81.78% - Manufacturing condiments
Food Co., Ltd" 28 March 2012 RMB1,064,000
EREBBREMERAF R AR EERKRH
20125 3A28H 1,064,0007C A B
Shenyang New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital CrA 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd.* 31 May 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
BENREERERERDA R BRI mEIEHENRER
20124 5A31H 100,000t A RHE

(a) (continued) (a) @
Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation/ interest held by the
Name of company establishment Registered capital Group Principal activities
SRR 5 AEERFEZEMR
NEER REH A EX RAER TEXK
2019 2018
Shijiazhuang New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital CrA 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd.* 26 October 2011 RMB500,000 restaurant
RRENREERERERAT  +EF BRI REIEHENRER
2011F10A26H 500,000 A R
Langfang New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital Crf 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd.* 31 October 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
BhHREERERERDA R AfER HEIEENIRER
20115107831 H 100,0007C A &%

Hefei New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital CyfA 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd.* 16 October 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
AENREERERERDA FE At EA HEIEENIRER
201251073168 100,0007C A &%
BEERERAR —ZE-NEFFR 219



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE MR RNE ()
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40 ARFEEMBRAAZHF

15 (@)

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(a) (continued) (@)
Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation/ interest held by the
Name of company establishment Registered capital Group Principal activities
SRR % AEEREZES
NAER REH HEMER RA R TEXK
2019 2018
Beijing Lapindao Catering The PRC Registered capital CrA 87.00%  Leasing and business
Management Co., Ltd"* 30 September 2013 RMB100,000 services
IRBRELRERBRAF HE EMER HERBERSE
20134 9A30H 100,000t A R HE
Beijing New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital CrA 87.00%  Leasing and business
Management Co., Ltd" 18 January 2016 RMB500,000 services
LTRAFRECEERERDA FE AR HEREERY
201651 A 18H 500,000 A R #
Beijing Tongbeitiancheng Catering The PRC Registered capital crs 87.00%  Leasing and business
Management Co., Ltd* 31 January 2016 RMB5,000,000 services
(“Tong Bei Tian Cheng”)
ERBEAKERERBRAR  HE AfE A HERBERSE
:1:5N:4) 201651 A31H 5,000,0007C A K B
Beijing New Spicy Way Trading The PRC Registered capital CrAA 87.00%  Wholesale and retall
Co., Ltd" 17 October 2017 RMB1,000,000
IR REBEERAA FE AfER HERTE
20174610 R17H 1,000,0007C A R #&
Xinladao Catering Management Hong Kong Registered capital 87.00% —  Chinese hot pot chain
Hong Kong Co., Limited 04 July 2019 HKD10,000 restaurant
HREERER(BB)ERRA AR S E A REEHNREE
20196 7H4H 10,0007 7T
Dongguan Jia Xin Handbag Company ~ The PRC Registered capital 100%  Manufacture of handbags
Limited" R R EFRERAR 25 February 2014 HK$10,000,000
(Note i)
REEEFRERAF(H) hE A A HEFR
201452H250 10,000,000/ 7T
Dongguan Lee Wai Handbag Co. Ltd*  The PRC Registered capital 100%  Manufacture and sale of
REFEFRAB AR (Notei) 25 September 2009 HK$6,000,000 handbags
REMBFRERAR (M) I M E A HERHEETFR
200949 H25H 6,000,0007% 7T
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40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

40 ARFETEMBRAAZHF

15 (@)

(a) (continued) (a) @
Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation/ interest held by the
Name of company establishment Registered capital Group Principal activities
SRR % AEBEEE2ER
NEAER REH HfEX RAER TEXK
2018
Dongguan Wei Hua Company Limited*  The PRC Registered capital 100%  Manufacture of handbags
REHEFRAERAR (Notel) 28 January 2014 HK$20,000,000
REREFRERAR (M) FE amEx HETFR
2014%1A28H 20,000,0007% 7T
Harvey Handbags Company Limited ~ Myanmar Registered capital 100%  Manufacture of handbags
(Note i) 19 August 2015 USD1,500,000
Harvey Handbags Company Limited 4 AR HEFR
(B ati) 2015687 19H 1,500,000% 7T
Lee & Man Company Limited (Note )~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100% HK$1,000,000 100%  Manufacture and sale of
21 November 1978 Non-voting deferred handbags
HK$1,000,000
BICETER AR (FEE) EE &R 100% 1,000,0007% 7 HEREETR
1978411 218 ERZEELTRND
1,000,000 7T
Lee & Man Handbag (Thailand) Thailand Ordinary Baht 30,000,000 100%  Property holding in
Company Limited (Note i) 11 November 1997 Thailand
Lee & Man Handbag (Thailand) EEil 38 1% 30,000,000% £k RREFES
Company Limited (B 5%i) 199711 A11H
Lee & Man Handbag Manufacturing Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Limited Company (Note i) 20 August 1976 Non-voting deferred handbags
HK$500,000
BXFRBERD A (HaTi) EE LA 10,0005 T WEE HERHEFR
197648 520H IEJE B 17500,00078 7T
Lee & Man Management Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Provision of management
Limited (Note ) 24 November 1992 and administrative on
services
BYEBERAR (M) EE L@ERk2ET RUEERRTERSE
1992611 A24H
Dongguan Deluxe Handbag The PRC 11 January 2012 Registered capital 100%  Manufacture and sale
Manufacturing Limited* HK$5,600,000
ZERTFRARAF (Note )
REERFRERDA (M) FE AR HERHE
201261 A118 5,600,000 7T
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40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries ofthe 40 A AT T EMEB A T 2

Company (Continued)

(a) (continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/

Name of company establishment Registered capital
MR R

ARER REH ZMEL

15 (@)

Dongguan Jia Xin Handbag Company ~ The PRC 25 February 2014 Registered capital

Limted R EFRAER AR HK$10,000,000
(Note i)
REnEFRAERDR ) hE HfEA
201442 250 10,000,0003% 7T

Dongguan Lee Wai Handbag Co. Ltd*  The PRC 25 September Registered capital

REAEFRERLA Notel) 2009 HK$6,000,000
REMBEFRERAR (M) FE AMER
2009F9A25H 6,000,0007% 7T
Notes:

(i) These group entities were disposed during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Registered as a wholly-owned foreign investment enterprise under PRC
Law

Registered as a sino-foreign cooperative joint venture under PRC Law

Registered as a limited liability company under the PRC Law
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(a) @
Attributable equity
interest held by the
Group Principal activities
AEBEEEZEMR
RAER TEER
2018
100%  Manufacture of handbags
BEFR
100%  Manufacture and sale of
handbags
BERHEFR
B 5

(i) ZEEEEENEH ZE2019F12 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the 40
Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI)

Set out below is summarised financial information for the
HHG Group that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the HHG
Group are before inter-company eliminations.

Summarised balance sheet

ARABRFTEMBELATZF
15 ()

(b) FEZRELS

TXHIMEAEB 2T HER
BE ZEEREYAKEMS
BEAZFFEREDS MAaRE
BErzeRAENAMEHEANNE-

EERGERREE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

124,111 128,391
(161,707) (88,687)

(37,596) 39,704

437,164 207,978
(171,418) (28,365)

265,746 184,613

228,150 224,317

Current assets MEEE

Current liabilities mEaE

Current net (liabilities)/assets RE (k) BERE
Non-current assets IEREBEE
Non-current liabilities IRBEE
Non-current net assets IRBEETFE

Net assets EEFH

Accumulated NCI R FEIERR R

33,183 38,185

BEERERAE —ZE-NEFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued)

15 &)

(b) FEIERER @)
PHUERFBE

2019
RMB’000
FTAR®

Summarised statement of comprehensive
income

Revenue WA

Profit for the year F R Fl

Total comprehensive income ZHKEEE

Profit allocated to NCI
Dividends paid to NCI

[ FE 22 P A8 21 o0 B <2 0k A
ST IR RS 2 BB

521,155
3,834
3,834

531

Summarised cash flows

BEn8RE

2019
RMB’000
TAR®

Cash flows generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows used in financing activities

RERHME/ R RS

mE
REESAARTRE
MEEHAABEESRE

99,146

(11,239)
(62,543)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

RERBSSEMEM
(D) F8
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40 ARFEEMBRAAZHF

2018
RMB’000
TAR®

421,344
8,834
8,834

1,430

2018
RMB’000
TAR®

(19,658)
(39,315)

(58,973)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries ofthe 40 XA T X EKM B A 8 Z &

Company (continued) 5@
(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued) (b) FEI= RS @)
Set out below is summarised financial information for the New TXEVFHREEE 2B KEER
Spicy Way Group that has non-controlling interests that are BE ZEEBEEUAEEME
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the New BEARZIFERERS FHEE
Spicy Way Group are before inter-company eliminations. BreBEE AR BMEMEATEE -
Summarised balance sheet EEEGEREE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARM
Current assets MEEE 97,639 135,262
Current liabilities Uik R=RE (201,300) (212,491)
Current net liabilities REBEEFHE (103,661) (77,229)
Non-current assets EREBEE 663,484 533,312
Non-current liabilities FEmBAE (202,500) (103,545)

Non-current net assets ERBEETFHE 460,984 429,767

Net assets EEFH 357,323 352,538

Accumulated NCI Rt IR R s 46,595 46,034
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IR AR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # =2019F 12 31 H L F[Z

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Profit allocated to NCI
Dividends paid to NCI

[ FE 22 P A8 21 o0 B <2 0k A
ST IR RS 2 BB

Company (continued) 5@

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued) (b) IFEI= AR = @)
Summarised statement of comprehensive 2EHKBZERE
income

2019

RMB’000

FAR®

Revenue I@N 476,523
Profit for the year FREF 4,780
Total comprehensive income 2HINZHEEE 4,780

561

Summarised cash flows

BEn8RE

2019
RMB’000
TAR®

Cash flows generated from/(used in)

RERHME/ R RS

87,315
(42,923)
(64,734)

operating activities i
Cash flows used in investing activities WEEBARSRE
Cash flows used in financing activities MEETMRAESAE=E
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBELEENWCERD)
cash equivalents N EEE

(20,342)

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019

40 ARFEEMBRAAZHF

2018
RMB’000
TAR®

48,836
6,688
6,688

807

2018
RMB’000
TAR®

(24,455)
80,150
(33,680)

22,015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B IS ERER M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & =2019F 12 31 H L F[E

the Company

41 Balance sheet and reserve movement of

M ARFEEREREFER
2E

Balance sheet of the Company APREEEER
As at 31 December
M12A831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries W ERRIRE
— investment cost — ®EK A - 16,360
— assets due from subsidiaries —ERNBAREE 1,505,369 1,340,315
1,505,369 1,356,675
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents BehIREEEY 36,190 186,581
Other receivables H fth & U FRTE 5,000 2,500
41,190 189,081
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 1,546,559 1,545,756
CURRENT LIABILITY REBAE
Other payables Ho o FE A BB 10,080
Amount due to subsidiaries FET M B A A 5E 1,502
Convertible bonds MR ES 19,800
Loan from a third party E-FER 207,422
238,804
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 448,380 517,592
448,380 517,592
TOTAL LIABILITY EEHE 488,991 756,396
BEERERLAT ZZ-NLEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE MR RNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

41 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued)

M ARFREEREREFER

2 5 @)

APBEEREER®@®

As at 31 December
M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FAR®E

133,023 122,949
924,545 666,411

1,057,568 789,360

CAPITAL AND RESERVE EXEHE
Share capital & 7=

Reserves 1k 1

TOTAL EQUITY EZAeHE
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY EERERAE

1,546,559 1,645,756

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2020 and was signed on its behalf:

Zhao John Huan
HLE
CHAIRMAN
TE

228 Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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ExgifE THTIWALIRERES:

Wang Xiaolong
FE
DIRECTOR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

41 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 41 KRR EEEERNLES

the Company (continued) B E @
Reserve movement of the Company KNABIFERS
Retained
earnings
(accumulated
deficit) Other reserves Total
BiFlkE
(RETE8) Hfth % 15 &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAR® FARY
At 1 January 2018 7R2018F1 A1H 5,399 544,308 549,707
Loss for the year FANEE (13,682) - (13,682)
Issuance of convertible bonds BT R ES — 128,088 128,088
Currency translation differences EMmE =5 — 2,298 2,298
At 31 December 2018 A2018F12H31H (8,283) 674,694 666,411
Loss for the year FAEBIE (86,997) — (86,997)
Disposal of the subsidiary HEK B A A — 251,479 251,479
Shares converted from convertible — FJ ¥ j% & 5 E ¥ 7 K5
bonds — 87,538 87,538
Value of services provided under B RERT B M 1 12 B
share option schemes and share sHEIIE T PTEE i AR 7%
award scheme ZBE — 8,181 8,181
Currency translation differences EMmE =5 — (2,067) (2,067)
At 31 December 2019 A2019F 12831 H (95,280) 1,019,825 924,545

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR 229
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e B I AR R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

42 Events after the balance sheet date

(1)

)

Proposed Issuance of convertible bonds

On 13 January 2020, the Company and United Strength
Victory Limited (the “Investor”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Exponential Fortune) entered into an investment agreement (the
“Investment Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company
agreed to issue and the Investor agreed to subscribe for
convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$780,000,000. Up to the date on which this set of financial
statements were authorised for issue, the Investment
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder is
subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions as set forth in
the Investment Agreement.

The assessment of the impact of the
novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”)

The Group has temporarily suspended the operation of
certain restaurants (including both self-operated and
franchised restaurants) (the “Suspended Restaurants”) since
26 January 2020. In compliance with the guidelines on
infection control and work resumption issued by the relevant
governmental authorities and the latest development of the
COVID-19, the Group is in the process of resuming the full
operations of the Suspended Restaurants.

Based on the current information available to the Company, it
is expected that the temporary suspension of the restaurants
and the dampening of consumer sentiment due to the
COVID-19 would result in a decline in the revenue of the
Group, and hence have an adverse effect on the operating
performance of the Group in the first quarter and the first half
of 2020. Up to the date on which this set of financial
statements were authorised for issue, the Group is still in the
process of assessing the impacts of the COVID-19 on the
performance of the Group and is currently unable to estimate
the quantitative impacts to the Group.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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(1)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 FERZRER

ZRBRTUAKRES

$R2020F1 8138 A& A & B
United Strength Victory Limited ([ %
& % | - AExponential Fortune 2 &
BB AR LI EHE (R
Bl Bt RQRRE#®
TEEEERERELASRET
8 8 780,000,000 % 7T 2 7] #2 J& (&
F o B E RIS R
BE - REWHEREBTHET
LRGBHFEEMEA#E AT
ERE - FREE -

aF fh R E KR
(fcoviD-191) Z%%
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!ﬁ&%%%%éﬁm%ﬁ?g%
PIJE]) Y38 & o 1R 15 48 B8 BT 1
BEANBEREEN REIIE
5| LA B COVID-19H) S #T # & » A&
EIEEEEWE@****%%E
BERPER
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LB EEENSERAEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H It F &

42 Events after the balance sheet date (Continued) 42 % 2 H % =18 ()

(2) The assessment of the impact of the

novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) (continued)

In preparing this set of financial statements, the Group tested
goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life for
impairment and the recoverable amount of the relevant CGUs
exceeds its carrying amount, thus no provision for impairment
is made. In performing this assessment, the Group estimated
the present value of future cash flows of the CGUs based on
the conditions as at 31 December 2019. In the goodwill
impairment test to be performed in 2020, the impact of the
COVID-19 on the present value of estimated future cash
flows of the CGUs will be considered. Up to the date on
which this set of financial statements were authorised for
issue, the Group is still in the process of assessing the
impacts of the COVID-19 on the performance of the relevant
CGUs and is currently unable to estimate the quantitative
impacts to the Group.

(2)%“?13%)?52%%‘%3

(TcoviID-19])
()

REBEAMEREE  AEBEH
BAEREEERFEAFTFHZEEZE
EITRENS  MBBERSES
BUMALDKEeBEBBERR
B T AFHIRREEE R
T AR - ANEBREN2019
F1I2ANEBMMRRHETRSE
HABENARBESRENRE - R
2020 4F ¥ T3 17 A9 R 2R EDE B
F o 5 E ECOVID- 198 IR & &E A&
BAAEFARBERERENT
2o H AR S R e
A8 - AN & E 1T/ COovVID-19
HHEBESELABEMNRRENY
2 BEAELGTEHAERN

EweE-

N
&
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MM E

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FARE FARE TAR®
(Note(b)) (Note(b)) (Note(b)) (Note(a)) (Note(a))
(B 3£ (b)) (M 3E (D)) (FF3E (b)) (FfF 3£ (a)) (Bt &% (a))

(Restated) (Restated)
(Eiuh) (FEu)
RESULTS E45
Revenue S 529,260 477 587 751,801 470,181 998,250

Profit/(loss) before taxation & %% A1l & F1,/
(EB18) 12,471 16,608 34,704 (7,474) (79,257)
Income tax expenses Frig®iz i (4,427) (6,739) (14,018) (2,348) (7,013)

Profit/(loss) for the year FRER(EE) 8,044 9,869 20,686 (9,822) (86,270)

(@) The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statement. (@) ERMBEREREAEAMBHRE -

(b) The financial figures were extracted from the 2018 annual report. No separate (b) BB BHE T BE2018FE F3 - M2015F &
disclosures of continuing operations and discontinued operations were made on the Q0M7THE VBB FN ERSERLEEBRK LD RIE
financial figures from 2015 to 2017. HEXBORKE -

At 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FARE FARE TARY
(Restated) (Restated)
(Ett) (Ett)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER A&

Total assets BEHTE 507,546 722,250 1,325,762 2,438,434 | ALl
Total liabilities BEEE (275,917) (419,126) (399,890) (1,455,138) |Gl rdkiciels))

Net assets BEFHE 231,629 303,124 925,862 983,296 984,966

232 Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT

RIS -HERERHS

About the Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“the Report”)
is prepared by Best Food Holding Company Limited (“Best Food”, “the
Company” or “We”) to review and summarize the Company’s ESG work
in 2019. The reporting scope includes Beijing HHG Restaurant
Management Co., Ltd. and Tianjin HHG Restaurant Management Co.,
Ltd. ("HHG"); and Beijing New Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd. (“New
Spicy Way”) in the mainland of People’s Republic of China'. Unless
otherwise specified, the Report covers the period from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2019. The information disclosed by the Report is the “general
disclosures” and the environmental KPIs set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”),
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities released by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It is to be read in conjunction
with the Corporate Governance Report contained in the 2019 Annual
Report of Best Food Holding Company Limited, for a more
comprehensive understanding of the Company.

ESG Governance and Management System

Best Food believes that a sound ESG management system is a requisite
for the Company’s sustainable development. We focus on ESG
performance of catering companies in which we own shares, and are
committed to building a catering industry investment and management
platform empowered by the idea of sustainability.

BRAHRE

TIRE e kErfE((HEDEERE
ERAB(TER] ARkl FHMDEH
019F R -HEekER L EMDEHEG
HEoBEBBEBRERPTEARLIME AL
RAMEAERERBERAFRERENEA
BERARAR(FAER]D  URIEFFHE
BHREBERAR([FHHRE] - MERIKT
B RS B 5201941 A1 H £20194F12
A31H ARERBELE(REBHAERZFN
ERARES EWHRBK 27 2RE -
HEREARMEEINIRE HLEREAR
HEERIIDNI—BER]IZERREBARE
BEREEZ|IFR - AREERBC(CERERSE
BRAFINI9FFERS)PEEAMEIE
B—HEE NEEEENZ2ENTH®
AN/NEST I

RE HERERUREERR

BREBAE BYRE2MNRE HERERRE
ARARBAFERROLEGEMS - R
BBEIETERRE2RZERMER A
MIRE HEREARE  BORITERT
SEESNERTERBENEETAS -

1. The Company sold Dongguan Deluxe Handbag Manufacturing Limited, Dongguan Jia Xin Handbag Company Limited, Dongguan Lee Wai Handbag Co.,
Ltd., and Dongguan Wei Hua Company Limited on December 27, 2019. Therefore, these companies above are no longer included in the scope of

disclosure.

ARBER2019F12A2TAHERZEERFRARAF RERZETRARQT REFEFRXERADARREAETFRERQAF MTHE

HEMARBGER -

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIALAND GOVERNANCE(“E G’
¢

BiE #HE8RE

ESG Philosophy

Harmony. It is the Company’'s ESG vision to realize harmonious
coexistence with the environment and the society. We firmly and actively
fulfill corporate social responsibility, and strive to build a harmonious
relationship between the Company and the environment, employees and
the society through our constant efforts.

Team Cooperation. Team cooperation is a key attribute for the
Company to achieve good ESG performance. As the business line of the
Company includes both catering industry and manufacturing industry, we
face more complicated challenges in ESG management. To overcome
such challenges, it is critical to collaborate as a team within the Company
to realize its vision of harmony.

Scientific management. It is an effective way for the Company to
realize good ESG performance. The Company insists on promoting
scientific management methodologies and creating a more efficient ESG
management model.

ESG Governance Structure

The Company establishes ESG Governance structure in line with the
concept of “harmony, team cooperation and scientific management”. The
Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for risk assessment
and strategic positioning related to ESG. The management of HHG and
New Spicy Way develop ESG work plan objectively and conduct regular
reviews on ESG work and performance respectively. Operational
departments carry out their specific measures to ensure effective
implementation of ESG work according to the approved ESG work plan
and assigned roles and report relevant data on a regular basis.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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BiE HE8RE

Stakeholder Engagement

The Company values our stakeholders as well as their key expectations.
We have established a variety of communication channels to enhance
stakeholder engagement, and acknowledge their valuable ideas and
recommendations on Best Food'’s development in a timely fashion, so as

to safeguard their interests.

Major Stakeholders
FTEFNZEBA

Key Expectations

EFBHFR

REPORT (CONTINUED)
)

)
& (4

M AEE S SR
RAFERREEE RS F A 50
B ARMMHEIEFR - RMRLTS
BLH B REE B sAB NS R
E-REBTRENSENSHARRRRE
MO EEE R AMERE - REA QT RS
75 e

Ways of Communication

Government and regulators

Bk EEHE

Shareholders and investors
R EEES

Employees
BT

Suppliers
g

° Compliance operation
BREE

° Stringent internal control and
risk management
B A% B 1A B B 4% K @

° Energy conservation

BT RE R HE

a1

° Investment returns
% & B

° Transparent governance
E /l:l iﬁ Eﬂ

° Remuneration and benefits
i 4E A

° Career development
BEER

° Labour rights
BT

° Fair competition

RS T

° Integrity
#;AE

° Common development
HAE R

Major conferences, policy consultations, institutional
inspections, official exchanges, information disclosure
BREHE WEDH BESE AXEXR -FL
R

Annual reports and announcements, meetings
EERAE  GH

=

Employee satisfaction survey, labor union, employee
activities

EILmEERAE ITg BILEH

Visits, conferences, telephone calls and emails
B 2% EREAEBHE

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR

235



236

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIALAND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE - HERE

& (%)

n

Major Stakeholders Key Expectations Ways of Communication
FERZEES FEFR BRERK
Clients and customers ° Service value Face-to-face communication, telephone calls and
BRHEEBE R %5 E1E emails
. Product responsibility EHmRR  BENBAE
EmaE
o Privacy protection
BB AR
Community ° Community development Visits, donation and other charitable activities,
& fEER corporate presentations and internship opportunities

° Public warfare activities

A3
INGE )

B BOHFEAmEH2E CXSHERER
we

The Company determines the materiality matrix by communication with A A RIBEZREE T 2 H H B 5B

our key stakeholders through various channels, and integration of & W& EREEE =R

PPN

C AN ER DA

management’s recommendations and internal and external experts’ E T EZMHEREE - BAIEREEBE B (R

analysis. The matrix includes subject matters in the “ESG Reporting Botgk

%“*iﬁiﬁﬁbﬁﬂﬂ’ﬁ%@%% :

Guide” and helps us to determine the focus of ESG reporting and M EBIHMBERERE HERERBED

following-up action plans.

High

Influence on stakeholders
#)

Low 1K Influence on Best Food High =
HEBOZERE

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019

B1 Employment

B4 Labour Standards
B7 Anti-corruption

B1 &%

B4 & T AR

B7 k&S

BEAZR R TN—F1T785E -

A\ A Environment Aspect &35 @
A1 Emissions

A1 BER)

A2 Use of Resources A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

A2 BIREEM

A3 IR L RAE IR

A\ B Social Aspect # € EH

B2 Health and Safety B3 Training and Development
B5 Supply Chain Management  B6 Product Responsibility
B8 Community Investment

B2 f{#EEi% B3 $#3I25 R
B5 Lﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ@ B6 EmET
B8 ttEHE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIALAND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

Best Food and Sustainable Development Goals

RE - H8RKE

&= (])

n

BEREAFEXREER

The Company advocates business concept of responsible development. A A G EEBEENERES - LB LM
We take into account the environmental, social and economic benefits of % &I EEIRIE - € R KT ,dz - TR IR
our operations and investments, and explore ways to make efficient use ZEEH S HNF B EARER 258 T K
of natural resources, improve the well-being of our employees and the [Efg4 HEE A EEHEFEEZERNELS H
community, and develop more sustainable supply chain. Based on = - ERFFZHE A FERE  UKREKS
stakeholder’'s communication and feedback and take into consideraton X282 KRBT T A RIUBFERRETE
the business strategy of Best Food, we identified the main directions of T {E (A * WELEXAHFERY (T & ©

sustainable development work and took corresponding actions.

UN Sustainable
Development Goals
BEEAFEZRRERE

Our actions

BEMOTH

Green operation

BRedE

RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

BEEH
REE

CLIMATE ACTION
1 3 RIRTE

Reduce the intensity of greenhouse gas emissions and
enhance our energy efficiency;
RARSEREARE BRELZENREREH
WEE

Reduce the waste generated from operations and to
reuse or recycle materials;

WMOBEMELNERY WER KWL
Increase use of clean energy.

KEINE R BEIREE A

People oriented

PUN-E:S

3 GOOD HEALTH AND 4 I]IJALITV EI]UCATII]N

WELL-BEING

B 7R
Wik

5 GENDER EQUALITY DECENT WORK AND
1l

ECONOMIC GROWTH
WETER
BREE

g

Protect the basic rights of employees and provide
competitive salary and benefits;

REETEAEZ RUEARFINFERETN
Create a healthy, pleasant and efficient working
environment for employees;

BliEREMEE TRE Ml RESMENHIIE
IRIE

Build a diverse employee team that respect differences;
HEZak BEZEMETEBE

Provide quality resources for staff development and
vocational education.

RETERLBEHBBERHEEER-

BRERERL2TE —Z-IFFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIALAND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE - HERE

UN Sustainable
Development Goals

& (%)

n

Our actions

BMNTH

BEBEUHERERE

Food safety VL BENG 12 Gosienas
RIFRER AND PRU[!!JFHON

EmEE ik axmHn

Abide by food safety laws and regulations, and strictly
implement the food safety management system
standards;

E—T’Eﬁuuii\/ﬁ@/ﬂﬁ BEHRITRERELE
REARIHRE

Strictly select high quality ingredients, tracking the food
safety through supply chain;

BEBERM 2EEHMERENRDLT2GKMH
Provide more nutritious and healthier food.

REFERE EREMRM-

m}i

b=

Responsible business
BEERE

RESPONSIBLE PEACE, JUSTICE AND
CONSUMPTION STRONG INSTITUTIONS
AND PRODUCTION

Focus on environmental, social and governance risks

of supply chain;

BEREEIRE g RERRR
Establish supplier audit mechanism;
B EEERES

Build integrity culture of company, and adhere to
compliance and honest management.
BERR BENEEE BHARER HE

o

Community investment

HERE

SUSTAINABLE CITIES
AND COMMUNITIES
.

NO POVERTY QUALITY EDUCATION
2EE 4 BEHE

Involved in poverty alleviation projects;

SLEKBIEAR

Support youth development;

XFEEFER:

Build an interactive relationship with the community
and participate in community construction.

HEYREZROIEPEE 2ELERER -

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Green Operation and Reducing Resource
Consumption

RESPONSIBLE
12 CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION
SEEHR
REE

CLIMATE ACTION
13 RIETH

QO (&

Best Food proactively takes measures in environmental protection, and
promotes the concept of energy conservation throughout operations.
The Company strictly abides by the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste, Law of the People’s Republic of China on Energy
Conservation, Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Impact Assessment and other laws and regulations in relation to
environmental protection. Pursuant to the requirements of governments
at all levels, the Company has formulated respective environmental
management system in line with its operation. Each business segment
evaluates changes in relevant laws and regulations, and therefore
updates techniques and equipment and refines environmental
management methodologies, reducing impacts of their operating
activities on the ecological environment. In 2019, Best Food had no
confirmed non-compliance incidents or grievances in relation to
environmental protection that would have a significant impact.

Emission and Discharge Reduction

The major emissions and waste arising from the operation of HHG and
New Spicy Way include exhausted gas, wastewater, non-hazardous
waste such as kitchen waste generated in the operation, and greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) arising from energy consumption.

With regard to gas emission, the Company strictly abides by relevant
emission regulations and standards such as the Emission Standard of
Cooking Fume (DB12/644-2016). HHG’s and New Spicy Way’s
restaurants all purchased purification equipment in accordance with the
local standards and treatment requirements; the renovation of restaurants
adopts international standard construction material and coating products
to create an enabling dining environment for customers. HHG’s and New
Spicy Way’s production factories make use of complete exhaust gas
collection system and special purifiers to process the cooking fume
arising from steaming, boiling, stewing and other procedures. In 2019,
New Spicy Way invested in replacement with more efficient purification
equipment in production factories and update of fume treatment
equipment in nearly half of the restaurants.

REPORT (CONTINUED)
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With regard to waste water discharge, HHG and New Spicy Way require
all restaurants to install oil separators in compliance with local
requirements on environmental protection, and water separated from oil
is discharged into municipal sewage network comply with local discharge
standard. Industrial and domestic sewage of production factories is
disposed of firstly by the waste water treatment stations in factories, and
then discharged into local waste water treatment plants.

The major non-hazardous wastes generated by HHG and New Spicy
Way includes kitchen waste, waste paper, waste oil, etc. HHG’s
restaurants and factories implement waste sorting management. The
material recovery department is responsible for recycling waste packing
materials, certain kitchen waste arising from procurement of raw materials
is used as “fertilizer”, and a qualified third party is entrusted to help with
waste oil recycle and centralized treatment while regularly tracks on this
process is performed. New Spicy Way requires all restaurants and the
central factory to store the used and waste oil in specialized barrels,
which is to be recycled by waste oil recycling companies with
professional qualification; the kitchen waste and other waste (including
tissue, etc.) generated by all restaurants is stored in special capped
barrels and is collected and delivered by the shopping malls, where the
restaurants locate, to qualified recyclers for treatment; the waste packing
boxes and bags are collected and disposed of by local recyclers.

HHG and New Spicy Way mainly cut direct and indirect consumption of
fossil fuels to reduce GHG emission.

Resource Consumption Reduction

The Company initiates measures to lower resource consumption of
offices and all business sections such as equipment replacement,
behavior promoting, resource consumption analysis, etc. We advocate
low-carbon behaviors in our daily operations, exploring the energy saving
and consumption reduction potential of all operating and production
departments.
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HHG took lead in replacement of restaurants’ disposable chopsticks with
melamine chopsticks in the fast-food industry. LED lighting has been
used in all restaurants for energy conservation. The other way for energy
saving is selection of energy-saving product portfolios and multi-
functional equipment. HHG’s factories account for power consumption
by mounting electricity meters on various electrical equipment and
conducting statistical analysis on a monthly basis for reasonable use and
conservation of electricity. HHG encourages and promotes conservation
measures in daily operations, for example, sweeping floor with recycled
water, in a bid to cultivate employees’ awareness of resource
conservation. HHG has also developed a performance management
system regarding the cost efficiency of restaurants so as to mobilize the
enthusiasm of employees to save resources.

New Spicy Way promotes recycle and reuse of discarded electronic
equipment in offices and encourages paperless work style to reduce the
consumption of disposable office supplies. The major kind of energy
consumed by New Spicy Way’s restaurants is electricity. All restaurants
have applied electricity saving measures including using LED lighting,
installing energy-saving air conditioners, whose temperature is set in
accordance with national instructions for winters and summers, with dust
screens and outdoor heat sink regularly cleaned, and replacing old
induction cookers by premium energy-saving ones. Besides, New Spicy
Way manages all restaurants’ energy budgets through monitoring each
restaurant’s monthly energy consumption in line with its operation
revenue, and notifies the anomalies according to analysis. Factories of
New Spicy Way have developed Administrative Measures for Water and
Electricity Conservation, and communicate this policy with all employees
as parts of the training materials. In terms of electricity use, the factories
has switched to use LED lighting, and employees are required to comply
with the “no people, no light on” principle. In terms of water use, factories
of New Spicy Way avoid leakage caused by equipment damage through
regular inspection on faucets, water pipes and water storage equipment,
as well as timely maintenance and replacement of deficient equipment.
Solar-powered heaters and plug-in shower fittings are available in
factories’ bathrooms to achieve energy and water conservation. In 2019,
factories of New Spicy Way further refined the management on resource
conservation, where the data of water meters and electricity meters are
routinely checked and recorded. The production lines with relatively high
water and electricity consumption are identified and controlled in light of
calculation and analysis.
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Environment and Natural Resources

In view of the business characteristics, the Company mainly impacts
environment and natural resources with emissions and resources-
consuming in daily operations mentioned above. Therefore, we adopt
environmental protection measures to reduce emissions and resource
consumption, and minimize our impacts on the environment and natural
resources from operation. In the future, we will continue to improve our
environmental management system and formulate as well as update our
environmental policies.

We are also committed to promoting green consumption. The “Clean
Plate Campaign” in each catering section’s restaurants calls on
customers to save food, reduce packing and make concerted efforts to
protect our homeland, through various communication and posting
reminders such us table cards and table stickers.

Environmental Performance

Unless otherwise specified, the environmental data in this section covers
the period from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019. The data scope
covers HHG’s office area, direct-sale restaurants, production factories
and the new logistics center, and New Spicy Way’s direct-sale
restaurants and production factories.
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Table of Key Performance Indicators — HHG
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2019 Data
Indicators EBE 2019 F 8B
Emissions BBy
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (tonnes)! @ =F e e (FHE — L& E —) ()’ 11,769.55
Including: Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) H BHEHH(EE—) (HE) 68.89
Natural gas (tonnes) KR (HE) 25.58
Gasoline (tonnes) V5 i (WE) 43.32
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) (tonnes) MEAEREBM(SEE ) () 11,700.66
Electricity (tonnes) = 77 (HE) 11,700.66
GHG emissions per RMB million in revenue FHEETARBWABEEREELEN
(tonnes/RMB million) (W BEETARE) 24.70
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes)? mEREEYHES (E)? 799.55
Non-hazardous waste per RMB million in revenue SHEETARBRWAEBEEEYEE
(tonnes/RMB million) (W, BB TARE) 1.68
Resources consumption ERFEHA
Total energy consumption (MWh)? BERHFERE JRERE)® 16,718.68
Including: Direct energy consumption (MWh) HErfh: EHEgRBEFECEER) 305.92
Indirect energy consumption (MWh) Mz ae R B LR ) 16,412.76
Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue BETARBWARRER
(MWh/RMB million) (KEB, /BB TARE) 35.08
Water consumption (tonnes)’ BFEKE (WE)4 155,175
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue BEBEITARBRAEKE
(tonnes/RMB million) (W BEETARE) 325.64
Packing materials (tonnes)® (Ig)s 410.00
Packing materials per RMB million in revenue BETARBRABRED
(tonnes/RMB million) (W, BB TARE) 0.92
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Table of Key Performance Indicators — New Spicy Way FHREEBEEVNIEER
2019 Data
Indicators EE 2019 F 8B
Emissions E: 387
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (tonnes)! B =& e (FE — L& E —) ()’ 10,693.10
GHG emissions per RMB million in revenue FEEBETARBWAEZEREENR
(tonnes/RMB million) (ﬂﬁﬁ/ﬁfﬁjﬁ}\ﬁﬁg) 22.44
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes)? mEREEYBE (HE)? 1,165.05
Non-hazardous waste per RMB million in revenue BEEETARBRABEEEZEYES
(tonnes/RMB million) (Mg BE&ETARE) 2.44
Resources consumption BERFEA
Total energy consumption (MWh)? BEROHFEBE JKER)® 14,999.43
Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue BETAREIKAERER
(MWh/RMB million) (KEK/BBTARE) 31.48
Water consumption (tonnes)* B KE (fg) 4 138,857.46
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue BEBTARBIWAEKSE
(tonnes/RMB million) (W BE&ETARE) 291.40
Packing materials (tonnes)® B 2 4 (1) © 25.20
Packing materials per RMB million in revenue BETARBKRABRED
(tonnes/RMB million) (Wg,/ BB TARE) 0.05
Notes: B

1

Best

Due to its business nature, the significant gas emissions are GHG emissions, arising
mainly from electricity generated by burning fossil fuels. The GHG inventory includes
carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. GHG emissions data is presented in
carbon dioxide equivalent and is based on the 2077 Baseline Emission Factors for
Regional Power Grids in China issued by the Ministry of Ecological Environment of the
People’s Republic of China

Due to its business nature, the main solid waste is non-hazardous waste including
kitchen waste and food industrial waste. Hazardous waste such as waste toner
cartridges and ink cartridges in office and waste machine oil in factory account for tiny
percentage. Considering the percentage and the less importance of hazardous waste
for New Spicy Way, it is not disclosed.

Energy consumption only includes purchased electricity.

The main water resource is municipal water. There is no issue about sourcing water
until now.

Packing materials mainly include cartons and plastic bags.

Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Cherishing Talents and Caring for Employee
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Employees underpin the sustainable development of a corporation. The
Company values talents, focuses on employees’ needs, protects
employees’ legitimate rights and facilitates personal development. We
sign formal employment contracts or labor agreements with all employees
according to laws and regulations, fulfill relevant obligations in strict
accordance with the terms in the contract, and provide comfortable
working environment and sufficient training resources for employees.

Employment and Employee Rights

The Company is committed to creating a diverse, inclusive and fair
corporate culture for our employees. During operation process, the
Company complies with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, Special
Rules on the Labor Protection of Female Employees, Regulation on Paid
Annual Leave for Employees, Provisions on Minimum Wages, etc., and
has established a comprehensive human resources (“HR”) management
system. Based on the requirements of relevant laws and regulations, the
Company signs employment contracts or labor agreements with
employees with clearly stipulation on employment, dismissal, working
hours, vacation, salary and benefits, etc., and performs our obligations
strictly in accordance with the contract terms. We regularly review and
refine the labor contract template based on policy changes for the
protection of the employees’ basic rights. In 2019, there were no
confirmed non-compliance incidents or grievances in relation to human
rights and labour practices standards and regulations that would have a
significant impact on the Company.

The Company implements an open and fair recruitment system which is
oriented to professional capabilities of employees regardless of gender,
race, religion and pregnancy status. The HR Department confirms the
age and identity of an applicant through review and qualification
verification, and conducts a background check on core or special
positions as appropriate. We constantly expand our diverse recruitment
channels, including website recruitment, campus recruitment,
headhunting and internal referrals, providing stable and multi-layered
talent support for the Company’s long-term sustainability.
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The Company strictly prohibits the employment of child labor. HHG
clearly stipulates in its Employee Handbook that it is not allowed to
employ or use child labor. The Operational Manual for Personnel Practice
of New Spicy Way sets out the minimum age for all positions, where HR
specialists periodically organize trainings for relevant managers from each
restaurant, underlining the notes of recruitment management, so as to
avoid employment of the child labor.

The Company strictly prohibits forced labor. The Company has
established relevant rules for attendance and leave management, and
has a policy of requiring approval for special working hours in different
places in accordance with the local laws. The HR department is
responsible for managing working hours of employees, communicating
with person in charge in case of any abnormality and requiring for
reasonable, as well as arranging overtime leave or payment.

In terms of employee turnover, the Company has established complete
dismissal policies and procedures. HR specialists or the relevant
managers in restaurants actively communicate with resigning employees
to understand their feelings at work, and to review vulnerabilities in our
management and operation system in a timely manner.

In order to attract talents and retain high-performing employees, the
Company regularly reviews our salary standards benchmarking with the
market to develop a market competitive salary and bonus system. An
attractive and fair compensation system is built based on performance,
professional qualifications and experience of the employees. The
Company has also established a sound performance appraisal system to
ensure fair opportunities for employees in evaluation and promotion.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Welfare

The Company provides proper social security benefits and comfortable
working environment for employees, encouraging them to develop a
better sense of belonging and further recognize the Company’s culture.
We protect the employees’ rights of statutory holidays, annual leave and
maternity leave, and provide all employees with pensions, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance, unemployment insurance, medical
insurance, and housing provident fund as required. In addition to the
basic salary, we also provide post allowance, performance bonus, etc.,
regarding to the case. Each business segment offers benefits, such as
meals, uniforms and well-equipped dormitories, for restaurant staff based
on their work nature, and communication subsidy and transportation
subsidy for specific positions.

The Company carries out various forms of activities to help employees
balance work and life. HHG continuously carries out annual activities,
such as managements’ visit for frontline employees before the Spring
Festival, free meals for female employees who work on the Women’s
Day, fire drill training, autumn tours, overseas tours for high performing
employees, annual meetings and awards for the excellent employees of
the year. New Spicy Way prepares afternoon tea for office staff during
festivals to create a positive work atmosphere. The headquarters and
each regional market respectively organize team building activities for
restaurant managers with the purpose to enhance the will and creative
thinking of managers while relieving their work pressure.

Communication

The Company takes various measures to encourage communication
between employees and management. HHG lists the management’s
direct telephone numbers in the internal directory, so that the employees
can provide feedback or raise concemns; management collects opinions
and suggestions on the Company’s current systems, systems to be
updated, management implementation, etc. from various departments’
staff by means of office interviews and restaurant visits, and urges
relevant departments to address these opinions and suggestion. New
Spicy Way promotes monthly communication meetings among offices
and restaurants, advocating communication and exchange between the
employees and management.
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Occupational Health and Safety

The Company strives to provide employees with a safe and healthy work
environment. Aside from basic social insurance and housing provident
fund, HHG and New Spicy Way provide pre-employment health checkup
and routine health check-up for employees in headquarters offices; staff
of all restaurants, logistics division and related departments are required
to obtain health certificates and have health examination annually for
certificate renewal.

HHG strictly abides by the Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance and other laws and
regulations, and has developed the System of Labor Safety and Health
and QOperation Protection accordingly. HHG sets out the “safety
management regulations”, which constitute an important part together
with safety trainings for actual operation in new employee orientation, in
the Handbook for Employees. HHG manages health and safety risk of
restaurants in line with the Regulations on Restaurant Safety
Management. All restaurants are equipped with firefighting and safety
documentation portfolio including restaurant’s emergency plans for safety
and health accidents, instructions on using firefighting equipment and so
on, so that the employees can freely access and read at any time. One
safety administrator is respectively appointed in restaurants who oversees
the safety measures and regularly conducts and records safety training
as required. Lifeguard and evacuation manager are also designated on a
proportional basis to undertake safety responsibility. In terms of fire
safety, HHG carries out safety inspection and equipment maintenance
regularly, organizes fire drills and security awareness trainings each year,
and conducts annual firefighting and electrical apparatus inspection in
offices and all restaurants.
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Case: Fire Drills Involving All Employees in HHG

From June to July 2019, HHG held fire drills for all employees, involving
offices, restaurants, the logistics center and production factories. In the
drills, we invited firemen from the Fire Fighting Force to conduct
systematic and comprehensive fire safety training for employees, where
they explicitly illustrated the fire suppression at early stage, right way to
escape, usage of firefighting equipment, general knowledge of fire
prevention and self-rescue, etc., and gave professional guidance and
comments on the emergency evacuation drills.
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HHG’s factories have set up equipment teams responsible for electricity
safety management of each department. Equipment teams monthly
check whether the electricity use is accord with the specification, timely
rectifying electrical safety violations and eliminating identified safety risks
arising from faulty electricity facilities. Special personnel should be
assigned for each production equipment, checking whether the
equipment is in normal condition prior to start-up. Pursuant to the fire
safety regulations, equipment with electrostatic discharge ground clip
must be correctly clamped before use, where users should occasionally
check whether the metal on both ends of the clip is still properly attached
to the equipment.

New Spicy Way closely monitors the occupational health and safety of all
employees within different lines of business. For the protection of frontline
employees in its restaurants, New Spicy Way requires restaurant
managers, as first person responsible, to address safety risks in a timely
manner by patrolling the restaurants regularly, and increase employees’
safety awareness by remind them of safety issues during work and
commute. The Company promulgates the Safety Preservation, Personnel
and Government Policies, Disinfection and Food Safety and other training
materials for restaurant managers. For second-line employees, New
Spicy Way arranges safety trainings for new employees and provides in-
service employees with optional supplementary medical insurance and
financial support for accidents. New Spicy Way also encourages
respective heads of all departments to care for the physical and mental
health of employees and help employees maintain work-life balance and
understand their health status timely.

Factories of New Spicy Way have developed Compilation of Work Safety
Management System which is communicated to all employees as part of
the training requirements. The factories purchase commercial insurance
and supplementary medical insurance for front-line production employees
to strengthen the protection for them. Thorough safety inspections are
regularly conducted in production areas and office areas, and full-time fire
security officers are assigned and routine procedures are set up to check
on fire hydrants, fire extinguishers and fire pump rooms every day. New
Spicy Way receives annual fire safety inspection from government or the
third party, and actively participate in relevant training organized by local
fire department. In addition, operators for special equipment are required
to be certified and production personnel should wear labor protection
appliance properly.
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Development and Training

The Company focuses on the competencies development of its
employees. Management and restaurant managers or above are provided
with training programs through “Best Food University”. In addition, each
business segment also develops appropriate training systems based on
its business characteristics.

HHG’s training system is primarily classified into the restaurant level and
the headquarters level. At the restaurant level, HHG maintains consistent
training standards and has developed training manuals consisting of
necessary knowledge and practical skills with respect to food safety,
service delivery, fire protection, etc. HHG renews its training programs for
employees at different levels each year, and provides trainings on duty
management, system management and practice management when
necessary. Restaurants have trainers, and the restaurant manager and
the trainer are jointly responsible for organizing offline staff trainings,
which are supplemented by online trainings, such as SOP handbook,
online videos and other online platforms provided by HHG’s
headquarters. At the headquarters level, HHG organizes centralized
training, discussions and independent learning programmes for
employees at different job levels to learn about management theories,
analyse industry trends and conduct case studies. In 2019, in an effort to
better “discover and nurture talents and make them great” and develop
talent pool for future development, HHG conducted a comprehensive
evaluation on competencies of and offered targeted trainings to
restaurant managers and manager trainees. The training program
provides employees with development opportunities and development
platform, while fully motivating employees at all levels to actively step up
performance and profitability of the restaurants. During the year of 2019,
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HHG arranged 45 training sessions in total, including 6 sessions of on-  FI28] » BEHRE B I18] - H 551,115
duty management training, 2 sessions of system management training A X °
and 1 session of practical management training, with 1,115-person-times
participants.
Case: HHG Trainer Skills Competition RH: MERIREBUKEKRE

In May 2019, HHG organized the “The First Session of Chain Store
(Trainer) Skills Competition”, where in-service trainers of chain stores
were comprehensively evaluated regarding to their competencies.
Training plans for chain stores were tailored in accordance with the
appraisal results and those with outstanding performance were
shortlisted for manager trainees.

2019F 5 MEaARMEBHARIE —HEZE
SHIE (FIERE)BENPKKE]  BIBPKEY
FEHEERBIRENE N EEEITR
A EBZFE - WIREBF S & R T HFIET
Z O ETESEEBEBER -
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New Spicy Way focuses on the multi-layered training on employees’
basic abilities and professional skills. With respect to frontline workers,
New Spicy Way has formulated such management policies and
regulations as the Management Group Training System, the Service
Group Training System and the Career Development System. The
operation training department is responsible for formulating annual
general training policies, while sub-market management departments
verify and implement the annual training plans within the region, and
provide trainers guidance, technical support and acceptance services to
restaurants where necessary. In terms of other employees, apart from
attending new employee orientation arranged by New Spicy Way, they
need to participate in relevant external training courses and special
trainings initiated by their own department in accordance with demands
of the position and business. In 2019, the Human Resource and
administration department of New Spicy Way organized its employees to
learn the “Employee Motivation System Course” held by well-known
catering companies, where they shared ideas on industry trends, and
took theoretical courses on how to motivate individuals and how to apply
performance appraisal methods. Drawing lessons on these courses, the
Human Resource and administration department designed the
performance appraisal scheme for their restaurants.
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This year, New Spicy Way launched a number of training programs and NEE HHRBEHE —REBSTKBALS
activities according to its business needs and achieved good results. EEYIER NEE BNERIIFME -

. Held the “Job Skills Competition” within New Spicy Way’s new . BRTHRBEEBFMRAZERE MM

version restaurants, covering the management team and all staff BEAE| BEMATMAZENE
from these restaurants. BARSTIEEMET -

. Launched the course “Team & Winning”, helping the store . AR(EBRERE) SRR HEMEA

managers to improve the communication quality with the SAIERAESBAEIRD RS A
management team, and develop their leadership skills and BB HEFE ] -
influence.

. Launched the course “Restaurant Marketing” to share successful . HER(EELH)GE BEDS=ZE
cases of restaurant marketing campaigns with store managers, &I & HEEERM - R JE E
expanding their marketing ideas and improving the ability of EALHEBE BAMERE -
planning, organizing and executing business activities. B AT RS -

e Collected excellent marketing cases and drafted the “Outstanding . HﬁZ EHERY - BHR(RLER)
Cases”, organized case study as well as competitions at SHRREREREE REMT
submarket level so as to improve the service enthusiasm and f”E ML BESE - RAEBM ITIERED
professional skills of the stores’ management. FRFSEIE R EE R -

In terms of employee promotion, the Company implements polices HTEILEH A E  AAREHEE LHEMT
regarding employee performance evaluation and promotion management, ff - BEEBU B A E AT KE - M E %% f#H
providing employees with career development paths such as internal &0 Ft B2 7F Bk 51| R =5 B 2 35 = BR 1%
promotion and on the job training.
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Ensuring Food Safety with Multiple Measures

G0OD HEALTH AND 1 2 RESPONSIBLE
WELL-BEING CONSUMPTION
REFfEER AND PRODUCTION
Bk BEENR

-+ | G0

The Company believes that the product responsibility is our foothold, and
therefore strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations including the
Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Product
Quality. The Company takes a variety of management measures on
product responsibility to upgrade the quality of products and services, so
as to provide wholesome, environmentally friendly, safe and reliable
products for consumers.

Food Health and Safety

The Regulation on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law came into
effect on 1 December 2019, tightening the requirements on food
production and processing, as well as the catering sector. HHG and New
Spicy Way manage food safety in compliance with incumbent laws and
regulations and are willing to accept greater oversight from the society.
We will also continue to comprehend and promote changes in law
content and relevant implementation regulations and formulate our code
of conduct accordingly. In 2019, the Company had no significant violation
against the laws and regulations related to product health and safety.

As a catering company, HHG puts a premium on food safety. HHG has
established a “farm-to-table” quality and food safety standard system,
along with logistics monitoring system and food traceability system, so as
to ensure food safety and stabilize the supply chain. At the system level,
HHG has formulated and implemented the Comprehensive Emergency
Plan for Food Safety Incidents, Measures for Safety Management of
Supplier Quality, Specification for Food Safety Management, Measures
for Management of Food Additives, Measures for Management of Food
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Recall as well as relevant inspection policies regarding product quality,
trained the responsible personnel of related departments and food safety
managers in restaurants to enhance their understanding on and
implementation of the systems. In terms of food safety management
structure, the general manager of HHG acts as the leader of the food
safety group, and managers of all functional departments act as
members to fully implement the food safety responsibilities. In terms of
management systems, HHG has been successively certified by the
ISO9001 Quality Management System and 1SO22000 Food Safety
Management System. In 2011, HHG began to introduce high
performance management model and became the first catering
enterprise in China to adopt the high performance standard (GB/T
19580-2012). HHG applies the international standard of Hazard Analysis
and Critical Control Point (HACCP) to identify, evaluate and control food
safety risks and other risks. The system covers the whole production
process including raw material selection, production and processing,
production at restaurants, and delivery to customers, thus effectively
guaranteeing the safety of the production chain. Currently, HHG has
designated factories to process vegetable and cooking packages. The
headquarters provide technical support related to food safety
management on production to the designated factories, including:

° Purchase and acceptance of raw materials are in strict compliance
with HHG’s Standards for Raw Materials;

° The factories’ production management is accredited by 1ISO9001
and HACCP systems, and full-time quality inspectors are assigned
to oversee the production process and ensure the handover
process meets the standards established;

o The factories have obtained SC Food Production License, and

conduct Outgoing Quality Control in accordance with national food
safety standards.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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HHG follows a hierarchical inspection system covering the Company,
departments and restaurants, to systematically inspect the quality,
service, sanitation and management of restaurants, and execute control
measures for major hazards in the course of daily dynamic management.
In order to ensure the food safety in the course of food storage, serving
and delivery, HHG’s restaurants implement standard practice in checking
the incoming goods and recording the shelf life. The serving staff wear
masks and hair caps to prevent contamination, and food packages are
tied with seal strips to prevent secondary contamination. In 2019, HHG
had over 70 restaurants recognized with “Quality Catering Demonstration
Restaurant”.

New Spicy Way upholds the core concept of “food quality is the
manifestation of personal quality” and establishes a security system for
food safety in light of its business characteristics. In the process of
suppliers’ access review, New Spicy Way takes ISO22000 Food Safety
Management System and HACCP system as its standard on-site review
system, focusing on the performance of food suppliers in food safety on-
site management, and relevant personnel’s understanding of food safety
laws and regulations. With regard to the existing suppliers, New Spicy
Way continuously monitors their consistency in food safety and quality,
conducts irregular unannounced onsite inspection and annual review,
accepts incoming products in accordance with the Acceptance Criteria
for Incoming Goods, and evaluates the materials through cooking, where
necessary. In 2019, New Spicy Way has continued to maintain the
qualification by the 1SO9001 Quality Management System and the
ISO22000 Food Safety Management System, and won the China Food
Health Seven Star Award.

In terms of restaurant food safety management, New Spicy Way helps
restaurants forestall food safety risks through regular food safety
inspections and trainings. The headquarters holds monthly food safety
communication meetings with restaurant management teams of
submarkets, introducing food safety risks identified recently, and sharing
and discussing over the customer feedbacks obtained through public
opinion monitoring system. Each vyear, the training department
summarizes the restaurant food safety training demands, assists
restaurants in preparing the food safety self-check forms, and offers help
to restaurants to make daily control of food safety. In addition, the
department sets up courses on kitchen management, refined restaurant
management, etc., to upgrade the management quality of restaurant
food safety.
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Responding to Customer Demand

HHG pays constant attention to customer comments. The marketing
department assesses the appropriateness of the products and pricing,
and analyzes existing products for improvements with the help of
customer comments on third party platforms. In developing new recipes,
HHG collects popular local dishes and conducts surveys on customers’
preferences and prices of similar products, so as to develop products
that satisfy the customers. HHG’s audit department also regularly
conduct spot checks, assesses the operation standards of the
restaurant, and urges the restaurant to implement the requirements of
HHG Service Handbook, diligently providing its customers with
satisfactory services.

Built on the idea of “101% customer satisfaction with quality customer
experience” at its core, New Spicy Way facilitates customers’ dining
experience from three perspectives of the service, products and
environment quality. At the restaurant level, New Spicy Way launches the
system of “smile workshop” to stipulate the service process and details,
promotes awareness of customer service and cultivates skills among
restaurant staff, in order to provide customer with better service quality,
patience and sincerity. With the green, which is the preponderant color,
and spacious dining area, the decoration of restaurants is the
embodiment of New Spicy Way’s concept of “lush mountains, lucid water
and palatable fish”. In 2019, New Spicy Way introduced a new
specialty —“Fish Feast” based on customers’ demand, which not only
improves customer experience and product appearance, but also
enhanced customer satisfaction with a relatively economic price.

Safeguarding Consumer Rights and Interests

The Company is in strict compliance with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests
and other relevant provisions. In order to prevent the leakage of personal
privacy of our members, HHG establishes restricted access to members’
information for employees on a need to basis according to their positions,
and specifies the provisions for data confidentiality and corresponding
sanction measures for violations in the contract signed with the third-
party developer of the member information management system. New
Spicy Way values customer privacy and safeguards its member’s rights,
interests and privacy from multiple angels, including management of
channels, rules and data. Members of New Spicy Way are able to check
member information and membership system released by New Spicy
Way in the Wechat official account of “New Spicy Way Fish Hot Spot”
anytime. New Spicy Way uses data management platform provided by
prominent CRM (customer relationship management) service providers to
run the member data management system, and has signed confidentiality
clauses to ensure storage and access security of member data. In 2019,
the Company had no significant leakage of customer privacy.
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The Company attaches great importance to customer feedbacks and
opinions, as customer involvement helps us better understand
customers’ comments on products and constantly improve our service.
Each business segment has established a customer complaint and
communication system in line with its business characteristics. The
communication channels include complaint desk in restaurant, customer
service hotline, email, special page on various social media and
membership platform, which enable customers to share comments or
express their appeals. We oversee the customer involvement system to
make sure customer feedbacks and opinions are effectively handled and
properly replied. Once receiving customer complaints or inquiry, the
operation department of HHG will determine the responsible department
and level according to the specific situation, and contact customers in
time to solve the problem as soon as possible. At the same time, the
marketing department of HHG regularly collates and analyzes the
complaint information of restaurants, reviews relevant matters and puts
forward solutions. New Spicy Way has set up a customer service hotline
management system and established a special internal group for
communication. Once there are customer complaints, inquiry and other
relevant information, the restaurant manager will immediately contact
customers and provide solutions. Where the respective restaurant fails to
settle the case, the marketing department in headquarters will follow up.
New Spicy Way regularly summarizes the common problems raised by
customers and incorporates the problems into the general training plans
for restaurants, ensuring good dining and consumption experience. New
Spicy Way also invited a third party to carry out the “Mystery Customer
Visit” survey, and took this achievement as the main component of the
restaurant performance appraisal to improve the service level of the
restaurant. During the reporting period, the Company resolved 100% of
the complaints in all business segments.
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Responsible Operation and Compliance
Management

RESPONSIBLE PEACE, JUSTICE AND
CONSUMPTION STRONG INSTITUTIONS
%ﬂiﬁﬁftiﬂi

AND PRODUCTION
BREHR

Supply Chain Management

The Company vigorously establishes win-win development relationships
with its partners. We continuously refine the supplier management
system, concern about environmental and social risks in the supply chain,
and encourage suppliers to jointly enhance the environmental and social
risk management of food industry chain.

The suppliers of HHG mainly include food suppliers and construction
suppliers. In selection of food suppliers, HHG chooses suppliers with
required qualifications, qualified external inspection results and good
reputation for cooperation, to better ensure the reliability of the supply
chain. HHG has formulated a stringent monitoring and management
system across all cycles including transportation of raw materials and
food, processing and warehouse. For the acceptance and transportation
of raw materials, HHG requires the recipients to make entry records of
each batch of ingredients, and retain the inspection and quarantine
certificate, CIQ certificate, qualification certificate, inspection report and
other documents. As for construction suppliers, HHG adopts a multistage
approval system to verify suppliers’ design and construction
qualifications, material quotation, estimation and budget and requires
proper filing in the office. HHG prefers major brand suppliers. In addition,
existing suppliers’ performance is appraised according to the Supplier
Management System implemented by HHG. HHG timely communicates
and follows up the issues identified by the quality department in the
process of factory inspection. Suppliers, who fail to address the identified
issues in a timely manner, will be removed in accordance with the
elimination mechanism.
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New Spicy Way’s supplier access mechanism comprises qualification
verification and on-site review, where the purchasing department is
responsible for purchase demands analysis, supplier bidding coordination
and admittance process as the initiator. Meanwhile, the quality control
department is responsible for independent on-site review. More
specifically, the qualification verification entails checking administrative
punishment records of the suppliers in the National Enterprise Credit
Information Publicity System, including food safety and environmental
pollution; such punishment is deemed as an indispensable reference for
the review, which will definitely affect comprehensive assessment for the
suppliers. On-site reviews comprise assessment on production
management ability, product processing quality, environmental and
healthy control, personnel management, etc., and the assessment focus
of factory inspection varies with products. New Spicy Way implements a
system which vetoes the suppliers with the inability to pass the factory
reviews or the failure of qualifications. When signing contracts with
suppliers, in addition to the standard contract in compliance with the
requirements of national laws, New Spicy Way signs the letters of
commitment for food safety and packaging materials safety as the
appendix to contracts, which requires suppliers to take food safety
seriously. For suppliers’ evaluation, the purchasing department, quality
control department and operation department of New Spicy Way jointly
complete the supplier review on a regular basis, so as to assess supply
ability, delivery term, supply quality, packaging, and services of the
suppliers. The elimination mechanism is applied to unqualified suppliers,
with relevant information in the supplier database updated accordingly. In
2019, New Spicy Way started to designate resident inspectors and
managers in core OEMs to ensure the standardized management of
suppliers’ production lines and their consistency in providing premium
products.
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Intellectual Property Protection

The Company attaches great importance to the protection of intellectual
property rights, strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations such as
the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, conducting patent
applications to protect its intellectual property rights and monitoring risks
of trademark infringement in major domestic cities. For the purpose of
obviating infringement on intellectual property rights, we conducts a
content review to publicity materials, materials or finished products with
trademarks.

Compliance Advertising

The Company strictly complies with the relevant provisions in the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, and makes publicity
on the basis of actual product to circumvent false advertising or mislead
consumers. Advertisements on the official website and the Company
news published by other official media promotion channels must be
examined and approved by relevant departments to ensure the accuracy
and authenticity of the information. In 2019, the Company had no
significant violation against the laws and regulations related to advertising.

Anti-corruption

We continue to refine our internal anti-corruption management to ensure
the integrity management and operation of the Company. The Company
strictly abides by laws and regulations related to anti-corruption, such as
the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery. The Company optimizes the
internal monitoring system based on operating status, and formulated the
Administrative Measures for Complaints and Reports, together with the
anti-corruption training system for all staff. In 2019, no litigation in regard
to corruption was filed against the Company.
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In 2019, we improved our commercial contract standard template,
Provisions for Anti-commercial Bribery, for better compliance with revised
version of the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China and relevant governance philosophy of the Company. In
accordance with the internal management experience, we revised the
Administrative Measures for Complaints and Reports of Best Food (the
“Measures”), regulating the procedures for reporting, investigating,
handling and escalation, in relation to corruption, bribery, abuse of power
and fraud, and requiring all business segments to post the Measures in
the public areas of offices. In addition, HHG and New Spicy Way
implement various measures in supervision and management, based on
their actual circumstances.

HHG sets up various supervision channels such as working group, e-mail
and phone, so that employees can timely report issues. HHG ensures
that all reporting channels are fully accessible, and the issues reported
can be investigated in time. As for significant problems such as illegal
operation and potential fraud, the human resource department will carry
out timely follow-up. Once the facts are verified and confirmed, they
would be dealt with seriously.

New Spicy Way has explicitly stipulated in the inspection and punishment
for corruption and bribery in the Employee Handbook. It has no tolerance
for employees’ violations, such as bribery, embezzlement of public funds.
For employees who commit serious negligence of duty, illegal acts for
personal gains and fraud, New Spicy Way will pursue criminal
responsibility and economic compensation according to relevant laws.
Employees of New Spicy Way can, in an anonymous or real-name
manner, report any violation of corruption, bribery, abuse of power,
extortion and fraud. Reporting approaches and channels are posted in all
restaurants.
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Contributing to the Society with Community
Services

NO POVERTY QUALITY EDUCATION SUSTAINABLE CITIES
E AND COMMUNITIES
ARERE

b A E

N:T8

BUERE

The Company values community engagement and takes initiatives to
promote harmonious co-prosperity with local communities. By
participating in community volunteer activities and donation activities, as

well as supporting social welfare and community support projects, we
actively serve the society and give back to the community.

Tl

HHG actively shoulders its social responsibility, upholding the mission of
“providing healthy, delicious, convenient and affordable catering services
to customers with conscience quality” and promotes public welfare in
communities. As a catering enterprise, HHG, together with the local
government, advocates “Operation Empty Plate” and calls on the public
to make full use of resources.

° HHG has been cooperating with China Agricultural University since
2018. HHG is the training base for the College of Food Science &
Nutritional, and provides resources for academic studies.
Furthermore, HHG encourages students to combine education with
practice through the establishment of scholarships so that they can
see the actual results of what they have learned and studied.

° HHG stays in close touch with West Chang’an community, where
the headquarter locates, and is honored the title of “Model Home of
Workers in West Chang’an Area” and “Charity Corporate” by
Federation of Trade Unions of West Chang’an community.

° HHG has been donating both funds and goods to Boai Elementary
School of West Chang’an Street in Wantang, Pingbian Autonomous
County, Yunnan Province for years, providing children with
resources and better education.
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New Spicy Way actively undertakes social responsibilities, communicates
with relevant communities and stakeholders to understand their
demands, and conducts relevant community activities to deliver the value
orientation of New Spicy Way, pursuing a favorable humanistic
environment, to the public. New Spicy Way vigorously assumes its
corporate social responsibilities, upholds the core corporate culture of
“being a sunny and highly responsible enterprise”, and advocates mutual
care and assistance among employees.

Special: Combating the epidemic and
overcoming the difficulties together

Since the outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID-19), Best Food has
proactively managed our catering business through organizing and
implementing various epidemic response strategy and measures.

Ensuring the safety and health of employees and customers is
undoubtedly our priority. The Company proactively responded and
completed the configuration of infection control equipment and preventive
measures and trainings for store employees, and maintained continuous
engagement with our society on epidemic prevention and control
measures through our WeChat official account and Weibo. We also
suspended operations in various stores, and required our staff to standby
or work from home in response to the government’s call in reducing the
spread of the epidemic. We ensure that quick necessary supports and
assistance are given to our employees during this challenging period
through our communication protocol with our employees on a timely
manner, tracking on their wellbeing and health conditions.

The suspension of catering stores has brought an unprecedented impact
to China’s catering industry. We also quickly formulated and adopted
alternative measures to ensure the Company’s continued operations
while striving to protect the safety and health of employees, including
suspending new stores opening, new employee recruitment and
communicating and cooperating with other e-commerce companies to
develop a “sharing of staff” model to provide stability of income stream
for our employees.
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In addition, the Company increased focus on takeaway business actively.
Each of our catering sectors has successively launched takeaway that
meets the increased needs of consumers’ home dining or family
packages, with fully “secured” packaging and “contactless” delivery
services. Each takeaway order of New Spicy Way has a takeaway
security card to record body temperature of food makers, packers and
delivery men, which are tracked throughout the process to provide our
consumers with assurance on safety of our takeaways services.

While combating epidemics, we also actively fulfill our social
responsibilities. For example, in accordance with the epidemic control
and material supply in certain areas of Beijing, from February 2, 2020
onwards, HHG has provided hundreds of anti-epidemic set meals and
vegetables to Beijing Second Hospital, Beijing Emergency Center, and
communities in West Chang’an District to help ensure support logistical
supply to medical staff.
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